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GROUP OVERVIEW
SEEHN

Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited

(the "Company”) is the listed flagship in Hong Kong of
Shougang Group Co., Ltd. (“Shougang Group”), and is also one of
the first Red Chips listed in Hong Kong
ERERCEARAR ([F27]) TaMEEARAR ([HHEEH])
EEBEELTAR TRAENEE LTNAEKR 2 —

Since the implementation of the transformation strategy, the business

layout is clearly visible and well poised to take-off
BRBREE AR EHORENTR EREE

Car Parking Assets Operation and Management Business
and Urban Renewal-oriented Fund Management

Business are both developing rapidly. Be a trustworthy
New business scale has been ever- superior asset
expanding Our Mission investor and
EEAEEEERERRNATER AR and Vision °perator, make city

ANESEREBEEREER R (i€ DEtiEr

BTE S RN PN o FE = B A BB ERBE
SHEERER
S E BT T
BT

Ceased iron ore trading
and completed business
restructuring

SEFLERAR Value investment,

?% P IEFTERX excellent products, open and
¥R inclusive
I EERE BHER BHER

1. Must uphold the principle of value
Our Value jpyestment
EEE WABRFEERERA
2.Be committed to providing the best
products and services to society
BN R & 1R & 4 B0 EE fn MRS
3.Be a trustworthy, open and
inclusive investor
H—EESEL ARER
HWIREE
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MILESTONES
ERm

The Company is listed
on the main board
of the Hong Kong

Stock Exchange
Shougang Group and

Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited (now known as
CK Hutchison Holdings Limited) successfully
acquired the Company in 1992

RRFRE BB PR
EHMRLET

BNERBMARISE (£B)ARAT
(RBRIMZEXBRAT)N1992F
sl ¥ NNC]

Commenced asset restructuring, and sold
Qinhuangdao business, including steel
manufacturing, mineral mining and

' rocessin
Completed business P g

transformation, and
acquired parking asset
operation and private
equity management
business in China

HAREEEHR HNERESXE 2EHMER
i TEY R A N T 27

Insisted firmly on the transformation
strategy, developed the main business,
reduced the old business, divested
relevant assets, and introduced
strategic shareholders for
coordinated development

SEREHBL WEET
B EEEEELEMTL
BETEEER

REERIEE  HREEXE @R
ERED  FEEEBEE 3 AR
R R &R 3 R

Completed business restructuring,
enhanced capital reserves,
spread out business over
PRC, and formed a solid
foundation for
business development Pursuing longer-term and broader
development of the Car Parking
Assets Operation and
Management Business business
and urban renewal-oriented fund

management business

EREGEBAR BAES
fEm SmREEER
REBERETREMNER

BIEFEEELEETEEBNAMRT
FH RS ANESEERXEMAEBR
BEKREREMETENER

BREBRLGEERLAF 201953, 5



GROUP STRUCTURE
B

ARRIREMBAR ([REB])BAORITHE
to building China’s leading car parking assets operation and HEELNEFEEELLEEMABRTEHN A
management and urban renewal-oriented fund management HEMESEE AT -

company.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “"Group”) is committed

As at 31 December 2019
M 2019412 A31H

Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited

BEREBEEERA A

(697.HK)

Urban

Renewal-

g ) oriented Fund Shareholding in
Parking Business Management Listed Companies
FEER Business ¥R EHAR
LU i BT A 75 [0

100% 90%

Jingji Tiancheng
(Beijing) Fund

(R R 32 173 R 35 F
TEE (B &g
EEARAT])

Management
Co., Ltd.
(former name as
Shouzhong Beijing-Hebei Beijing West Fund Shougang Fushan
Investment Co-development Management Resources Group
Management Co., Exhibition Zone . CO Ltd. B Ltd.
Ltd. (Tangshan) Fund ( Bteﬂ'ﬂg West (BMBLER
(BhREEE Management IR R ARl EEARAT)
BRAT) Co., Ltd) RAZSER (639.HK)
(REXM (7) BRARD)
HLERFRAF)
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B E

For the year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLEE

2019 2018
Continuing operations BEREEK HKS$ Million HK$ Million Variance(%)
EBEHETT BB E BT ZE)(%)
(Restated)
(ggsE=75)
Revenue B 396 177 123.7
Gross profit margin FEH E 51.1% 61.3% -10.2
Profit attributable to owners of KRAREER A
the Company FE A5 5 A 442 309 43.0
Earnings per share (HK cents)* FREEF CB) * 8.31 7.67 8.3
* Adjusted pursuant to the share consolidation in March 2020 * 202043 A R 17 & 0F IfT E 1 2 55
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2019 2018
HKS$ Million HK$ Million Variance(%)
EBEHFETT B HE T ZE)(%)
Total assets wEE 10,997 9,430 16.6
Net assets attributable to shareholders J& & JE{L F & E 9,684 8,966 8.0
Bank balances and cash RITHEHBEIR S 3,057 3,034 0.8
Wealth management products BMER—RE
— current 527 106 397.2
Debt equity ratio BEE AR E 5% 1% 4%
* Debt equity ratio = Total borrowings/Equity attributable to the BEENIEE = 88 TLNGHEGAES

owners of the Company

BERBBRTGEER AR 20194 3F 7
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

Revenue* Total Assets
HK$ million = HK$ million maE
BEEET BEEET
500 11,500
10,997
396 '
400 11,000
B2018F & B2018E E
300 +123.7% 10,500 +16.6%
compared to compared to
2018 10,000 2018
200 5500 9,430
177 '
100 Q 9,000
0 8,500
2018 2019 2018 2019
Profit Attributable to Bank Balances and Cash
HK$ million Owners of the Company* HKS million RITERERSE
AREET A TES APEAE SR * AEERT
500 3,060
3,057
442
3,050 8201845
400 520185 & +0.8%
+43.0% compared to
compared to 2018
2018 3,040
309 3,034
300
3,030
200 3,020
2018 2019 2018 2019
Earnings Per Share** Debt Equity Ratio
HK cents ’éﬂﬁﬁﬂ*” % E%EZ':
AL AR
9.0 6
5%
86 >
8.31
;&2018551;% 4 B20185 &
82 cor:::;e/:i to 4%
2018 3 com;g‘ll'gd to
7.8 7.67
2
7.4 : 1%
2018 2019 2018 2019

* Restated ¥ Adjusted pursuant to the Share Consolidation in March 2020
27 2020938 R 15 & GF il (EH 2 &
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Dear shareholders,

All potential investors, employees and business partners who
have interests in the growth of the Company.

2019 is the second year of the Company’s full transition into
investment and management of parking assets and urban
renewal funds management. The Company held 13 board
meetings and 19 board committees meetings during the year.
We progressed solidly in each type of work according to the
established strategic plan, and the Company continued to
advance in areas such as strategy implementation, business
development, and enterprise management, etc.

During the year, the Company’s financial performance
reached further new heights. In 2019, the revenue was
HK$396 million; the profit attributable to shareholders
reached HK$443 million, representing a year-on-year increase
of 25.5%; the net asset reached HK$98.23 billion; and the
interest-bearing debt ratio was 5%. As of March 31, 2020,
the market capitalization of the Company is HK$9.211 billion,
representing an increase of 94.45% in comparison to that of
January 1, 2019. The Company was selected as a constituent
stock of the Hang Seng Composite Small Cap Indexes (HSSI),
and has become an eligible Hong Kong stock of “Shenzhen-
Hongkong Stock Connect”, which brought more convenience
to professional investors and customers from Mainland China
to invest in the Company. After the share consolidation on the
basis of every five shares be consolidated into one share, a final
dividend would amount to HK7.22 cents per consolidated share
and the dividend yield as of 31 March 2020 would be 7.6%.

During the year, the Company continued to receive strong
support from existing and new strategic investors. In
2019, the Company completed two rounds of fundraising,
firstly in March with the introduction of strategic shareholders
of the Company, namely HOPU and Matrix Partners China,
with a total financing of approximately HK$846 million; and
in November with the introduction of JD Digital as a strategic
investor of the Company, raising approximately HK$450 million.
Furthermore, existing shareholders namely Shougang Holding
(Hong Kong) Limited, ORIX Group, NWS Group, Matrix Partners
China, also increased their holdings of the Company’s shares
by approximately HK$1.745 billion; the above brought the
total amount raised to HK$3.041billion. With the support of
the investors, the Company has a bigger cash reserve; with
sufficient capability and solid backing to face different types of
uncertainties.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETREBESE

ERHNEREBRRR:

MEBLARRENEERES -
B o

BTHAE

2019 RAABIZHEANEEHEERELER
RMENESERERNE-_F -QRAEE—
FEWMERCI13X ZEAREEEANEZ S
19K B M3 FR B 7E MY B S AR B2 B et 518
TE RalEEEHT  EHE CEERES
FEEERE -

FER AAREREBLHFAER - 20190F
MU A3. 96 B HE - IR BN & T 124 431808
Mo B IR R25.5% SR A EE98.23BB K
EBBEEXRAS%  -HE202063A310 &
AIMEANIELSE 8201951418 K
94.45% ° REIE WM ANEELZE NRIRIEE
Em AR DRER] BIRZN EINEMNRAL
BEEREENBPREART - 5H51AKREST
A% R BB A% B 27.22/8 1L - LA2020F3 A31H ™
BFftE REEXAET6% -

FER RO ESIAFEEBRBREANKD
TE2019F A XK Mgt E - W3 A3
AEEREMEEAIIER R R BB E -
HEEE498.4618 8% W11 ASI AR EEF
EARRMEBRBRE BENISEEE : Q
RIEESTZERREMER(FE) MOt
SE -HEREE LERAKMER BEY
17 4588 Pl B H5E3041B88 /£
BEANIHTRARFEBETBARENRS
ERDHGEHENMBENEREYSETET
Mo

BREBECEAR AR 2019FH 9
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ITRBES

During the year, the core business of the Company grew
rapidly. The parking business in Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou,
Chengdu, Nanjing and other cities had approximately 40,000
new contracted parking spaces, which summed to a total
of more than 70,000 contracted parking spaces. The urban
renewal business funds management scale increased by
RMB14.875 billion to RMB42.904 billion (excluding liquidated
withdrawn funds), and the area of property under management
increased to 700,000 square meters in the Beijing metropolitan
area.

During the year, the team grew, and the level of
management was stepped up. The number of directly
managed staff increased 30%, with an average age of 35.
The per capita income grew 71% in 2019. We focused
on the needs to develop the core business, improving the
organizational structure, refining the system’s procedures,
creating cultural values, so as to bring effective improvements
to the various management tasks.

On behalf of the Company’s board of directors, | would like to
report on what we have achieved in the past year along with
related issues to think over.

CHAPTER ONE OUR EVALUATION AND

DETERMINATION

In 2019, as per our evaluation from two years ago, the volatile
asset price bubble is getting cleaned up and the rate of
return continues to drop, with various uncertainties becoming
a reality. As China has already shifted from the high-speed
growth in size and volume into an era of acceleration of
innovations, we are steadfast in being optimistic about Chinese
economy'’s sturdiness and resilience, and optimistic about the
development brought by the shift.

It was a good opportunity to increase investment at the
downturn of industry, with the steps to breakthrough paved
by tough situations. To this end, all team members devoted
themselves to the implementations of the Company’s various
strategies, as guided by the model of the operation in “precise
investment + lean operation”  with the principle of longevity,
lean operation, regional development, and technology
empowerment.

FERN DARLVEBRERR -FEXBE
b5 B BN R BRERMHENE
fLRAEE Rt RO EMBB7TEME - BT E
MEBESERRENIL148.75BARKE - R
FATEBRBAEEA.04EARE (TREEEE
BREREE) R ERIERREYMEEELT0
Bk

EERN BRE-—SHR EEE-—DSRER-
BHEEEE I R30% FHFHRERB3SHK
EBEH- 2019 AHAUGERT1% - BAE
BRLEREREME #E—SEEEBEE
BEHERRE BEXLEES SBEEET
E1S BB NiRF -

THERARARESFE ASUEREBE—
FHRHEMMBNSHUAREBRRENEE -

B—E

By # BB <F

20199 » 02 APTH5 4F 5 6] #) B - )7 R i) & 18
AR IEEL)E Was FIFE T BT
FEMEKBEEHEE - FECAENEERR
BEERENDFEEBEINREIFTAIFA &
FIEE 1) & 4F F BIAE A A4 BT i E
YFEREBIE I RIRIES)

TTRBEAEIMARERRE R A)REE
6] L SE MR a) & B o ittt - BIF 2R R [555 A
B EEERE+15m B L EERA A5
EL URHTE BoZE FEEANFR
A B8 7328 1] 15 8 1 7] 5 T & I & 3t B Rty
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Longevity

Strategic goals will not be achieved all at once and
capabilities also will not all be developed overnight. We
believe in the power of time, and are a firm believer
of longevity. We concentrate and focus on doing a fair
amount of work that has long-term value.

We integrate the concept of sustainable development
into the Company’s strategic planning, business
decision-making, enterprise management, incentive
and restraints, and ensure employees have sufficient
consensus with the Company’s vision and strategic
development plans, so they would be able to stand up to
short-term lures.

We have become more determined in setting up plans
for parking business, ramping up investments and the
strength of operation; improving the investment decision
model which covers the industry’s long-term value;
having employee incentive mechanisms more inclined
to business with long-term value; exploring employee
equity incentive plans, ensuring the integration of
employees’ growth with the Company’s developments.
We are pleased that a considerable number of
employees purchased the Company’s shares, showing
confidence in growing with the Company together,
and in the past year, these co-workers have also been
rewarded by the stock market.

Lean Operation

At present and in the future, after industry
consolidation, enterprises compete in their ability in
lean operation. A part of the success of outstanding
companies like KFC, Danahar, Park24, comes from
responding to the aspiring needs of people to live
a better life, and they have continually refined their
management and standardized the level of operation.

We strive to make every part dissectible to the
smallest unit, standardize and systemize the operation
management to the greatest extent. Through building an
excellent operating system, increasing the involvement
of technology, delivering five-star service standards,
optimizing the supply chain system, we guarantee the
stability, replication, and continuous optimization of
operation quality.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

EEHRES

REEE

BB IE TS —Bimst st HERMBIE
—H—s -BMEEKENNE BE
ENRBAEEE TOFRMTHEES
AARHEENTIE-

BB AT HFEERESEAR BB
BB EBARR CEER BBORE
hoRARKEHARESRMERBEA
FOMHEE AR AEEHEBRF X

HPEMEREMMBDEELITRE
MARENBENE  TEREEXER
HEENRERREL KB THBK
HRABREHEENEKER KR
BTREANBTE BREIKKEDR
FRRENRHETES RMAMEM
B MHEZEIBATRARNEKER
BETETHARNABRKENEDL B
EN—F BEBHOEITHEHME

A

=

BREE

BETAMRR CELBHIEEES
BRRBRELE N -TUOEEE  FH
- Park24 BLEF QA E MK
N—FERIERETBEREETEENE
FERESR - B—H AR TE RS 4
{LERE ZEBEBEHKTE-

BANRKEBERS D SERNET
RAREMGELEEFRELCMESR
b BBEREHNELEE  MAN
BREAN BRAERBERE BlHtE
BERX RETHRELZLZENRE
AERM B -
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ITRBES
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An example is the car parking business. Leveraging
on an intelligent parking management platform, an
excellent operating system and supply chain system,
many projects recorded above 20% increase in
revenue. We upgraded the equipment and systems of
operation, researched and developed leading SONIC
operation management system, the cost of labor was
reduced in the areas of fee collection, site inspection,
and customer service, and scientific and technological
innovation further increased the capacity of assets
return; we delivered five-star service standards across
each parking lot, streamlining our operation insight
into the public’'s minds. We further optimized the
cost-effectiveness and efficiency of the supply chain
system, bringing centralized purchasing into reality in
operational resources, labor forces, engineering designs
and construction, with the advantage of the emerging
scale of operation and management.

Regional Development

In 2019, the Company's core business had
breakthroughs in Guangzhou, Shenzhen, Nanjing,
etc., and regional layout started to take shape; at the
same time, the Company is continuously furthering its
business exploration in Beijing, Shanghai, Chongging,
Chengdu, etc., constantly increasing market influence.

We have formed a strong regional development and
service group with the elites for channel expansion,
public relations and other fields, to standardize regional
networks and localize service ability, maximizing
coherent regional resources, and therefore create
a bridgehead for ordered expansion and efficient
management.

With our products as priority, we can gain an in-depth
understanding of the realistic needs of clients and
actively build long-term partnerships with clients and our
partners. Along with the development of regional layout,
upholding the goal of thoroughly penetrating in regional
markets, our business development channels continue
to grow, our penetration abilities rapidly improving, the
category and scale of our products expanded steadily,
which lead us to stay ahead in the market.

NEEAD RMEITESREESET
B BMEBELERAMEREEER 2@
BEIEE AR AR ZATEIR20% A &Y
BRERMBAHEBEENRBENRG#E
TF R 2R - B8 7 RESCMISONICE &
ERERG ERE W5 BERFREMB
BT ALRA  BIEBIFE—SRAT
BEMWEE D BRMTESHESERN
TEESELERERBIZE  BELE
EESFEAAL BME—TELEHY
SMHEEREER BEERTER

B ANBHK - IRE HEINEFK
B ELATENRELCEDSERERBRR-

R EE

2019F R Al EKEREM  R=IYI -
MRERMERRE BEAREE L8k
¥ REAREILR 5 EE KH
SHBEREZR  MHFE )T E
o o

BPPERBIR AHABRFEEDN
BrRSEER R MREREEER
HBEEBEEEL REE DA
b BRAREBRESRER E2K5
BEAFRERENSUELZNBEE -

BPAERSLEE RETHREFNE
EFR EREEPMAEBHERER
HEERR -BEREMBONRMN R
FEMRAMEREMSNMREER K
BPINEBIRRRETERA  GHRR
e N REE EmmBRERTE
K- WM T MG R -
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4. Technological Empowerment

At the moment, the digital economy is arising, there
is a strong integration between online and offline.
Controlling offline high-quality base asset and adding
the support of internet technology is the key to speeding
up strategic transition, upgrading product formats,
iterating business models, and reshaping enterprise
values.

Currently, we are far from using enough technology, and
we have a long road ahead. In the future, we will invest
more resources to equip our staff, to empower business
operations, to improve our level of technology in market
expansion, lean operation, management efficiency, client
services, to push the digitalization transition of industry
and enterprise, so as to provide clients with products
and services with higher quality, better user experience
and more scenarios.

CHAPTER TWO OUR PLANS AND

IMPLEMENTATIONS

Our evaluations towards the market and the determination
to hold onto our principles show the confidence and courage
of our team. However, the market believes in results and
performances. In the past year, heading in the direction of
the goal in mind in the implementation of strategic plans,
we achieved common goals across the management to the
employees.

Through results-driven and goal-oriented management,
we divided the strategic goal into several measurable key
results, which prompted the team to focus on the market
needs, shaping products’ competitiveness, lifting the level of
management, continually producing new supplies.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETREBESE

. R
ETHBFREESIERR-REKTR
ERE REGTEEEBEEBM L
E @R8I A0RB
A REG R BRELER 52
SR EED R
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B-HBAES EREMX -APRBES
R RHROKE - BB R MITENEF
@A SRFPFREHESmE T
B B 2GR E MmN R -

gt

BB T

BTG H B I R A e B FREER T B A 15
B R - (8 T 55 1815 49 2 45 R AR - 1A
E—F KIPIEEBENIERBT LUBEZ
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TEHER FTIEEMmBRF eI EEE K
FTEEEF A

BREBRFTCEARR AR 2019F#H 13
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14

Parking Business Segment

In China, parking is related to people’s lives and is a
massive industry, which is large enough to breed an
excellent enterprise. The current domestic parking
industry is extremely dispersed, with a huge demand
gap and low-quality managements, characterized by
single product, and is in the early stages of market
consolidation.

The consolidation of parking industry will bring more
quality investment opportunities, and lean operation
after consolidation will create more investment value. On
one hand, we are continually improving and innovating
new products around the market demands, and on
the other hand, we still believe that technology is an
important driving force to reshape the layout of the
industry. Therefore, no matter how many challenges and
difficulties we are faced with, we are still determined to
move forward.

(1)  Shaping Product Competitiveness of Parking
Industry

1) Municipal Facilities Car Parking Product

Transportation hub parking is a high-
end product of the municipal facilities.
After acquiring the projects of Daxing
International Airport, Honggiao
International Airport, Guiyang Longdongbao
International Airport, Pudong International
Airport, we also won the bid for the 15-
year operation rights to approximately
10,000 parking spaces at Beijing Capital
International Airport, covering the whole
of Beijing-Shanghai airport line car parking
resources, standing stronger as the leader in
the airport car parking industry.

FERBRR
EFAREENTRE BEEANHE
% AEPESHLENEN-ANE
AFETSEES - LRERRD
K ERATIE  ERSEE— R
RN TSR A A

FETENEASHFREZNEER
ERE BEAZERMNBREERBAR
EMEE B FTEESEMESHERT
HECMRIFER »— T EBKAE
MEREREXRRENERES N -
A BEmREES N M R
RABRTERITT

(=) HEFEEMFRNHEFL

) MRAEERESEER

RBEMEER™HRE
EEShERER TE
B K 5 B B 4 35 - 4TS B
B 15 - B 5 3R R R B R
% R BB I5 51
BN BMXPETIER
BERERHISEEEZLY
10,00018 &8 7 154 & 4
B BT REEKS
FEEAREBE HE—F
HEWISEBEESREEL
fiz o
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On September 25, 2019, Beijing Daxing
International Airport opened for operation
and the car parking building was put into
operation on the same day. We introduced
the globally advanced automatic parking
technique, with full coverage of intelligent
parking and reverse car search. Through
installing photovoltaic, charging points,
smart lighting, and other infrastructures,
we have made the biggest reduction in the
cost of energy, and attracted a group of
high-end car brands into new energy car
experience centers. We tried to collaborate
with online ride-hailing platform
companies to resolve the management
issues caused by unregulated pick up and
drop off passengers. We collaborated
with well-known environmental protection
organization in order to develop cross-
border charity collaboration work, bringing
wildlife protection themes into car parking
signage, taking on the social responsibility
that a good company should have.

Central regions of first and second tier
cities have a shortage of land and the use
of land is restricted. The Company has
had opportunities of urban renewal and
in making up shortfalls in functionality
of urban cities, closely worked with the
government’s plans of the old city regions
renewal projects, investing and building
parking complex as urban city nodes, with
implementations of franchising rights
projects/BOT projects for three-dimensional
parking lots across Beijing’s Xicheng
District, Chaoyang District, Shunyi District,
and Nanjing’s Qinhuai District, with a total
of more than 7,500 contracted parking
spaces.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETREBESE

2019 9A25H b R K
FERKSHBES =
BHERBRAER KM
SIA R ENBEAE
Bt BERTEEEE-
RASENEEZ AR
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=1 U ) BB O R B T RS IR BE
B AB - B M E A
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Commercial Car Parking Product

Commercial parking (including parking
for commercial properties and office
buildings) is considered a relatively mature
product segment in the business and the
focus of the operation is to meet the
owners’ urgent need for property value
enhancement.

We started from the stage of planning and
design conduct in-depth research on how
to better match with above-ground real
estate positioning, to design functional
services like the moving line of the parking
lot and identification system for parking
lot to meet the clients’ needs. By using
SONIC parking system, and A.l. + big data
+ mobile payment algorithms, we connect
closely with the membership database of
owners and develop various parking service
products such as car space booking, service
booking, bonus points redemption system,
etc., making the most out of the value of
parking lots.

Roadside Car Parking Product

Roadside parking management is an
important starting point of detailed city
management and smart city infrastructure.
All levels of governments have had
high initiatives in moving into electronic
management of roadside parking. We face
a new round of opportunity in the market.
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In 2019, we lifted the quality of the
roadside parking management and
received high recognition by the Yanging
District government, and signed a
contract for Beijing’s Yanging District
roadside parking operations management
(phase II) project, realizing the integrated
management for roadside parking for
the whole region. We have also been
actively creating new ways to collaborate
on roadside parking projects, continually
improving on technical solutions of
roadside parking, and obtained the project
of operating and managing approximately
1,700 roadside parking spaces in Beijing
Daxing District by taking advantage of
“precise investment + lean operation”. In
January this year, our Company further
obtained the 30-year operation rights of
more than 13,000 roadside parking spaces
in the main city area of Baoding, Hebei
Province.

In the near future, we will strengthen the
cooperation with regional governments to
implement the expansion of “from within
to the outside of the road”, consolidating
the ability to invest and operate, to
provide the government with a regional-
level integrated comprehensive static
traffic solution, and to develop more in-
depth business cooperation with regional
governments with a broader business
scope.

Building Technological Support for Lean
Operations

The Company firmly believes that technology
has fundamental values in reshaping the parking
industry. We, on one hand, use the latest smart
hardware in parking lots, and on the other
hand, continuously upgrade application systems,
making the transition from the “parking lot level”
operation and management to a “parking space
level” digitalized smart operations mode.
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Through analyzing the data of parking space
utilization and turnover rate, and combining with
image analysis of customers’ vehicle, we achieve
accurate marketing of parking product and
services. We use smart devices to replace operator
for site surveillance and the number of managed
parking spaces per staff increased by 49%.
Through obtaining and using accurate operational
data and image data of cars, car spaces and lanes
in real time, our operation and management
efficiency has been significantly improved.

In 2019, we created an independent intellectual
property product, SONIC intelligent parking
management system platform, which is another
upgrade to the Company’s smart management,
created more value to the parking industry assets.
This platform is currently used in the Daxing
International Airport project, and in the future,
it will be used in all parking lots operated by the
Company.

Our digital intelligent parking management
system has eliminated the constraints of
manpower needs and scale growth in traditional
car parking operation management. Instead,
the greater the scale of the management of
parking assets, the more obvious the operational
cost benefits, creating a solid foundation of
competitive advantages of a coexisting model of
industry scale and lean management.

Improvement of Team Stress Resistance

In 2019, the Company achieved good results in
the market, however, we also clearly understand
that as a pioneer in the industry, the development
of the Company is inseparable from the support
of all parties, and is relative to industry policies
and social environment.
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Take Initiatives, Promote Local Policies
Implementation

On July 30, 2019, the Political Bureau of
the CPC Central Committee requested to
implement such as the reconstruction of
urban old areas, urban car parking, and
the construction of urban-rural cold-chain
logistics facilities. This is a significant policy
benefiting the entire industry, however,
at the policy execution level, the parking
industry policies in various cities are yet
to be completed and it will take time to
implement. This requires the Company to
actively strengthen the communication
with each local industry authorities, to
provide timely feedback on practical
experiences to the industry, in order to
improve and enrich the parking industry
policies of all the regions, and to support
the authorities in regulating and guiding
the developments of parking industry.

Be Positive, Accelerate Project
Implementation

One of the Company’s key products is the
construction of parking complex in core
urban area of cities to form city nodes.
These projects are generally located at
the core parts of the city, where the
underground pipeline conditions and the
surrounding residents are complicated.
The new construction projects also
involve various issues such as land use
and construction facilities related issues.
The lengthy construction period from the
initial stages of implementation to the
final stage of putting it into use is one of
the reasons that the progress of some car
parking complex projects is falling behind
expectations. Although the current project
advancement rate is accelerating year-
on-year and month-on-month, it is still
insufficient to match with the industry
space and overall capacity of the parking
industry in China. In the future, we will
have the initiative to build a parking
complex in the region through cooperation
at the city-level, and will furthermore make
use of the support of parking complex
product standards, to construct and
replicate speedily and speed up project
implementations.
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Stay on the Right Path, Eliminate Unethical
Practices

In the current situation of the market,
there are some stereotypes and grey areas
causing trouble in business development
and operation. The management agrees
that, even under the pressure of the
business expansion, actions need to
remain unchanged and the team is
not allowed to benefit from any use of
illegal measures. We insist on adhering
to strict risk control standards to ensure
that business operations are meeting
the compliance requirements of a listed
company and of our cultural values. We
insist on a transparent management
system, submitting real data of the parking
lot to the owners regularly, which are also
open for inspection by the owners. We are
willing to make money with “honesty”,
and are willing to work hard in promoting
our commercial services, promoting the
gradual standardization of the parking
industry.

In the field of parking services, the
Company’s core value is to create multi-
value parking products for the society. We
need to have an in-depth understanding
about the unique culture of each city
where each project locates in order to
resonate with the spirit of the city. It is
necessary to have in-depth communication
with the government to obtain a better
policy environment. It is also necessary
to understand the clients better, design
creatively functional combinations. By
creating parking lots with warmth,
emotions, and culture, parking lots
become common living spaces for all, and
even become landmarks for the city that
express the spirit of the city.

Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited Annual Report 2019

BTIEE WRITERR
PB =
EHANMERETES
EE-LERBRBHRE
BERARIBE MK &4
HoBEE-—HRA M
BERBORNENT
BELERENEL T
AR EF R EAE
RFBRERE M
FRERNRREERE:
REEXBETHELTA
A H) & R B SKAMIR FI#9 3
fLEES: RMBRHERE
R BxaEstl 5
AXETRXEZEEH
BoAREETABRER:
HFEERIZEE] X
AEBRNS OHEER N
BRI EEBIFETE
B 8 AR %6 ©

EEBEEBHEYL 2EH
BZOBEERITELRER
HEeREZTEENE
BEEm-ZMFERAR
BE—EEBEFLED
B I8 55 S0 fE - DA SR EAE A
ERHIS - BB EBUFR
NBE REEFHNERER
RE-FTEEHFHERE
F - RliE T se A
ERFTITEBERE A
B BAXIENEES:
EEESER /AR KR
ERZER DERRKRE
W AE AR B AN AR o



2.

Urban Renewal Business Segment

In the process of urbanization in China, no matter
policy oriented or the constant division in the real
estate market show the same signals: the large-scale
of development of first-tier cities is coming to an end,
urban renewal is moving from a single point to the
whole region, and the window of opportunity for urban
renewal is opening gradually. In the current stage, our
urban renewal business operates under a fund model
and promotes urban renewal projects with a very
“light” assets management model. We are committed
to taking urban renewal as the main orient, and through
integration of regional resources, we create experiential
and composite business formats, and thereby continue
to improve urban functionalities and stimulate urban
vitality. We believe that with the land resources we have,
along with the capital strength and joint operations
ability, we are bound to create new values.

(1) Land as a Base, Accurate Link to Capital,
Introducing Commercial Resource

The urban renewal fund is based on land
resources held, grafting capital and commercial
resources, introducing investors with different
risk and return preferences according to the
designated positioning of different projects, and
thereby bringing in various types of commercial
resources in a purposeful manner.

Key projects have been progressing well for the
year:

o A fund of RMB6 billion was set up for the
Beijing International Talents Community
Project and received investment of
RMB2.4 billion from National Council for
Social Security Fund, which is the first
investment for National Council for Social
Security Fund towards urban renewal.
The International Talents Community
covers hotels, apartments, commercial
buildings, offices, and many other types
of business formats, and will introduce
global commercial resources and partners
to build together property complex with
international quality, thus becoming the
talent gathering location in the western
part of Beijing.
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We are cooperating with the world'’s
top industry operator Tishman Speyer
to launch a large-scale urban renewal
complex — “Chang’an Malls" project
at the Beijing Winter Olympics Plaza,
which is fully under construction and is
expected to be put into use in October
2021, and will be servicing as the first
mega commercial complex for the Beijing
Winter Olympics and the local community.
We will be integrating industrial heritage
and futuristic spaces, building a dynamic
vibrant corporate development cluster,
providing unique experiences for people.
Once completed, it will become a city
landmark with global significance and
influence.

In addition, during the year, a special
fund under our management won the bid
for the seven lots of land located on the
south side of Gucheng station on Beijing
Metro Line 1. It has a total construction
site of 240,000 square meters. The project
will work closely with the world’s top
development companies to ensure quality
and excellence. This project is positioned
as an international 5A Grade A modern
smart office building property and is
now open to global technology giants
and multinational large-scale corporation
groups to invest.

The urban renewal funds we managed are
different from property development project fund
or debt fund with single purpose. We have had
multiple rounds of accurate capital investments,
and arranged investment and exit channels
on multiple stages such as land development,
property holdings, property operations, achieving
high levels of matching between capital financing
and project phases, and attracting different types
of capital support into the urban renewal field
and finally opening up the way to ABS and Reits.
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Value as the Core, Cost Control, Efficiency
Improvement

The investors do not only focus on accuracy
of investment, but also have high expectations
towards quality of the real estate operations.
We aim to be an excellent asset management
organization, whilst focusing on design planning
and constructions, we also focus on the process
of property lease and operation.

o In the design and budgeting stage, we
utilize a “cost limit on design” concept,
in ensuring the maximization of product
value, simultaneously using the most cost-
efficient design, to achieve optimization of
design and costs.

o In the bidding stage, we select project
contracting units through market-based
public bidding. We select contracting
units with the most outstanding quality,
reasonable cost and budget, guarantee of
construction timeframe; and also select
professional subcontractor companies
using a market-based bidding process.

o In the construction stage, we build a very
experienced construction management
team to ensure construction schedule,
and engage a special cost control team to
supervise the site, to effectively control the
on-site contracts and agreements, any on-
site changes and other measures, to make
sure that there is no occurrence of “non-
effective costs”.

o In the open investment stage, we
participate in investment promotion from
an investment perspective. We make use
of the investor’s channels and internal
or external resources to establish a
comprehensive and open lease platform so
as to attract companies which are able to
grow together with us in the long term.
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o In the operation stage, through lean
operation, we strictly control cost and
expenditure of each stage, using superior
cost control ability to increase the
operational efficiency, lowering the cost
of property renewal and operational costs,
increasing asset operation returns.

Beijing West (Jingxi) As a Starting Point,
Seizing Right Opportunity to Enter the First
Tier Cities, Servicing Transformation of the
Enterprise

In terms of urban renewal business area layout,
we insist on basing in the Beijing West area, and
select opportunities suitable to be based in first
tier cities such as Beijing, Shanghai, etc. Industrial
enterprises represented by Shougang Group
have once written a part in the grand history of
the modern industrial development in the west
side of Beijing, which has been an outstanding
contribution to Beijing construction. In the future,
Shougang region will become the landmark of
city revival in the new era. This is a historical
development opportunity, a momentum of which
we will ride on, and base ourselves in the Beijing
West area and further develop the Beijing West
area, to provide the best quality of investment
and financing services for regional development
and transformation of Shougang, and to become
one of the bridges where high-end resource
elements are collected.

We have noticed that the pricing on a large
volume of assets has started to adjust towards
a sensible range, and there is also quite a
substantial amount of companies and partners
willing to sell or securitize assets to obtain
opportunities for transitioning into a new
direction of development. In the next three years,
we will cooperate with international investment
institutions, large-scale industrial groups and
other long-term capital investors in setting
up funds, acquiring property assets in Beijing,
Shanghai and other first tier cities, and through
repositioning of property assets, improving
revenue structure, increasing property operations
efficiency and other means to boost asset value
and achieve asset securitization.
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Equity Investment Business Segment

Apart from parking and urban renewal businesses, in
the past year, we have also progressed in the area of
equity investment. The Company’s equity investment
business adheres to the concept of “keep straight and
be innovative, incubating with ecology”, on one hand,
to “innovate” outside the core business and earn profits
for the Company through financial investments, and
on the other hand, to provide an ecological platform
to promote core business industry innovation and
incubation. Our two core businesses, parking and urban
renewal were bred from equity investment businesses.

Traditional funds’ investment structure of “hear the
stories, try the luck, seize the speculating opportunity”
is not sustainable. The investment value logic is shifting
from speculate to industrial empowerment. We are
determined to cooperate long-term with excellent
corporations and teams, to participate fully in industry
integration, and bring about value enhancements
through lean operation after precise investment.

o During the year, we acquired Beijing Jingxi
Venture Capital Fund Management Co., Ltd.
("Jingxi Venture”), a subsidiary of Shougang
Fund, and inherited the valuable experience and
methods that Shougang Fund had gathered in
the last decade in the field of investment. The
joining of the Jingxi Venture team has enriched
the content of equity investment business, and
further empowered the core business, at the same
time also added new areas of collaborations with
clients in regional expansion.

o During the year, Beijing Bayi Space LCD
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Bayi Space”, SH.688181),
which the fund under our management invested
in, was listed on the Science and Technology
Innovation Board, and as of March 31, 2020,
the market capitalization of Bayi Space was
about RMB459 million, and the return on this
investment is 12.11 times. Early in 2013, the fund
under our management invested in Bayi Space,
and have been the biggest institutional investor
since, staying and growing together with it in
the long-term and therefore to be rewarded with
great returns.
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o During the year, other investment project of
the fund under our management — Li Xiang
Automotive, obtained a new round of US$530
million financing from Wang Xing, the founder
of Meituan Dianping. Li Xiang Automotive has a
rich accumulation of technical strength in core
areas such as advanced driver assistance systems
(ADAS). With the launch of the first product,
Li Xiang ONE, the user feedbacks are positive
and there has been a fast increase in sales
orders. Li Xiang Automotive has the opportunity
to overtake in the industry and be China’
s automotive enterprise representative in part
of the global competitive electronic and smart
automotive industry.

o The Company focuses around the key industries,
creating educational brands in “Canjia College”,
building “education + capital + industry” systems
to create an innovative and enabling ecosystem
for the Company's core business and equity
investment businesses. Canjia College currently
has about 300 entrepreneurs in total; covering
more than 200 outstanding enterprises, including
24 listed companies and 12 unicorn companies;
with the total market capitalization of the
traineeship at more than RMB920 billion.

Stable Performance of Associated Companies

Shougang Fushan Resources Group Limited (“Shougang
Resources”) has been stable for the year in production
and operations with a yearly revenue of HK$3.869
billion in 2019, with profit attributable to shareholders
HK$1.14 billion. The Company shared a net profit of
Shougang Resources in HK$290 million in proportion
to its shareholding. Shougang Resources has a healthy
financial position, with net assets of HK$17.046 billion,
book cash of HK$4.762 billion. In the interim and final
results of 2019, the dividends were HK$450 million and
HK$460 million respectively, the dividend payment rate
at 79.96%, continuing its contribution to the stable
profits and cash dividends to the Company.
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During the year, the Company acquired Jingxi Venture
and indirectly became the largest shareholder of
Beijing Vstarup Investment and Development Co., Ltd.
("Vstartup”), holding 24.19% equity interest thereof.
In 2019, the total management area scale of Vstartup
is 503,000 square meters (inclusive of Zhong Guan
Village E World, International Chuangke Centre, and
other groups of landmark assets), with a revenue of
RMB261 million (including more than 2000 customers
such as Bytedance, New Oriental and TAL Education),
and a compound growth rate of 123% in the last seven
years. Vstartup has practical operation ability in urban
renewal area, which provides significant support for the
Company’s urban renewal fund strategic layout.

5. Trade Business Termination

Since 2018, according to the established strategic
plans, there has been a gradual reduction in the
iron ore trade business scale. In 2019, the Company
stepped further in reducing the scale of trade business,
and signed an assignment and novation agreement
to transfer the long-term purchase agreement of
iron ore in late May 2019, consequently removing it
from the business segments, and the business trading
terminated completely. The Company has completed the
transformation in its main business segments, and will
be focusing on parking and urban renewal businesses in
the future.

Following the development of various businesses, the
Company'’s revenue structure and profitability has clearly shown
improvement and better performance. In comparison to 2018,
parking business revenue has increased from 35% to 45% in
proportion to the continuing operations revenue, the urban
renewal business revenue decreased from 58% to 46% in
proportion to the continuing operations revenue, and overall
gross profit margin decreased from 61.3% to 51.1%, gross
profit margin gradually stabilized due to business restructuring.
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CHAPTER THREE OUR ORGANIZATION AND

CULTURE

The business model, organization and cultural values are our
ferries that take us across to the other side. With value creation
as the end goal, the organization as the driving power, values
as the beacon in the lighthouse, all of which are indispensable.
The business model needs to create valuable products to serve
more people and create tangible profits, the organization
needs to build collective momentum, to allow the team to
drive themselves forward, furthermore, values shall establish
behavioral boundaries, ensuring organization’s direction does
not deviate from the end goal or route.

As the number of employees grows rapidly, the parking
business rapidly expands, and the urban renewal projects
entering the growth period and upon the landing of the park
fund project, the construction of the organization is facing
more challenges.

We hope the Company is a business community with a common
mission and vision and for this, we persevere in our efforts in
three areas: firstly, to continue to improve operation system of
the organization, building an efficient and simple organization,
secondly, to honestly help employees to grow, building a
vibrant organization, thirdly, to continue to develop our cultural
values, building an organization that is stable and long-lasting.

1. Building an Efficient Organization Operation
System

An organization is never going to be perfect at any time,
and hence must change with the times. We continue to
invest energy to shape an evolutionary organization in
working on the following three areas.

(1) Efficient and Flat Organization

We aim to achieve high efficiency, through better
empowerment and a better decision-making
system, streamlining the workflow processes, with
measures to simplify rules and systems, reducing
complexity of the organizational operations,
improving organization’s overall efficiency.
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o The improvements on delegating and
decision-making systems give more
incentive to the frontline staff. On
one hand, under the premise of risk
compliance, we commit to enabling
frontline staff to get corresponding
authority, to have enough autonomy to
mobilize Company resources in order
to quickly respond to external changes.
On the other hand, we streamline the
management decision-making levels,
reducing unnecessary intermediate stages
of assessments.

o Streamlining work process, adhering to
using multiplex tools, focusing on value
creation. We encourage employees to
be active in participating in continuous
improvements of work, on the basis of
compliance and achievement of basic
goals, to simplify the work processes,
to accumulate experience and practice,
allowing the team to put more energy into
creative work.

o Continuing a clear and concise system
of organization rules, we simplify the
Company’s rules and regulations to form
rules of incentives, collaboration, negativity
management list, internal systems accounts
rules, etc. We strive to facilitate employees
to be able to quickly comprehend, master
the tasks and take action to implement.

Technological Specialized Organization

We plan to use the ways of technical information
to transit majority of the content of employee’s
work online, connecting business, financial and
human resource systems, building a company
smart platform, and achieving a work model of
“one man, one login number, to handle all daily
work requirements”.
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(3)

The Company’s smart platform can automatically
follow up on employees work progress, capture,
insert and save employees’ work, and turn
individual performance into organizational work
experience. Through smart platform analysis,
to renew and adjust the Company products,
standards and plans accordingly. Such a platform
becomes the “brain” of the Company to think,
which enables employees to fight alone with this
“secret weapon”.

Innovative Networked Organization

We continue to persevere to accelerate the
improvement on performance results as an
innovative matrix organization. We start with the
end in mind, coming back to the organizational
design essence, and use “Yuanyang Array” which
we borrowed from the ancient military tactics.

On one hand, to clearly define the position
of each line of function, setting challenging
goals, continuing to consciously develop in a
disciplinary manner true experts of the industry.
During the year, we sequentially built urban fund
management teams and urban parking business
expansion professional teams, tidying up and
amalgamating park region business professional
teams and adjusting investment professional
teams.

On the other hand, many results orientated
virtual project-based organization emerged.
The Company used daily communications
mechanisms, information sharing mechanisms,
collaborative expansion mechanisms, authorizing
decision-making mechanisms, internal accounting
mechanisms and benefits sharing mechanisms,
to effectively promote the achievement of the
projects.
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During the year, we achieved certain results
in optimizing the organization. However, we
still have a long way to go to form a flat and
professional networked organization. We hope
to continue to keep an open and embracing
attitude, to take an active role, remove any
self-limitations, and integrate small teams and
individuals into the synergy of the greater
organization, to achieve mutual movement and
common growth.

Creating an Excellent Business Development
Platform

An excellent team is the guarantee of business success.
We strive to create a successful business platform around
the goal of “business achievements, obtaining rewards,
sustainable growth”.

(1)  Attracting Superior Workmates into the Team

A superior team overcomes all things. The
Company firmly establishes business partnership
teams. We are committed to have employees
who want to get things done, who are capable of
doing things, dare to do things, and can deliver
on things to join our journey. In the past year, the
Company’s team continued to develop, attracting
a significant amount of industry elites. Having
them onboard, makes our team stronger, taking
our abilities to a higher level, and here | would
like to introduce three of them.

Mr. Wang Zhijian, an investment banker who has
strategic thinking ability, once held important
positions such as the deputy general manager
of CITIC M&A Fund, the managing director of
CITIC Securities Investment Bank, the head of
CITIC Securities Strategic Planning Department,
etc. Since 2011, he was the external expert
member of Jingxi Venture Investment Committee
and has accompanied the growth of the team.
In 2019, he officially joined the Company as the
Company’s Chief Investment Officer and has been
leading the equity investment sector. Under his
leadership, the Company will be more fruitful in
the investment work.
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Mr. Liu Shuyi, an architect with sentiment, had
worked in well-known companies such as China
Vanke Co.,Ltd. for 15 years, in jobs related to
product design and management, and was in
charge of product management of many large-
scale multi-complexes, office buildings, residential
projects. He joined the Company as the Company’
s Chief Product Officer in 2019. During the year,
he worked diligently, in building a product design
and cost control system, making our parking
complexes and urban renewal projects more
efficient and scientific in design and constructions
processes.

Ms. Zhang Yi is a legendary operation expert.
In the 1990s, she quit the stable job offered
by a university, which symbolized “bread and
butter”, and began as a trainee assistant at
KFC stores, then worked until she took up the
position of YumChina's operation optimization
senior manager. In 2019, she joined the Company
and currently works as the director of operation
quality and efficiency improvement. | believe that
under her leadership, the operation team will
be improving the quality and efficiency of the
standardization of all the parking lots.

Simultaneously, | also want to introduce to
everyone an excellent team. In 2019, Ji Weizheng
built a team called “V-Park” with 10 people,
which was the first leading edge innovation
of Company’s parking business. In this team,
Ji Weizheng was equipped with 20-year work
experience in the property management industry
along with Gao Xuan, Fan Yiran, and Chen
Mingxin, all of whom were equipped with more
than 10 years of immersive market experience,
and Wang Xin with more than 10 years of
experience working with the government. In
addition, engineering director Feng Shuo, the
head of design Hou Fuxin, head of equipment
Huang Lei, head of operation Yang Lin, head
of client service Peng Jianfei, and the head of
efficiency Yao Xin, together formed a specially
capable “Yuanyang Array” team. With the
support of all the members working hard
together, after half a year, the team acquired and
has successfully operated over 5,000 high-quality
parking spaces.
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In recruiting new employees, education is not
the factor that matters the most, we endeavor to
recruit the most suitable young persons into the
Company, gradually building a talent pool, and
with young co-workers bringing fresh energy to
the Company. We put emphasis on the ability for
execution, and based on previous experience, we
invite numerous amounts of veterans to join the
Company, making our talent team more capable
of execution and stronger in spirit.

Making Performance Management and
Incentive Schemes Solid

Excellent talented people need to have excellent
effective performance management and
incentive schemes, which is an inner logic to
connect organizational targets with individual
performance results.

The Company helps the team and individuals set
challenging targets, and assessment results are
used for determining bonuses, salary adjustments,
job promotions, optimization and elimination,
letting each team and individual of the whole
Company to have order and effectiveness in the

performance cycle.

We are also trying creative application by
using KPlI + OKR approach to performance
management, ensuring top-down targets
breakdowns and groundings, at the same time,
achieving bottom-up innovative goals. This set
of method of organizational governance ensures
that the overall business does not deviate from
the target and at the same time takes account
of the vitality of innovation from a grass-roots
level, continuously building a career basis for
supporting everyone and for their personal

success.
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(3) Creating Talent Growth Opportunities

In terms of growth of talents, we believe
management must be selected amongst grass-
roots employees. The key to creating talent
growth opportunities is to plan and provide
them with responsibilities and positions with
room for growth. Prioritizing internal staffing
for promotions and work has always been a key
feature of the Company.

Without real experience, theory cannot be
understood, and without the basis of theory,
challenges cannot be mastered. It requires theory,
training and battlefield experience to grow talent.
Hence, we are proactively exploring in the fields
such as e-learning, trainee management, high-
potential employees training, leadership training,
professional skillset training, and external industry
expertise sharing. In 2019, we implemented the
Talent Development Camp Project that was held
for two weeks in Hong Kong and received high
recommendations from 20 management level
employees.

In the future we will combine “point, lines and
planes”, continuing to build systematic talent
growth schemes. A comprehensive career ranking
system, family tree of professional growth,
training system based on talent pool and backup
talent reserves, standardizing design of drawing
capable professionals, etc. are the key focuses in
the talent creation plans.

Creating Common Corporate Values

Building of corporate values which contributes to
corporation’s unity, is as important as the construction
of the organizational system as mentioned above. In the
2018 Chairman’s Statement, | once shared thoughts on
the Company’s values, mission and vision. Consequently,
in 2019, the Company drew lessons from practices of
leading companies, worked around promoting the core
values and has built its corporate soft competitiveness.
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After six rounds of in-depth research and getting a
broad range of opinions, nine values were finally formed
around the three dimensions of system, innovation and
loyalty, they are, customer first, team work, teaching and
learning, quality superiority, outcome oriented, passion,
open and inclusive, embracing change, loyalty and
dedication. Frankly speaking, many of the nine values
mentioned above are adoptions from values of excellent
corporations, but it must be kept by the Company at this
current stage. Specifically, towards each area, we follow
the principle of simplicity, to form particular, progressive
operative standards one by one.

The Company’s values focus on customer service,
developing employees, returns on shareholders and
giving back to the society, we establish the directional
values of what we do and a code of conduct. | hope
the employees can follow a common value orientation
and the code of conduct, to work easily, purely and
happily together. | look forward to in the near future the
values can reach a high level of understanding within
the Company and be taken into practice, from a passive
advocacy, training and evaluation to the employees
taking initiative to passing on the cultural heritage.

Looking back over the past year, under the joint efforts
of all the employees, we have felt with joy that the
Company is, as the employee’s business community,
generous, steady and agile, with still much room for
growth. We need to put in more efforts in the aspects
of alignment of desires from top to bottom of the
organization, operation with order, inspiring innovation,
elevating energy, and collaboration efficiency.

OUTLOOK

Each year at this moment, on behalf of the Company’s
board of directors, | review the work of the past year, remind
myself of the starting point, and feel grateful to the past.
The Company as one of the first red-chip stock listed in Hong
Kong, has created magnificence, and also experienced highs
and lows, in accompaniment with the pulse of the Chinese
economy, reflecting the flow of the times. After the financial
crisis in 2008, the huge loss continued for many years and it
almost caused the Company to delist with a market value of
less than HK$1.8 billion. With a responsible attitude towards
all investors, Shougang Group, a major shareholder, helped
to divest and undertake bad assets, with full support to the
business team to undertake and unveil the strategic change and
value reconstruction.
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In the past three years, we have been carrying weight on our
shoulders. | started to lead the team forward from the age of
37, every time | think back on holding a PowerPoint report to
the investors, and the moments of searching for investment,
the hardships of the past are brought back vividly into sight.
The sudden appearance of the epidemic pandemic has created
obstacles to ordinary life of people and the social economic
developments. Trade suspensions and industries closures will
cause a fair amount of businesses to have debt issues. The
epidemic situation also caused major shifts to the Company’
s development, the parking revenue in February and March,
2020, had a sharp decline, and there is a surmount of pressure
for the new financial year's performance. The massive crisis
has however also brought forth great opportunities. We have
confidence in the further expansion of the business, to advance
in cost control and technology upgrade, and in the Company’s
tenth anniversary year of strategic transformation, to endeavor
to expand the scale of managed parking spaces to exceed
1 million, and urban renewal asset management to double
to RMB85 billion, and to receive recognition by clients and
investors in the market, so that the Company can be included
in the Hang Seng Comprehensive Large-Cap Index. Knowing
is easy, doing is hard, the team can only give all its heart and
strength, to deliver according to their words, to put vision to
action, seeing trust as a driver, fulfilling promises with results,
and hence create greater value for investors through excellent
operation and management.

The great era has given us a historical opportunity, the breadth
of the market is breeding a great company and an advanced
team is accruing strength for breakthroughs. We have an ample
supply of resources, with time, positioning and human resource
conditions in our favor, and with high spirits, | hope we can
make full use of our talented ability to cope well with changes,
as well as staying down to earth, together heading towards
a common vision, staying updated and lastly working hard to
prove it all!
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

COMPANY OVERVIEW

Since 2018, the Group has shifted its business focus to the car
parking assets operation and management business and urban
renewal-oriented fund management business, and gradually
reduced the volume of iron ore trading business. In 2019,
the Group further reduced the scale of its iron ore trading
business and transferred the iron ore offtake agreement with
Mount Gibson Iron Limited to Newton Resources Limited at the
consideration of HK$150 million on 31 May 2019. After then,
the Group had ceased its iron ore trading and completed its
business restructuring.

During the year, the Group recorded growth in its operating
results. Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the
year amounted to HK$443 million, representing an increase
of 25.5% compared to last year. Having the rapid growth of
the number of car parking spaces managed by the Group,
the revenue scale from car parking business has expanded
rapidly. The urban renewal-oriented fund management business
recorded an increase of RMB14,875 million and an accumulated
management scale of RMB42,904 million.

During the year, the Group continued to obtain great support
from new and existing strategic investors. The Company
completed two rounds of financing activities in 2019, and
introduced Soteria Financial Investment Company Limited
("Hopu Investment”), Red Avenue Investment Group Limited
("Red Avenue”) and Matrix Partners China V Hong Kong
Limited (“Matrix Partners”) as strategic shareholders in
March, raising a total of approximately HK$846 million. The
Company also introduced JD Fountain Technology (Hong
Kong) Limited (“JD Fountain”) as strategic shareholder in
November, raising approximately HK$450 million. In 2020,
the Company obtained additional capital contribution from its
existing shareholders Shougang Holding (Hong Kong) Limited
(“Shougang Holding”), ORIX Corporation and its subsidiaries,
NWS Holdings Limited (“NWS Holdings"”) and its subsidiaries
and Matrix Partners, raising a total of approximately HK$1,745
million. The above have raised a total of HK$3,041 million.
With the support from its investors, the Company had a
substantial cash reserves, laying a solid foundation for its
business development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEREWLED

PERFORMANCE REVIEW EENE
For the year
ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALEE
2019 2018
HKS$ Million HKS$ Million
EBEHETT B H & T
(Restated)
(xx&E5)
Results of the continuing operations FEREEK 2 X£E
Profit attributable to the owners of the BEBERAREERZ
Company before share of results of RNQEVHEE A FEAE & F
associates 146 34
Share of results of associates B(hEE N R 2 EE 296 275
Results of the discontinued operation ERIEREEL 2 EE 1 44
Profit attributable to the owners KABHEA AEAL R F
of the Company 443 353
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEmAED

Key Performance Indicators BRRAER
For the year
ended 31 December
BZE12A3MHLEE
2019 2018
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
EBEHE T BT
(Restated)
(s E5)
Revenue =3 396 177
Gross profit margin EH =X 51.1% 61.3%
Profit attributable to the owners of the NN FVHEB A FEAE & F
Company
Results of the continuing operations REREXEB XA 442 309
Results of the discontinued operation B IEREE R ¥EE 1 44
443 353
Earnings per share* SR BEN*
Results of the continuing operations RELREEB XE 8.31 7.67
Results of the discontinued operation ERIEEEER ¥ E 0.02 1.10
8.33 8.77
* Adjusted pursuant to the share consolidation in March 2020 H20204E3 AR 15 A GETT 1B 2 A8
As at 31 December
®12H31H
2019 2018
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
EBEEET JBME & T
Total assets BEE 10,997 9,430
Net assets FEE 9,823 8,995
Bank balances and cash RITHEB IR S 3,057 3,034
Wealth management products — current BUER-TE 527 106
Sum of loan BN 457 103
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEREWLED

The Group's profit attributable to owners of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2019 was HK$443 million as
compared to the profit of HK$353 million for last year. The
Group's continuing operations recorded revenue of HK$396
million, representing an increase of 124% over last year. The
earnings per share (after the effect of the Share Consolidation)
of continuing operations and discontinued operation for the
year were HK$8.31 cents (2018: HK$7.67 cents) and HK$0.02
cent (2018: HK$1.10 cents) respectively.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Year ended 31 December 2019 compared to the year ended 31
December 2018.

Revenue and Cost of Sales

With the rapid expansion of the car parking assets operation
and management business and urban renewal-oriented fund
management business, the Group’s continuing operations
recorded significant increase in revenue and cost of sales.

The Group’'s continuing operations recorded revenue of
HK$396 million for this year, representing an increase of 124%
when comparing to HK$177 million for last year. The Group's
continuing operations recorded cost of sales of HK$194
million for the year, representing an increase of 185% when
comparing to HK$68 million for last year.

Gross profit for the year of continuing operations was HK$202
million, representing an increase of 87% when comparing
to HK$108 million for last year. The gross profit margin was
51.1%, representing a decrease of 10.2% when comparing
to 61.3% for last year, which was mainly attributable to the
stabilisation of the gross profit margin as a result of significant
growth in the business size of the car parking assets operation
and management business.

Earnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and
Amortisation (EBITDA)

For the year under review, earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation, amortisation, changes in fair value of commodity
contracts, provision for impairment losses, gain on bargain
purchase and loss on disposal of a subsidiary for continuing
operations of the Group was HK$474 million (2018: HK$347
million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Finance costs

During the year, finance costs of continuing operations
amounted to HK$27.36 million, representing an increase of
380% over the last year. The increase in finance costs was
primarily due to two reasons. Firstly, the increase in finance
costs was caused by the fact that the Group adopted HKFRS 16
Leases during the year. Secondly, the increase in finance costs
was caused by combined bank loan deriving from the Group’s
capital increase to acquire a joint venture, Beijing Shouzhong
Car Parking Management Company Limited (“Shouzhong
Parking”) (It REFFEEEFRAA) .

Share of results of associates

Shougang Fushan Resources Group Limited (“Shougang
Resources”)

In this year, we have shared a profit of HK$290 million from
Shougang Resources, representing an increase of 4% as
compared with the profit of HK$278 million for last year.

Shougang Concord Century Holdings Limited (“Shougang
Century”)

In this year, we have shared a profit of HK$5 million from
Shougang Century, whereas for last year, the share of loss from
Shougang Century was HK$3 million.

For the purpose of strategic focus, the Company entered into
the sale and purchase agreement with Shougang Holding on 21
November 2018, pursuant to which the Company conditionally
agreed to dispose and Shougang Holding conditionally agreed
to purchase the 35.71% equity interest in Shougang Century.
The disposal was completed on 9 April 2019 and the Group
retained no interest in Shougang Century thereafter. As a result
of the disposal of the equity interests, the Group recognised a
loss of approximately HK$125 million during the year.

Taxation

The subsidiaries of the Group engaged in car parking assets
operation and management business and fund management
business in mainland China are subject to China enterprise
income tax at the tax rate of 25%. Provision for such tax
amounting to approximately HK$25 million was made for the
year, while provision of approximately HK$10 million was made
for last year. Apart from this, the Group had reversed provision
for capital gain tax of approximately HK$148 million during the
year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEmAED

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS ¥ oE

Summary of net profit/(loss) contribution to the Group by &2 %  ARHEAEENFEF, (FE)E

operation/entity: BAEEE -

Attributable

For the year ended

Operation/Entity interest 31 December
ik AN R HZ12A31ALEE
2019 2018
HKS$ Million HKS$ Million
BEEET B EET
(Restated)
(&%)
Continuing operations FEREEB
1. Car parking asset operation and 1. FEEEREERE
management business % 100% (43) (23)
2. Urban renewal-oriented fund 2. UBmEHAAEMN
management business ECEBER 100% 195 25
Sub-total INE 152 2
3. Share of results of associates 3. BEBE AR EE
Shougang Resources EEEY 27.61% 290 278
Shougang Century BREE 35.71% 5 3)
Others Hh 1 -
Sub-total N+ 296 275
4. Others 4, Htt
Disposal of the equity interest of REBREERE
Shougang Century (125) -
Australian tax recoverable SR (2] 48 148 -
Corporate and others NEBE & KEAM (29) 32
Sub-total et (6) 32
Continuing operations BELEEY 442 309
Discontinued operation ERIEEEET 1 44
Profit attributable to owners EATEEAEMLEF
of the Company 443 353
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Car Parking Assets Operation and Management
Business

The Group has signed contracts about dozens of projects in
Beijing, Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei area (outside Beijing), Yangtze
River Delta region and Greater Bay Area, which greatly
expanded the project layout, increased its asset scale and
obtained more than 70,000 units parking space. In addition
to the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei area (outside Beijing), the Group
continued to enhance cooperation with the government, and
has obtained the operating rights of several parking lots as well
as the construction and management projects of the parking
lots. In the Yangtze River Delta region, we have also been
making our footprint in its major economic cities, including the
parking building in Shanghai Honggiao Airport, the long-hour
parking building in Shanghai Pudong International Airport and
the franchise project of public parking lot of Qinhuai District in
Nanjing. In the Greater Bay Area, the Group joined hands with
Vanke Service Co., Ltd (a major real estate company) to develop
a great number of residential and commercial car parking assets
in Guangzhou and Foshan. The business segment recorded
a revenue of approximately HK$177 million for the year,

representing an increase of 185% compared to last year.

During the year, the Group continued to strengthen its efforts
in the research and development of car parking assets, speed
up the pace of investment and increase its investments,
gradually build up a car parking asset operation with steady
cash flow and income. In addition, the Group is committed
to providing users with better service experience and creating
great asset income for its shareholders through product
upgrade, management empowerment and value-added

services.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Through studying and analysing its existing car parking assets,
the Group has classified the car parking assets held by it into
three major product lines, namely the municipal facilities car
parking product segment, commercial car parking product
segment and roadside car parking product segment.

As to the municipal facilities car parking product segment,
the Group continued to strengthen its leading advantages.
In addition to the parking buildings in Beijing Daxing
International Airport (“Daxing Airport”), Shanghai Honggiao
Airport and Guiyang Longdongbao International Airport, the
Group also successfully entered into agreements with Daxing
Airport in respect of the operating rights of taxi parking
lots in Daxing Airport in June 2019, obtained the 15-year
operating rights of No.1 parking lot, No.2 parking building,
GTC parking building in Terminal 3 and No.5 parking lot in
Beijing Capital International Airport through bidding in July
2019, and obtained the one-year operation and management
rights of the long-hour parking building in Shanghai Pudong
International Airport through bidding in September 2019. The
continuous expansion of the aforesaid airport parking business
demonstrated the Group’s commitment to continue to expand
its business presence in the car parking business of large-
scale transportation hubs and also signified that the Group
had secured market recognition in the airport parking building
operation area.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In late September 2019, the highly-anticipated Daxing Airport
was put into operation. With its marvelous space design
featuring the integration of traditional and modern architecture
concepts, comprehensive and intelligent service facilities and
convenient transportation network, during the National Day
holiday sightseeing visitors outnumbered the passengers,
bringing additionally high traffic flow to the parking buildings
of the airport, and further enhancing the Company's brand
recognition and bringing along significant room for the
scenario application of municipal facility parking products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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For the commercial parking product segment, the Group
leveraged on the computing platform operated by JD iCity
(REHMsEFZ) to jointly develop the S-PARK Online
Network Information Center (SONIC) platform which is featured
with functions covering parking management, business
innovation, facility management and Al + big data, so as to
collect information on parking lots, set up information middle
office, formulate information standards and establish parking
management information system. In addition, with the account
system, membership system and bonus points system, we were
able to produce accurate profiles of the users and parking
lots and empowered parking management with Al + big data.
Coupled with the application of the “finance + advertisement
+ insurance + automotive aftermarket” operation mode, we
made innovations to diversify income stream and provided
integrated intelligent parking solutions.

For the roadside parking product segment, the Group won the
biddings for the roadside parking projects of Daxing District
and Yanqging District in Beijing. In addition to the Beijing-
Tianjin-Hebei area (outside Beijing), the Group obtained the 30-
year operating rights of approximately over 13,000 roadside
parking spots in all the major urban areas in Baoding City,
Hebei Province.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Urban Renewal-oriented Fund Management
Business

In 2019, urban renewal-oriented fund management business
witnessed an exponential growth, and the scale of new fund
management business was RMB14.875 billion. The significant
increase in fund management scale brought substantial
management fee income. The business segment recorded
revenue of HK$181 million and net profit of HK$195 million for
the whole year of 2019.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has managed or been
responsible for investing into or operating 25 funds in total,
with a total management scale of approximately RMB42.904
billion (excluding liquidated withdrawn funds). The investors of
the currently managed funds include the National Council for
Social Security Fund (“NSSF”), Royal Golden Eagle, Agricultural
Bank of China, China Merchants Bank, China Life Insurance and
other large financial funds, and fund investment institutions
of the provincial and municipal governments such as Beijing,
Chengdu, Hebei, Jilin, Sichuan and Heilongjiang.

With the meticulous management of the underlying assets of
the funds by the team, more investors subscribed the funds
managed by the Group. Especially in the first half of 2019, the
Group successfully introduced NSSF as the sole limited partner
which paid the largest contribution, establishing the fund with
scale of RMB6 billion, being the first investment made by NSSF
in the field of urban renewal. The NSSF attached importance to
the sustainability and stability of the investment and adhered to
the principle of “long-term investment, value investment and
responsible investment”, which is highly compatible with the
Group’s urban renewal business on income stability, risk level
and investment term, and social effect. Introducing the NSSF to
the strategic investment of the funds managed by the Group
has symbolic significance.

The Group adopts the real estate financial model of “funds
+ bases + industries” to participate in the development,
management, operation, and exit of industrial entities.
Controlling the shareholding or investing in the enterprises in
the old industrial zone will lead the concentration of high-end
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEmAE D i

industries. Beijing Shoujing Xiangying Enterprise Management
Co., Ltd., a company cofounded by the Company's wholly
owned subsidiary Jingji Tiancheng (Beijing) Fund Management
Co., Ltd. (REXK (1tR)EESEHEBR AR ) and a subsidiary
of Royal Golden Eagle in October 2019, won the bidding of the
land use rights of several parcels of land at the southeast area
of New Shougang High-end Industry Comprehensive Service
Park (“Shougang Park”, T E#l s mEZZ A RKE) at
the end of 2019 with a planned gross area of approximately
240,000 sg.m., which is aimed to be developed into a quality
commercial office complex. The Shouao Industrial Park (& & &
&R ) project jointly launched by the Company and Tishman
Speyer (a renowned real estate developer) has commenced
construction and is scheduled to be put into operation in May
2021. It is expected to become the first large-scale commercial
complex at Shougang Park to serve the 2022 Beijing Winter
Olympic Games and the citizen at the surrounding areas.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As the fund manager, the Group also usually serves as the
general partner. As per the industry practice of private fund,
the general partner shall invest in a minority stake of the funds
under its management so as to share its returns on investment
and excess returns. As the funds gradually benefit and exit from
the invested projects, the Group expects to gain impressive
investment return and excess return.

With the steady growth in the number and size of funds under
management, the Group expects that in the foreseeable future,
the management fee income and return on investment from the
provision of private fund management services is going to achieve
a continuous and rapid growth.

PERFORMANCE OF ASSOCIATES
Shougang Resources
Exploration and sale of coking coal

Shougang Resources is a 27.61% owned associate of the
Group listed in Hong Kong and is a major hard coking coal
producer in China. Shougang Resources currently operates
three premium coal mines in Shanxi province, the PRC, namely
Xingwu Coal Mine, Zhaiyadi Coal Mine and Jinjiazhuang Coal
Mine. Shougang Resources sold approximately 0.12 million
tonnes of raw coking coal and 2.7 million tonnes of clean
coking coal in the current year, with revenue of HK$3.87
billion, an increase of 5% compared with last year. The raw
coking coal price per ton was RMB864 (inclusive of value added
tax, "VAT"), while the clean coking coal price per ton was
RMB1,396 (inclusive of VAT), up by 10% and down by 4%
respectively over last year. The profit attributable to owners of
Shougang Resources for the current year was HK$1.14 billion,
compared with a profit of HK$1.1 billion for the last year.
The profit of the Group's share of Shougang Resources in the
current year was HK$290 million, which reflects the stable
development of Shougang Resources business when compared
with last year's share of profit of HK$278 million.
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The strong financial position of Shougang Resources with
nearly zero gearing ratio and bank balances of HK$4.8 billion
enables it to improve its value when appropriate investment
opportunities arise.

Customers are confident of the high-quality products of
Shougang Resources which are reputed as panda coal.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the aggregate sales of
continuing operations attributable to the Group's five largest
customers represented approximately 38.2% (2018: 44.3%)
of the Group's total sales of continuing operations, of which
the sales attributable to the largest customer accounted for
approximately 17% (2018: 19%) of the Group's total sales of
continuing operations.

For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December
2018, the aggregate purchases of continuing operations
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers combined were
less than 30% of the Group's total purchases of continuing
operations, the purchases attributable to the Group’s largest
supplier were less than 10% of the Group’s total purchases of
continuing operations.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, none of the Directors,
their close associates or any shareholder of the Company
(which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owns more than
5% of the issued shares of the Company) had any beneficial
interest in these major customers and suppliers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Since 2018, the Group focus on the car parking assets
operation and management and urban renewal-oriented fund
management business.

In most of the cases, the Group acts as the general partner
of funds or partnerships. According to relevant agreements, if
the realised amount of the assets of the fund or partnership
is insufficient to cover their respective liabilities, the general
partner of the fund or partnership shall bear unlimited liabilities
of the fund or partnership. In China, it is an industry practice
that a general partner bears unlimited liabilities of the fund
or partnership under its management in case of a net deficit
position of the fund or partnership.

The Group is also engaged in mining and sale of hard coking
coal in China by holding interests in the Hong Kong listed
associate, Shougang Resources. As a vital raw material for
steel refining, the sale of coking coal of Shougang Resources
has close connection with the steel demand. Weak demand on
steel will directly dampen the results of Shougang Resources.
With significant proportion of investments in these associates,
the results of which will to a certain extent affect the overall
performance of the Group.

Save for the abovementioned risks and uncertainties, the
analysis on market risk (including cash flow and fair value
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk of the Group are detailed in the note related
to financial instruments to the financial statements.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Details of the Group's compliance with laws and regulations are
disclosed in the environmental, social and governance report on
pages 141 to 231 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

Details of the Group’s environmental policy and performance
are disclosed in the environmental, social and governance

report on pages 141 to 231 of this annual report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEmAED

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND RBES MBEERRMETH
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The Group aims to diversify its funding sources through ANEEBMNBEBBITNELATEDMEEL R
utilisation of both banking and capital markets. To the extent E-BEZHEZAIER A EK B RRER
possible, financing is arranged to match business characteristics Z155 °

and cash flows.

1.  Bank Balances, Cash and Loans 1. WRITEH RERER
The bank balances and cash, loans and debt equity ratio AEBMP2019F 128310 - #2018
of the Group as at 31 December 2019 as compared to FI2ANBMRTERRES BEXR
31 December 2018 are summarised below: BEERLEHENT
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
20194 20184
12A31H 12H31H
HKS$ Million HKS$ Million

EEEET EEEHET

Bank balances and cash RITEHREIR S 3,057 3,034
Wealth management products I8 B oo

— current — B 527 106
Bank loan RITE R 457 -
Loans from an associate KE—BERARZER

— Financial lease loan —BMEHEER - 103
Sum of loan B 457 103
Equity attributable to the owners RRARHER A ER

of the Company 9,684 8,966
Debt equity ratio* BEER R 5% 1%
* Debt equity ratio = Total borrowings/Equity attributable to * BEEXRIFE=MENTREFEFA

the owners of the Company #Em
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Currency Risk, Interest Rate Risk and Other
Market Risk

The Company formulates financial risk policies under
the directives of the Board, managing financial risk,
foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and trading
counterparties’ credit risk. Derivative financial
instruments are mainly used to hedge the business
operation risks. We also target to ensure that adequate

financial resources are available for business growth.

The Group conducts its businesses mainly in Hong Kong
and the Mainland China,
exchange fluctuation risks of HK dollars, US dollars

it is subject to the foreign

and Renminbi. To minimise currency exposure, foreign
currency assets are usually financed in the same currency
as the asset or cash flow from it through borrowings.

The Group is mainly exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank balances and
borrowings. As at 31 December 2019, if interest rates
on bank balance and borrowings had been 25 points
higher/lower with all other variables held constant,
pre-tax profit of the Group would have been HK$7.82
million (2018: HK$7.85 million) higher/lower.

Financing Activities

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's balance of term
loan financing from bank was HK$457 million, which
was the combined loan balance for the purpose of
capital contribution for merging and acquiring its joint
venture, Shouzhong Parking. The balance was the bank
loan conducted for investing in the 20 years of operation
rights of the parking building of the new airport in
Beijing.

2.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEREWLED

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM SUBSCRIPTION OF
NEW SHARES

On 19 September 2018, the Company completed the
subscription of a total of 4,903,741,731 new shares by Jingxi
Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shougang
Fund, Rocket Parade Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of NWS Holdings and ORIX Asia Capital Limited (“ORIX
Asia”), with net proceeds of approximately HK$1,219 million
(the "2018 Subscription”). Out of the net proceeds, (i)
approximately HK$100 million was used to set up a fund to
invest in Shougang Park; (ii) approximately HK$90 million was
for the acquisition and capital increase of Shouzhong Parking
to increase our competitiveness in airport parking building
business; (iii) approximately HK$140 million used to repay the
Group’s bank loans; and (iv) approximately HK$680 million
used for the capital increase of Shouzhong Investment and
replenish general working capital in order to accelerate the
expansion of car parking assets operation and management
business. The proceeds from the 2018 Subscription has been
substantially utilised in 2019 according to the proposed usage
as set out in the announcement of the Company dated 27
August 2018. The remaining sum of HK$210 million has
been used to pay for the equity interest of Beijing West and
contribute the shared fund amount of Shougang Park in 2019.

On 9 April 2019, the Company completed the subscription
of a total of 3,384,043,134 new shares subscribed by Hopu
Investment, Red Avenue and Matrix Partners’s designated
persons with the net proceeds of approximately HK$850
million. As at 31 December 2019, approximately HK$503
million was used to pay part of the Group’'s commitment
contribution and lease deposits and expenses for its
management and operations of car parking assets. As at the
date of this report, the Company has not utilised the remaining
net proceeds and intends to apply the remaining net proceeds
as disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 19
March 2019. The remaining proceeds will be fully applied in
2022.

REHRO 2EESERAER

2018 9A19H A Q Rl T K BB R A IE IR
ERAG (H#HES 2E2%E F2AF)  Rocket
Parade Limited (¥1BIZEBE 22 &K B R 7))
MBATEMNERBRAE ([BAOLIEM])
RS 4,903,741, 731 F ey PR3 KA
SFRRX)ERE12.1918T ([2018RBHEE]) - H
FoOEBIETARRYESRERNEHE
& (KB IETANKBIIEE TP IE
B MG R RIS E B EE N I (i)
HBEEIAETAREBRAEE ZRITE RN
(VBB SETANIEEERIREEARAR
E—REEES UNREBREEEELEE
BB 2018RBEFIEMENIBZN2019FE
RIF2018F 8 A27TH RS 2 EZZ AR AN BH
EER- R BE2 1B TE S INBERMR2019
FRARINEE AR ERERRAMEHER
BESMHERE-

MR2019F4H9H AR RITEK B EHKK
E WERKBAKMNEEALTRES K
3,384,043,1348 5% 10 - FTISHRIBF A 2B
B8 5B I - 20194128318 A 495.03
EATELEARINEI» AEEREFEEE
MEBERER AR LENRHERS KA
XoHEARERR ARG MK FGE
BEEZAIBR - ARABREBRGBRELETH
PR FIE AN R RN 2019F3 8198 R & E
B 75 =\ & A P13 5K TE - FIBRFT 1S sk A5 702022
FEHBEH-
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 11 December 2019, the Company completed the
subscription of 1,500,000,000 new shares by JD Fountain
with net proceeds of approximately HK$450 million (“JD
Subscription”). The Company intends to use (1) approximately
60% of the proceeds to invest in the Group’s car parking
business, part of which will be used for the Group's existing
capital injection commitment, rental deposit and construction
expenditure, while the remaining balances will be used for
the development of new car parking assets, especially in
transportation hubs, which the Group hopes will further expand
its leading advantage in this segment; (2) approximately 25%
of the proceeds to invest in the Group’s fund management
business; and (3) the remaining 15% of the proceeds as general
working capital and to seize business opportunities. As at the
date of this report, the Company has not utilised any of the
proceeds from the JD Subscription and intends to apply such
proceeds as disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 29 November 2019. The proceeds will be fully applied by
2022.

On 17 January 2020, the Company completed the subscription
of 93,333,333 new shares (“Shougang Subscription”) by
Shougang Holding and the subscription of the convertible
bonds (“CB Subscription”) with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$1,231,685,000 by Mountain Tai Peak |
Investment Limited (being ORIX Asia’s designated person)
("Mountain Tai Peak”), Matrix Partners V, L.P. and Matrix
Partners V-A, L.P., with total net proceeds of approximately
HK$1,256 million. The Company intends to use (1)
approximately HK$754 million, or 60% of the net proceeds, to
invest in the Group’s car parking business, part of which will
be used for the Group’s existing capital injection commitment,
rental deposit and construction expenditure, while the
remaining balances will be used for the development of new
car parking assets, especially in transportation hubs, which
the Group hopes will further expand its leading advantage in
this segment; (2) approximately HK$314 million, or 25% of
the net proceeds, to invest in the Group’s fund management
business; and (3) approximately HK$188 million, or 15% of the
net proceeds, as general working capital and to seize business
opportunities. As at the date of this report, the Company
has not utilised any of the proceeds from the Shougang
Subscription and CB Subscription and intends to apply such
proceeds as disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 29 November 2019. The proceeds will be fully applied by
2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEREWLED

On 21 February 2020, the Company completed the subscription
of 1,500,000,000 new shares (“FTLife Subscription”) by
FTLife Insurance Company Limited (“FTLife Insurance”) (an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of NWS Holdings) with net
proceeds of approximately HK$450 million. The Company
intends to use (1) approximately HK$270 million, or 60% of the
net proceeds, to invest in the Group's car parking business, part
of which will be used for the Group's existing capital injection
commitment, rental deposit and construction expenditure,
while the remaining balances will be used for the development
of new car parking assets, especially in transportation hubs,
which the Group hopes will further expand its leading
advantage in this segment; (2) approximately HK$110 million,
or 25% of the net proceeds, to invest in the Group’s fund
management business; and (3) approximately HK$70 million,
or 15% of the net proceeds, as general working capital and to
seize business opportunities. As at the date of this report, the
Company has not utilised any of the proceeds from the FTLife
Subscription and intends to apply such proceeds as disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 14 February 2020.
The proceeds will be fully applied by 2023.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS & DISPOSALS

There was no material acquisitions and disposals by the Group
during the year, except the disposal of Shougang Century
mentioned above.

EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIODS

(@) Subscription of new shares — Shougang
Holding

On 29 November 2019, the Company entered into
a connected subscription agreement with Shougang
Holding (“Connected Subscription Agreement”)
pursuant to which Shougang Holding has conditionally
agreed to subscribe, and the Company has conditionally
agreed to allot and issue, an aggregate of 93,333,333
subscription shares at a subscription price of HK$0.3 per
subscription share.

2020F2A218 AR A=K HFTLife
Insurance Company Limited ([FTLife
Insurance | ) FAlEEE cEE2EHB AR
R H%51,500,000,0000% 3 A% 9 ([FTLifeRR B =
B/ FRREFENARBEASETL - AAR]
BB RIBR2023F A BB AR B
2. 71870 (RDPTIS B F R 260% ) AR E
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R ES  NEBE BT - SIEAEL
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BRIEFEZ25% ) BARBEAEB 2 ES
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(b)

(c)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 17 January 2020, all conditions of the Connected
Subscription Agreement has been fulfilled and
completion of the issuance of new shares has taken
place on the same date.

Subscription of new shares - FTLife Insurance

On 14 February 2020, the Company entered into a
subscription agreement with FTLife Insurance (“FTLife
Subscription Agreement”) pursuant to which FTLife
Insurance has conditionally agreed to subscribe, and the
Company has conditionally agreed to allot and issue, an
aggregate of 1,500,000,000 subscription shares at the
subscription price of HK$0.3 per subscription share.

On 21 February 2020, all conditions of the FTLife
Subscription Agreement has been fulfilled and
completion of the issuance of new shares has taken
place on the same date.

Convertible bonds

On 29 November 2019, the Company has entered into
convertible bond subscription agreements (the “CB
Subscription Agreements”) with ORIX Asia, Matrix
Partners V, L.P. and Matrix Partners V-A, L.P. (together as
the “CB Subscribers”). Pursuant to the CB Subscription
Agreements, the Company conditionally agreed to issue
and the CB Subscribers conditionally agreed to subscribe
for, the zero coupon convertible bonds (the “CB") in the
principal amount of up to HK$1,231,685,000.

On 17 January 2020, all conditions of the CB
Subscription Agreements have been fulfilled and
completion of the issuance of the CB has taken place on
the same date.

(b)

(9]

EEEwmI D M

20201 8178 B ERE HETE
ZEREIGHCEER  BFRMEITE

RE—HEX-

7288 3 IR 19 — FTLife Insurance

2202062148 - K2 A EFTLife
Insurance®] 32 53 #& #7 3% ([FTLifeR 8
W) &t FTLife Insuranced 1§14
wRERBEMARGE KEHMHREER
& & ¥ 17 & #£1,500,000,0000% 7 & %
1 REBLEBRABBRMGHABKO3T:

R20205%2 A218 - FTLifesR8E 1 3% AT &
ZETEIEHEEER  BFRHETE
E/\\\H_Eirnﬁy,"

CIE: 3¢

M2019% 118298 - RA B EE N+
25 M - Matrix Partners V, L.P.5 Matrix
Partners V-A, LP (T8 A AR &
HFRBADI A RRESRBEHH
(TR EFRBHRE]) - BRETR
BREHFRBEHHE ARAB K E
?éﬁﬁﬁT?ﬁ‘foi%'%E BABGEH
ERBEACHBBATELTHBEYE
1,231,685,0007122%\7?@%;%
([ATRREH]) -
202013178 J R EHRE R
BmZATEKGEREER  BriaRkES
BITERE—BREMK-

BREBRFTCEARR AR 2019F#H 57



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEmAED

(d)

(e)

58

Subsequent to the issue of CB and up to the date of
this report, the Company has received conversion notice
from each of Matrix Partners V, L.P. and Matrix Partners
V-A, L.P. in respect of the exercise of the conversion
rights attached to the CB in the principal amount of
HK$105,693,000 and HK$10,992,000, respectively. As
a result of the conversion, the Company allotted and
issued 352,310,000 and 36,640,000 conversion shares
to Matrix Partners V, L.P. and Matrix Partners V-A, L.P.
respectively on 20 January 2020.

Subsequent to the issue of CB and up to the date
of this report, the Company issued a mandatory
conversion notice to Mountain Tai Peak (being ORIX
Asia’s designated person under relevant CB Subscription
Agreement) to convert the CB in the principal amount of
HK$1,115,000,000 and as a result of the conversion, the
Company allotted and issued 3,716,666,666 conversion
shares to Mountain Tai Peak on 5 February 2020.

Share Consolidation

On 21 February 2020, the Company announced that the
Board proposes to implement the Share Consolidation
on the basis that every five (5) ordinary shares of the
Company be consolidated into one (1) ordinary share of
the Company.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 26
March 2020, the Share Consolidation was approved
by the shareholders of the Company and has become
effective on 30 March 2020. Immediately after the
Share Consolidation, the total number of issued shares
of the Company was adjusted from 34,627,883,902 to
6,925,576,780.

Acquisition of equity interest in Shouzhong
Parking

On 27 March 2020, Beijing Shouxing Zhixing Parking
Management Co., Ltd., (“Shouxing Zhixing”) (dt &
BEITIEHI5EIEAMR D A]) (formerly known as Beijing
Shouxing Zhixing Investment Co., Ltd. (1t &R & B 1T
®EBMAT)), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into an acquisition agreement
with Shougang Fund pursuant to which, subject to
the fulfilment or wavier of the conditions precedent
set out in the acquisition agreement, Shougang Fund
shall sell and Shouxing Zhixing shall acquire 33.136%
equity interest in Shouzhong Parking at a consideration
of RMB94,410,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$105,000,000).

(d)

(e)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(f) Outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019
("COVID-19 outbreak™)

After the COVID-19 outbreak in early 2020, a series
of precautionary and control measures have been
and continued to be implemented across Hong Kong
and the Mainland China. As at the date on which the
consolidated financial statements were authorised for
issue, the Group was not aware of any material adverse
effects on the consolidated financial statements as a
result of the COVID-19 outbreak. The Group will pay
close attention to the development of the COVID-19
outbreak and evaluate its impact on the financial
position and operating results of the Group.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Company issued 4,884,043,134 new shares (before the
effect of the Share Consolidation) during this year.

The issued share capital of the Company was
HK$10,125,972,451 (represented by 28,928,933,903 issued
ordinary shares, before the effect of the Share Consolidation).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group has a total of 372 employees as at 31 December
2019.

The remuneration policies of the Group are to ensure fairness
and competitiveness of total remuneration in order to motivate
and retain current employees as well as to attract potential
ones. Remuneration packages are carefully structured to
take into account local practices under various geographical
locations in which the Group operates.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEmmLE DM

The remuneration packages of employees in Hong Kong
include salary, discretionary bonuses, medical subsidies and
hospitalisation scheme. All of the subsidiaries of the Group
in Hong Kong provide pension schemes to the Hong Kong
employees as part of their staff benefits. The remuneration
packages of employees in the PRC include salary, discretionary
bonuses, medical subsidies and welfare fund contribution as

part of their staff benefits.

PROSPECTS

Over the past year, the Company laid a solid foundation in
capital reserve and market expansion. In 2020, faced with the
market opportunities and challenges, we will stay committed to
pursuing more speedy development of the Car Parking Assets
Operation and Management Business and urban renewal-
oriented fund management business.

The domestic car parking industry in the PRC currently has
serious problems including excessive market dispersion, weak
technology and low management efficiency as well as lack
of leading enterprise in the industry, which represent a huge
space for integration and market expansion. Meanwhile, we
also notice that the industry is gaining higher market attention
and increasing number of investors and large and medium-
sized enterprises have invested in the industry. As the first and
only listed company in China that focuses on the investment
and operation of car parking assets, the Group is committed to
becoming a pioneer and promoter of the car parking industry
by continuing to consolidate and strengthen its existing
advantage as the first-mover and increasing its investments in
the car parking industry. The Group will focus on not only the
domestic market, but also the overseas market. It is expected
that the Group will achieve extremely fast development in
respect of car parking operation in the future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

While creating long-term and stable profits for the Company,
the fund management business also contributed to the
growth of the Company's urban renewal and car parking
business. A unique development model of “funds + bases +
industries” was formed, providing a solid foundation for the
Group’s robust growth in the future. In addition, in view of
the strong fundraising capability and tremendous investors
base (multinational financial institutions and provincial and
municipal government investment fund), it is expected that the
management service income from future equity fund business
and net profit contribution from withdrawal of investment will
continue to rise as the fund size increases.

In order to support the business transformation, the Group
has successively introduced new strategic shareholders, namely
Beijing Shougang Fund Co., Ltd., China International Marine
Containers (Group) Co., Ltd., NWS Holdings and its wholly-
owned subsidiary, ORIX Corporation and its wholly-owned
subsidiary, Hopu Investment, Red Avenue, Matrix Partners, JD
Fountain, Matrix Partners V, L.P. and Matrix Partners V-A, L.P,
which form synergy with the business of the Company. Through
diversified structure of shareholders, the Group seeks longer-
term and broader development for the principal businesses in
the future.

The introduction of strategic shareholders will greatly help the
Company'’s business development, improvement of governance,
and optimisation of risk management. The Group will be more
proactive in seeking projects to expand the existing businesses,
with the aim of supporting the rapid development of the
Group.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhao Tianyang, aged 39, was appointed an Executive
Director and the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the
Company on 6 January 2018 and is also a member and
the chairman of each of the Executive Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company. He holds a Bachelor
degree in science and a Master degree in economics from
Peking University and an Executive Master of Business
Administration degree from Cheung Kong Graduate School
of Business. Mr. Zhao joined Shougang Group Co., Ltd. ( & iff
E£EHAERAAF, “Shougang Group”) in December 2011. He
is a deputy general manager of Shougang Group, a director
of Shougang Holding (Hong Kong) Limited (“Shougang
Holding"”) and, a director and the general manager of Beijing
Shougang Fund Co., Ltd. (It R &I E 2 HRR A7, “Shougang
Fund”) . Both Shougang Holding and Shougang Fund are
wholly-owned subsidiaries of Shougang Group. Each of
Shougang Group, Shougang Holding and Shougang Fund is a
substantial shareholder of the Company within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance. Mr. Zhao
worked in The China Securities Regulatory Commission, Beijing
Municipal Commission of Development and Reform and Peking
University. He has extensive experience in company operation
and management, investment and capital operation.

Mr. Xu Liang, aged 54, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company on 21 May 2018 and is also a member of
the Executive Committee of the Company. He graduated
from Fudan University with a Bachelor degree in Statistics
and obtained a Master degree in Business Administration
from Tsinghua University and is a senior accountant. Mr. Xu
joined the group of Shougang Group in 1988 and held various
senior positions. He is the managing director of Shougang
Holding. Mr. Xu is also an executive director and the chairman
of Shougang Concord Grand (Group) Limited (“Shougang
Grand”), an executive director of Global Digital Creations
Holdings Limited (“GDC"”) and was the managing director
of Shougang Grand (from 22 August 2019 till 18 September
2019) and the chairman of GDC (resigned on 21 July 2018).
Both of Shougang Grand and GDC are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr.
Xu has extensive experience in management.
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Mr. Liang Hengyi, aged 46, was appointed as an Executive
Director and the Managing Director of the Company on 6
January 2018 and is also a member of each of the Executive
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company.
He holds a Master degree in Economics and a Doctor of
Philosophy degree in Management and is a senior economist.
Mr. Liang was the managing director of Shougang Fund. He
also served as the general manager of non-fare business unit of
Beijing Infrastructure Investment Co., Ltd., the general manager
of Beijing Capital Investment Rail Transit Assets Management
Company (It RRRMEXBEEKLLEEARAA]) and the
president of Beijing Urban Underground Space Development
and Construction Co., Ltd. (b R TE=HFAERZRERA
a).

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Li Yinhui, aged 52, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company on 6 January 2018 and is a member
of each of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. He obtained a Bachelor degree in
Arts (History) and a Doctorate degree in World Economy from
Jilin University in 1991 and 2001 respectively, and a Master
degree in Business Administration from Nanjing University
in 1997. Dr. Li completed his Postdoctoral research in China
Centre for International Economic Exchanges in 2016. He
is also a non-executive director and the chairman of CIMC-
TianDa Holdings Company Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange, and a vice-president of China International
Marine Containers (Group) Co., Ltd., a company listed on both
Shenzhen Stock Exchange and the Stock Exchange. Dr. Li has
extensive experience in managing large-scale enterprises.
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Mr. Liu Jingwei, aged 52, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company on 6 January 2018 and is also
a member of the Audit Committee of the Company. He
graduated from the School of Economics of Beijing Forestry
University in 1989 and from Shanghai Advanced Institute
of Finance with a Master degree in 2016. Mr. Liu is a PRC
Certified Public Accountant. He currently serves as a senior
partner of Shinewing Certified Public Accountants and is
an external director of Shougang Group. Mr. Liu is also an
independent non-executive director of China Nonferrous Mining
Corporation Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange,
an independent director of Shanghai Yaohua Pilkington
Glass Group Co., Ltd., a company listed on Shanghai Stock
Exchange, and an independent director of each of Guiyang
Longmaster Information & Technology Co., Ltd. and Beiling
StarNeto Technology Co., Ltd., both are listed on Shenzhen
Stock Exchange. He was an independent director of Jinxi Axle
Company Limited (resigned on 8 March 2017), a company
listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange, and Xuzhou Kerong
Environmental Resources Co., Ltd. (now known as Xiongan
Kerong Environment Co., Ltd.) (resigned on 2 June 2017), a
company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Ho Gilbert Chi Hang, aged 43, was appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company on 21 May 2018 and is
also a member of the Audit Committee of the Company.
He holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree and a Bachelor of
Laws degree from University of Sydney, Australia and was
admitted as a solicitor in New South Wales, Australia and
England and Wales and as a solicitor and barrister in the High
Court of Australia. Mr. Ho is also a fellow member of CPA
Australia. He is a committee member of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference of Shenyang, a standing
committee member of the Youth Federation of Inner Mongolia
and a vice chairman of Inner Mongolia & Hong Kong Youth
Exchange Association. Mr. Ho is an executive director of NWS
Holdings Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company,
a non-executive director of Wai Kee Holdings Limited and
an independent non-executive director of each of Kam Hing
International Holdings Limited, Hailiang International Holdings
Limited and Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited,
all being listed on the Stock Exchange. He was the senior
investment director of New World Development Company
Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company and a
company listed on the Stock Exchange, and an executive
director of New World Strategic Investment Limited. Mr. Ho
was also a partner of an international law firm Fried, Frank,
Harris, Shriver & Jacobson LLP. He was an executive director of
China Creative Digital Entertainment Limited (resigned on 28
June 2017) and an executive director and the chief executive
officer of AID Life Science Holdings Limited (resigned on 1
January 2018), both are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ho
has extensive experience in the area of corporate management,
investments, corporate finance, merger and acquisition
transactions and international brand and retail management.
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Mr. Li Hao, aged 38, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company on 27 September 2018. He holds
a Bachelor degree from Dalian University of Technology
and a Master of Business Administration degree in Finance
from Waseda University, Japan. Mr. LI has been with ORIX
Corporation (“ORIX"”, a substantial shareholder of the
Company) since October 2007. He is currently the operating
officer, deputy head of East Asia Business Headquarters
and managing director of Greater China Group at ORIX, a
diversified financial services company and whose shares are
listed on both Tokyo Stock Exchange and New York Stock
Exchange. Mr. Li also serves as the director and president
of each of ORIX (China) Investment Company Limited and
ORIX Asia Capital Limited, both of which are wholly-owned
subsidiaries of ORIX. He is also a non-executive director of each
of Panda Green Energy Group Limited and Haichang Ocean
Park Holdings Ltd., both are listed on the Stock Exchange.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Wang Xin, aged 42, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 18 May 2018 and,
is also a member and the chairman of the Audit Committee
of the Company and a member of each of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
He received his Ph.D. degree in Accounting from Duke
University in 2006 and obtained a Bachelor degree and a
Master degree in Accounting from Tsinghua University in 1999
and 2001 respectively. Dr. Wang is a CPA of CPA Australia.
He is a professor of accounting at the Faculty of Business and
Economics, The University of Hong Kong (“HKU"). Dr. Wang
joined HKU in 2011 and was awarded a tenured position by
HKU for his excellent academic performance in 2014. Before
he joined HKU, Dr. Wang worked at The Chinese University of
Hong Kong from 2006 to 2011. He has research interests in the
fields of executive compensation, financial disclosure quality,
corporate governance and insider trading. Dr. Wang's papers
were published on various world leading academic journals,
such as Journal of Accounting and Economics, The Accounting
Review, Contemporary Accounting Research and Review of
Accounting Studies. He teaches the course of Management
Accounting for the IMBA program at HKU. Dr. Wang has
teaching experience in several accounting courses, including
Introductory Financial Accounting, and Intermediate Financial
Accounting | and Il. He also teaches (as one of co-instructors)
the Ph.D. course of Research Methods for Business Studies. Dr.
Wang was an independent non-executive director of China First
Chemical Holdings Limited (resigned on 15 August 2018), a
company listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Choi Fan Keung Vic, aged 55, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on
18 May 2018 and is also a member of each of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
He obtained a Bachelor degree, Postgraduate Certificate and
a Master degree in Laws from HKU in 1997, 1998 and 2001
respectively. Mr. Choi is a solicitor of the High Court of Hong
Kong. He also serves as a consultant of Howse Williams. Mr.
Choi served as deputy head of compliance, area compliance
officer in China and head of compliance with HSBC Bank
(China) Co. Ltd., where he managed over 160 compliance
officers and was responsible for regulatory compliance and
prevention and control of financial crime in over 60 cities in
China. He worked at Clifford Chance and Herbert Smith and
was specialized in compliance, anti-money laundering, anti-
fraud and corporate finance and other advisory work. Mr.
Choi served in the Hong Kong Police Force and was a senior
inspector. He has over 30 years of experience in compliance
management, prevention and control of commercial crime and
investigation, and has extensive experience in legal practice
and, crime investigation and prosecution.

Mr. Deng Yougao, aged 53, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on
18 May 2018 and is also a member of each of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company.
He obtained a Master degree in Business Economics from
Institute of Finance and Economics of Jiangxi (/T 7 Bf 4% £2F%
now known as Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics) in
1994 and a Bachelor degree in Shipbuilding Engineering from
Harbin Shipbuilding Engineering Institute (% EE /LA T2 £
BT, now known as Harbin Engineering University ) in 1988. Mr.
Deng is a director of Shenzhen Henggu Anti-corrosion Nano
Technology Co., Ltd. CRINEEF BHA KB HBR AT ), the
chairman of the board and the general manager of Shenzhen
City Weishi Chengzhang Investment Management Co., Ltd.
(FINTHEERRIZREEE AR 2AA) and a supervisor of each
of Shanghai Xinyi Darongxun Electronic Shares Co., Ltd. ( £/&
MOEZEREFRHBRAF], which had been delisted on
the National Equities Exchange and Quotations System since
9 July 2018) and Shanghai Tiantan Nano Technology Co., Ltd.
(EBREBHABFZBR AR . He is also an independent
non-executive director of Success Dragon International
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr.
Deng has numerous experiences in different roles in various
companies in different industries.
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Ms. Zhang Quanling, aged 46, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 6
January 2018 and is also a member and the chairlady of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company and a member of
each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee
of the Company. She holds a Bachelor degree in Arts. Ms.
Zhang joined China Central Television in 1997 and has hosted
the famous programmes such as “Oriental Horizon"” and
“Focus Interview"”. She participated in numerous news live
coverage and was awarded the “Golden Microphone Awards”,
the “Golden Eagle Awards”, the “Fan Changjiang Journalism
Award”, the most prestigious journalism award in China, and
the 19th “Top Ten Outstanding Chinese Youths”. Ms. Zhang
is the founding partner of Ziniu Fund (54X ¢ ) and the
chairlady of Cool Youth (Tianjin) Culture Communication Co.,
Ltd. (BEE A F (RE) UL EHEBRAF) . She has extensive
experience in news media, brand building and strategic
planning.

Dr. Qiao Yongyuan, aged 37, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on
14 June 2019 and is also a member of each of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
He obtained a Bachelor degree in Physics from Peking University
in the People’s Republic of China in 2005 and a Doctorate
degree in Philosophy from the University of St Andrews in the
United Kingdom in 2008. Dr. Qiao currently works in Industrial
Bank Co., Ltd. as the chief strategist and worked in Guotai
Junan Securities Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, where he was the chief strategy analyst who led
the strategy research team. He also served as a consultant for
each of China Soong Ching Ling Foundation and China Youth
Development Foundation. Dr. Qiao received the first prize and
the second prize for the “Best Strategic Analyst” awarded by
New Fortune in October 2015 and October 2014, respectively.
He also received the second prize for the “Crystal Ball Award
for Best Strategic Analyst” awarded by Security Market Weekly
for two consecutive years from 2014 to 2015. Dr. Qiao has
extensive experience in financial management and securities
trading.

RREBL T 4655 M2018F1 A6 EZ{F
BARNTBYIFNITES WARNARFHME
BEgNEREF URARREZZEGNIE
LEEENE BRAENBLTEM -RZTR
1997F MARREHRE - TEFAMEME [R
FRZE]RIERG#H] F-RBET KEFHE
WESEERE SESGeFEHE]  [2ER]
EHhBEFEANGSRE [SHRIR] RE19
BIFBE+AELSF] - RRLHARFES
Bl A NARBESDFE (RE)ULEEER
NAEER - RANEKES  @EER 8RR
HEFTHARLELR-

BXKEB LT 375 MN2019F6H14B B Z(F
BARNRBYIENTES WAARREZZ
BERFMEEGNE - HHN2005FEEFHE
IR AREYPEBEABL - WH2008F ES &
BHEZEERRTAEHEFE T2 - FHTHE
TEERTRMHBER DR EFE R g R
B FT LT 2 BIR B R F IR () AR A RIEE
BERBEOMAERRBHAEEREEA - EIR
CRERIREREZERTEFSIFERESS
EAR - T1E T H BI20159F 108 &2014410
PEFVERT REEBITM]IE—2 &
B F o BINR2014F 2 2015F EEMFEFE
FMGEART [HMAKRRE] E=%-F
IR EERESFEERBRELH -

68 Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited Annual Report 2019



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to maintaining good corporate
governance standards and procedures to safeguard the
interests of all shareholders and to enhance accountability and
transparency.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with all the code provisions, and
where applicable, met the recommended best practices in
the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (the "CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing
Rules”) during the financial year ended 31 December 2019.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

The Board currently comprises a total of twelve Directors, being
three Executive Directors, four Non-executive Directors and five
Independent Non-executive Directors. The list of Directors is
set out in the section headed “Report of the Directors” of this
annual report. In addition, an updated list of the Directors and
their roles and functions is published on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.

The Board is characterised by wide diversity and has a balance
of skills and experience appropriate for the requirements of
the business of the Company. The Directors’ biographical
information is set out in the section headed "“Directors’
Biographies” of this annual report.

The Directors give sufficient time and attention to the affairs of
the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”). All Directors
are required to disclose to the Company at the time of their
appointments and annually the number and the nature of
offices held in public companies or organizations and other
significant commitments with an indication of the time
involved.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SHEABE

Save for those as disclosed in the section headed "Directors’
Biographies” as set out on pages 62 to 68 of this annual
report, there are no other financial, business, family or other

material or relevant relationships among the Board members.

The Board includes a balanced composition of Executive and
Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors) so that there is a sufficient independent element
on the Board, which can effectively exercise independent
judgement.

The Non-executive Directors are of sufficient number and
calibre for their views to carry weight. The functions of Non-
executive Directors include:

o bringing an independent judgement at Board meetings;

o taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests
arise;

° serving on Board committees if invited; and

o scrutinising the Company’s performance and monitoring

performance reporting.

The Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-
executive Directors) have made a positive contribution to the
development of the Company’s strategy and policies through
They
benefit the Board and the committees on which they serve with

independent, constructive and informed comments.

their skills, expertise, varied backgrounds and qualifications
through regular attendance and active participation in the
Board and committees meetings.

Composition of the Board is disclosed, and the Independent
Non-executive Directors are identified, in all corporate

communications to shareholders.
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Board diversity

“Board
Diversity Policy”) on 28 August 2013 which sets out its

The Company adopted a board diversity policy (the

approach to achieve diversity on the Board with a view to
achieving a sustainable and balanced development of the
Company.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The Company will also take into account factors based on its
own business model and specific needs from time to time. The
ultimate decision will be based on the merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The Board Diversity Policy is posted on the website of the
Company.

Role and function of the Board and
the management

The Board is responsible for overall strategic formulation and
performance monitoring of the Group. It delegates day-to-
day operations of the Company to the Executive Committee
and senior management within the control and authority
framework set by the Board. In addition, the Board has also
delegated various responsibilities to the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.

Further details of these committees are set out in this report.
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Board meetings

The Board meets regularly and endeavors to hold at least four
Board meetings a year. Additional meetings will be arranged,
if and when required. The Directors can attend meetings in
person or through electronic means of communication in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles”).

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in drawing up
the agenda of each Board meeting. A draft agenda of each
regular Board meeting will be sent to all Directors for review
before the agenda is issued and all Directors may request for
inclusion of other matters in the agenda. The Chairman will
take into account the matters proposed by the Directors and
where appropriate, approve the inclusion of such matters
in the agenda of the Board meeting. Generally, at least 14
days’ notice of a regular Board meeting is given and the
Company aims at giving reasonable notice for all other Board
meetings. The Company also aims at sending the agenda
and the accompanying board papers, which are prepared in
a form and quality sufficient to enable the Board to make
informed decisions on matters placed before it to all Directors
5 days, or at least 3 days, before the intended date of a Board
meeting. Where queries are raised by Directors, prompt and full
responses will be given as possible.

The Board has procedures in place to enable Directors to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at the Company’s expenses. The Board shall resolve to, upon
reasonable request, provide separate independent professional
advice to Directors to assist them in performing their duties to
the Company.
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The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of
Board meetings and Board committees meetings, draft and final
versions of which would be sent to Directors for comments
and records respectively, within a reasonable time after each
meeting. Minutes are recorded in sufficient detail the matters
considered and decisions reached, including any concerns
raised by Directors or dissenting views (if any) expressed.
Minutes of Board meetings and Board committees meetings are
kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection by
any Director/committee member.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of
interest in a matter (including material transaction with
connected persons) which the Board has determined to be
material, the matter will be dealt with by a physical Board
meeting, rather than a written resolution. Independent
Non-executive Directors who, and whose close associates, have
no material interest in the transaction should be present at that

Board meeting.

Except for those circumstances permitted by the Articles and all
applicable laws, rules and regulations, a Director shall not vote
on any Board resolution approving any contract or arrangement
or any other proposal in which he/she or any of his/her close
associates (or associates where the transaction or arrangement
is a connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules) has a material interest nor shall he/she be counted in the
quorum present at the relevant Board meeting.

Attendance records

During the financial year ended 31 December 2019, the
Directors have made active contribution to the affairs of the
Group and 13 physical Board meetings were held to consider,
among other things, various projects contemplated by the
Group and to review and approve the interim results and
annual results of the Group.
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EREBRE

The attendance records of Directors at Board meetings and

HE2019F12A3MH IV HFERN  EFNE

other committees meetings as well as general meetings during =€ -H#ZEB8e kKRR 2 HELEHHT
the financial year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in the #1:
table below:
Number of general
Number of meetings attended/held meetings attended/held
hE/ ETEENY B/ BTRRAERY
Annual
Executive Audit Nomination Remuneration  General General
Board Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting Meetings Notes
Director Bz Ezg Y7EBE EHREEE REZEE FHMZEEE RRAEAE REAE i3
Executive Directors HTES
Zhao Tianyanq (Chairmen of WRG (EEE-
the Board, Executive and HITZE8R
Nomination Committees) REZEBTE) 1213 111 - 33 - il 03
Xu Liang e 13/13 71m = - - n 33
Liang Hengyi (Managing Director) ~ R&% (EF#£4Z) 13/13 /11 - 33 - n 33
Li Shaofeng Tk
(Vice Chairman of the Board) (EE2d1E) 9/9 99 - - 22 il mn 1
Non-executive Directors FUTES
Li Yinhui £y 13/13 - 22 - 33 0/1 13
Liu Jingwei 2A5E 1313 - 2 - - 1n 13
Ho Gilbert Chi Hang EE 13/13 - 22 - - n 03
Li Hao & 1313 - - - - 01 03
Independent Non-executive BIFHTES
Directors
Wang Xin (Chairman of Audit Iz
Committee) (BRZERELE) 1313 - 22 33 33 N 33
Choi Fan Keung Vic 2ER 13/13 - 2 - 33 1n 33
Deng Yougao HEm 12113 - 22 33 - 1n 3n
Zhang Quanling (Chairlady of KRB
Remuneration Committee) (FHZE2LE) 13/13 - 22 33 33 0/1 03
Qiao Yongyuan Bk 8/8 - n - 2 - 171 2
Notes: et -
1. Mr. Li Shaofeng resigned as a Director with effect from 1 November 2019. 1. FLBEFFEES  H2019F 11 H1HEER -
2. Dr. Qiao Yongyuan was appointed as a Director with effect from 14 June — 2. BAKEELEEERBEE H2019F6 7 14HE AL -
2019.
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Access to information

The Board is supplied with sufficient explanation and
information by the management to enable the Board to make
an informed assessment of financial and other information
put before it for approval. The management provides all Board
members with monthly updates which give a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Company’s performance,
position and prospects in sufficient details to enable the Board
as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties. Where
any Director requires more information than is volunteered by
the management, each Director has the right to separately and
independently access to the Company’s senior management to
make further enquiries if necessary.

Appointment and re-election of Directors

Appointment of new Directors is a matter for consideration
by the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee
will give adequate consideration to the Board Diversity
Policy and review the profiles of the candidates and make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and nomination of Directors.

According to the Articles, any Director so appointed by the
Board shall hold office, in the case of filling a casual vacancy,
only until the next following general meeting of the Company
or, in the case of an addition to their number, until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company who shall
then be eligible for re-election at such general meeting. Every
Director is subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. The Directors who are subject to retirement and
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company are set out on page 102 of this annual report.

During the year, all Directors (including all Non-executive
Directors) were appointed for a term of not more than three
years expired on 31 December 2019.
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All Executive Directors have entered into new service
agreements with a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
for a term commencing from 1 January 2020 and continuing
until terminated by either party by prior written notice.

All Non-executive Directors have entered into new engagement
letters with the Company for an initial term commencing
on 1 January 2020 and ending on 31 December 2020; with
such appointment being automatically renewed for successive
12-month periods.

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”) effective on 1 January 2019 which sets
out the nomination procedures and criteria for the Nomination
Committee to select and recommend candidates to the
Board for consideration of appointment as Directors or for
recommendations to shareholders for election as Directors at
general meetings.

Pursuant to the Nomination Policy, prior to a meeting of the
Nomination Committee called for considering candidates for
directorship, the Nomination Committee will invite nominations
of candidates from the Board members or put forward
candidates. The Nomination Committee will consider the
nominated candidates at such committee meeting according
to the criteria of: reputation for integrity; accomplishment and
experience; compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest;
and board diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. A selected candidate will then be recommended by
the Nomination Committee to the Board for consideration and
approval.

A shareholder of the Company may propose a person for
election as a Director in a general meeting pursuant to
procedures set out in the Articles.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed five Independent Non-executive
Directors and one of them has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

Pursuant to Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the number
of Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
represents more than one-third of the Board.

The Company has received from each of its Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company
considers that all of the Independent Non-executive Directors
are independent.

Any re-election of an independent non-executive director who
has served the Board for more than 9 vyears, his/her further
appointment should be subject to a separate resolution to be
approved by shareholders.

Mr. Deng Yougao, Ms. Zhang Quanling and Dr. Qiao Yongyuan,
the Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company,
will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
The Company will state in a circular which will contain,
among other things, the notice convening the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company the reasons why
the Nomination Committee and the Board consider they are
independent, including their character, integrity and experience
they possess to continue fulfilling the role of an Independent
Non-executive Director and their respective education
background, experience, skills and practice which allow them
to provide valuable and relevant insights and contribute to the
diversity of the Board; and the recommendation to shareholders
to vote in favor of their re-election as Directors.
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Insurance for directors’ and officers’ liabilities

Appropriate insurance cover on directors’ and officers’ liabilities
has been in force to protect the Directors and officers of the
Group from their risk exposure arising from the businesses of
the Group.

Directors’ training and professional development

Every newly appointed Director will be given an introduction
of regulatory requirements. Directors are continually updated
on the latest development of the Listing Rules, legal and
other regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and
upkeep of good corporate governance practice. Directors are
also encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Company Secretary facilitates the induction and
professional development of Directors and the Company is
responsible for arranging and funding suitable training for the
Directors.

During the year, the Directors were provided with seminar and/
or presentations by qualified professionals and/or management
team on regulatory updates and/or the Group's business and
operation developments.
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All Directors have provided to the Company their records of

training received during the financial year ended 31 December

2019, a summary of which is as follows:

EEZRCRAARRRHEEREE2019F
12A31B LM BFRERRREINCEE HE

LIRNE

Type of continuous professional
development programmes
RFESXRREEESR
Attending
presentations
on regulatory
updates and
Group's business
and operation
developments

Reading materials Attending briefing HEZREHM
and updates sessions/seminars FEEEBR Notes

Name of Director = MEREFER HEEN HHE SERRZEE  pa
Executive Directors HITES
Zhao Tianyang izPN v - v
Xu Liang "eE - v v
Liang Hengyi REE - v 4
Li Shaofeng N2 v/ 4 7
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Li Yinhui FhE - 4 4
Liu Jingwei 2R v v 4
Ho Gilbert Chi Hang (DE={C] v v v
Li Hao il v - v
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Wang Xin T - v v/
Choi Fan Keung Vic BER - v v
Deng Yougao BES - v v
Zhang Quanling RRE - v v
Qiao Yongyuan BXKE - - 2
Notes: Bet
1. Mr. Li Shaofeng resigned as a Director in November 2019. 1. FDIEFLER2019F 11 HFTEFE -
2. Dr. Qiao Yongyuan was appointed as a Director in June 2019. 2. BKEELR2019F6 HEZITREF -
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

The roles of Chairman and Managing Director are separate
and exercised by different individuals to reinforce their
independence and accountability. Currently, Mr. Zhao Tianyang
is the Chairman and Mr. Liang Hengyi serves as the Managing
Director. The Chairman provides leadership for the Board
and ensures that the Board works effectively and performs
its responsibilities. The Managing Director has overall chief
executive responsibility for the Group’s business development
and day-to-day management generally. The division of
responsibilities between the Chairman and the Managing
Director is clearly established and set out in writing.

The responsibilities of the Chairman include, amongst other
things:

o taking primary responsibility for ensuring that good
corporate governance practices and procedures are
established;

o ensuring that all Directors are properly briefed on issues
arising at Board meetings, and ensuring that Directors
receive, in a timely manner, adequate information which
must be accurate, clear, complete and reliable;

o encouraging all Directors to make a full and active
contribution to the Board's affairs and taking the lead
to ensure that the Board acts in the best interest of the
Company;

o encouraging Directors with different views to voice their
concerns, allowing sufficient time for discussion of issues
and ensuring that Board decisions fairly reflect Board
consensus;

o ensuring that appropriate steps are taken to provide
effective communications with shareholders and that
their views are communicated to the Board as a whole;
and
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o promoting a culture of openness and debate by
facilitating the effective contribution of Non-executive
Directors in particular and ensuring constructive relations
between Executive and Non-executive Directors.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the following committees to oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and to assist in the
execution of the Board's responsibilities. All committees have
their own terms of reference. All resolutions passed by the
committees will be reported to the Board at the next Board
meeting.

Executive Committee

An Executive Committee of the Board was established in
February 2005 with specific written terms of reference which
deal clearly with its authorities and duties.

The Executive Committee has been conferred with the general
powers of the Board (except those matters specifically reserved
for the Board) to manage and oversee the operations of the
Group and has been assigned with the responsibilities to
perform the corporate governance duties as follows:

o to develop and review the Company's policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

o to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

o to review and monitor the Company's policies and

practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the Group's
employees and Directors;
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o to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code

and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report; and
o to conform to any requirement, direction, regulation
that may from time to time be prescribed by the Board
or contained in the constitution of the Company or
imposed by legislation.

The Executive Committee comprises all the Executive Directors,
namely Mr. Zhao Tianyang, Mr. Xu Liang and Mr. Liang Hengyi.
During the year, 11 physical meetings of the Executive
Committee were held. Amongst those meetings, one meeting
was held for the purpose of performing the corporate
governance duties. The attendance of each member at these
meetings is set out in the table above under subsection
"BOARD OF

“Attendance records” of the section headed

DIRECTORS”.

The major work in relation to the corporate governance of
the Group performed by the Executive Committee during the
year included, amongst other things, reviewing the Company's
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the corporate
governance report of the Company for the financial year ended
31 December 2018.

Audit Committee

An Audit Committee of the Board was established in December
1998 with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly
with its authorities and duties. The terms of reference of the
Audit Committee are posted on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company respectively.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include, amongst
other things:

o overseeing the relationship with and engagement of the
Company’s auditor;

o reviewing the interim and annual financial statements of
the Group;
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o reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies
and practices;

o reviewing the Company’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems; and

o reviewing the arrangements that employees of the
Company can use, in confidence, to raise concerns
about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters.

The Audit Committee has explicit authority to investigate
any activity within its terms of reference and the authority to
obtain outside legal or other independent professional advice,
at the Company’s expense, to perform its responsibilities if it
considers necessary. It is given access to and assistance from
the employees and reasonable resources to perform its duties

properly.

The chairman of the Audit Committee is Dr. Wang Xin, an
Independent Non-executive Director, and the members of the
Audit Committee are Non-executive Directors and Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Li Yinhui, Mr. Liu Jingwei,
Mr. Ho Gilbert Chi Hang, Mr. Choi Fan Keung Vic, Mr. Deng
Yougao, Ms. Zhang Quanling and Dr. Qiao Yongyuan. None of
the members of the Audit Committee are former partners of
the auditor of the Company.

During the year, 2 physical meetings of the Audit Committee
were held and the attendance of each member is set out in
the table above under subsection “Attendance records” of the
section headed “BOARD OF DIRECTORS".

The major work performed by the Audit Committee during the
year included, amongst other things, the following:

o reviewed and considered the audit plan and the
remuneration of the auditor of the Company for the
financial year ended 31 December 2018;
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o reviewed the final results of the Group for the financial
year ended 31 December 2018;

o reviewed the interim results of the Group for the 6
months ended 30 June 2019; and

o reviewed the reports on the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group prepared by an
independent advisory firm.

During the year, the Board had no disagreement with the Audit
Committee’s view on the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of the external auditor.

Nomination Committee

A Nomination Committee of the Board was established in
February 2005 with specific written terms of reference which
deal clearly with its authorities and duties. The terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee are posted on the

websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.
The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include:

o reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board and making recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

o identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and selecting or making recommendations to
the Board;

o making recommendations to the Board on the

appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors;

o assessing the independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors;

o determining suitably qualified individual(s) to become
deputy general manager(s) of the Company; and
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o reviewing the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate; and
reviewing the measurable objectives that have been
set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy, and
reviewing the progress on achieving the objectives.

The Nomination Committee follows the nomination procedures
and criteria set out in the Nomination Policy, as disclosed
above, in selecting and recommending candidates for
directorship to the Board for consideration.

The appointment of Dr. Qiao Yongyuan as an Independent
Non-executive Director during the year has undergone the
abovementioned nomination procedures set out in the
Nomination Policy.

The Nomination Committee has explicit authority to seek any
necessary information from the employees within its scope
of duties and the authority to obtain outside independent
professional advice, at the Company’s expense, to perform its
responsibilities if it considers necessary.

The chairman of the Nomination Committee is Mr. Zhao
Tianyang who is also the Chairman of the Board. Members
of the Nomination Committee include Mr. Liang Hengyi, an
Executive Director, and Dr. Wang Xin, Mr. Deng Yougao and
Ms. Zhang Quanling, all of whom are Independent Non-
executive Directors.

During the year, 3 physical meetings of the Nomination
Committee were held and the attendance of each member
is set out in the table above under subsection “Attendance
records” of the section headed “BOARD OF DIRECTORS".

The major work performed by the Nomination Committee
during the year included, amongst other things, the following:

. considered and made recommendations to the Board
on the appointment of an Independent Non-executive
Director and committees member;
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reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board and made recommendations on proposed changes
of Directors and committees members to the Board;

assessed the independence of the Independent Non-
executive Directors;

considered and made recommendations to the Board
on the re-election of Directors at the annual general
meeting; and

considered and approved the appointment of a deputy
general manager of the Company.

Remuneration Committee

A Remuneration Committee of the Board was established in

February 2005 with specific written terms of reference which

deal clearly with its authorities and duties. The terms of

reference of the Remuneration Committee are posted on the

websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include:

86

making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration of
Directors and senior management of the Group;

reviewing and approving the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Company’s
goals and objectives;

determining, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors
and senior management and making recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration of Non-executive
Directors;

reviewing and approving compensation payable to
Executive Directors and senior management and
compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or
removal of Directors for misconduct; and
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o ensuring that no Director or any of his/her associates is
involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee may consult the Chairman of
the Board and/or the Managing Director of the Company about
their remuneration proposals for other Executive Directors. It
has explicit authority to seek any necessary information from
the employees within its scope of duties and the authority
to obtain outside independent professional advice, at the
Company's expense, to perform its responsibilities if it
considers necessary.

The remuneration policies for the Company as well as the
Directors are based on market alignment and reward for
performance. The Company reviews the remuneration package
annually taking into consideration of the market practice,
competitive market position and individual performance.

The chairlady of the Remuneration Committee is Ms. Zhang
Quanling, an Independent Non-executive Director, and
members of the Remuneration Committee include Dr. Li Yinhui,
a Non-executive Director, Dr. Wang Xin, Mr. Choi Fan Keung
Vic and Dr. Qiao Yongyuan who are Independent Non-executive
Directors.

Details of remuneration paid to the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company for the year are set out in note 37 to
the consolidated financial statements.

During the year, 3 physical meetings of the Remuneration
Committee were held and the attendance of each member
is set out in the table above under subsection “Attendance
records” of the section headed “BOARD OF DIRECTORS".

The major work performed by the Remuneration Committee
during the year included, amongst other things, the following:

o considered, reviewed and approved the terms of the
engagement letter of an Independent Non-executive
Director and made recommendation to the Board on his
director’s fee;
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o reviewed and approved the terms of the service
agreement and remuneration of a deputy general
manager of the Company;

o reviewed and approved the terms of the new service
agreements of the Executive Directors of the Company;

o made recommendations to the Board on the terms
of the new engagement letters of the Non-executive
Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors of
the Company;

o considered the bonuses of the management of the
Company and recommended the relevant bonus
proposal to the Board for consideration; and

o made recommendations to the Board on the directors’
fees of the Non-executive Directors and Independent
Non-executive Directors for the year 2020.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary supports the Board by ensuring good
information flow within the Board and that Board policy
and procedures are followed. The Company Secretary is also
responsible for advising the Board through the Chairman and/
or the Managing Director on corporate governance and the
implementation of the CG Code. The Company Secretary is an
employee of the Company and has day-to-day knowledge of
the Group’s affairs.

The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and the
Managing Director. All Directors also have access to the advice
and services of the Company Secretary to ensure that Board
procedures, and all applicable laws, rules and regulations, are
followed. The selection, appointment and dismissal of the
Company Secretary are subject to the Board approval.

The Company Secretary has confirmed that she has taken no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the
year.

. BB R AL AR B B AR IR 1O IR 1 8
ZABRFR AN Fr B -

. B RALERRRATEFTOHRGE S
#)Z G

. IARRFAITESMBLIFRTES
MFZREGRIANESTSRIES:

. ERANPEEBZ ALY NESSR
ERENEATRUAEZE &

. SRIEMTTE FFB L IFAITEF2020F
EHeREFSRIEZZE-

DREWE

RAMEXEREFE HREFENEZHE
AMRRRF UREEERRELREFBNE
B-RAWETREEBEIRR HEFRK
BEREFENCEERBRALREEER TR
ZHITEERHER - ARAWERALRANE
B HAKRENEESHERRH -

NEAMERNTIELESTHAKEER - MEES
MAMELAWENBER RS AERE
EFeRFEABEREE RAURRMSNINE
SeoARMEMNEE RTEARAKLESZS
HEHE

RAWEBERERAFERARI T D15/
MR B X E

88 Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited Annual Report 2019



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Management is responsible for the design, implementation
and monitoring of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems, while the Board is responsible for overseeing
management in performing its duties on an ongoing basis. A
review of the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control system has been conducted annually by the Board to
cover all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls. Main features of the risk management and
internal control systems are described in the sections below:

Risk Management System

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages
the risk associated with its business and operations. The system
comprises the following phases:

. Identification: Identify type of significant risks, business
objectives and risks that could affect the achievement of
objectives.

o Evaluation: Analyze the likelihood and impact of risks

and evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

o Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure
effective communication to the Board and on-going
monitor the residual risks.

Based on the risk assessments conducted in 2019, no
significant weakness was identified.
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Internal Control System

The Company has in place an internal control system which is
compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission 2013 framework. The framework
enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness
and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial reporting
and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The

components of the framework are shown as follows:

° Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for carrying out internal
control across the Group.

o Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for
identifying and analyzing risks to achieve the Group’s
objectives, forming a basis for determining how risks
should be managed.

o Control Activities: Action established by policies and
procedures to help ensure that management directives
to mitigate risks to the achievement of objectives are
carried out.

o Information and Communication: Internal and external

communication to provide the Group with the

information needed to carry out day-to-day controls.

o Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to
ascertain whether each component of internal control is
present and functioning.

Internal Auditor

The Group outsources the internal audit work to a globally
renowned professional internal audit services provider. Internal
audit function carries out the analysis and independent
appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal control systems. The internal
audit function is independent of the Group’s daily operation
and carries out appraisal of the risk management and internal
control systems by conducting interviews, walkthroughs and
tests of operating effectiveness.
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An internal audit plan has been reviewed by the Board.
According to the established plan, review of the risk
management and internal control systems is conducted
annually and the results are reviewed by the Audit Committee
and reported to the Board.

Effectiveness of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and ensuring review of the
effectiveness of these systems has been conducted annually
according to the requirements of the CG Code.

The Board, through its review and the review made by the
internal audit function, the management and Audit Committee,
concluded that the risk management and internal control
systems were effective and adequate. Such systems, however,
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss. It is also considered that the resources, staff qualifications
and experience of relevant staff were adequate and the training
programs and budget provided were sufficient.

INSIDE INFORMATION DISCLOSURE POLICY

The Company adopted an inside information disclosure
policy (the "“Inside Information Disclosure Policy”) on
21 December 2015 which sets out the procedures for the
handling and dissemination of inside information with a view
to preventing uneven, inadvertent or selective dissemination of
inside information and ensuring shareholders and the public are
provided with full, accurate and timely information about the
activities and the financial condition of the Group. The Inside
Information Disclosure Policy covers the following:

o setting out the processes for identifying, assessing and
escalating potential inside information to the Board;
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o setting out the responsibilities of officers in preserving
the confidentiality of inside information, escalating
upwards any such potential information and cascading
down the message and responsibilities to relevant staff;
and

o identifying who the Company’s authorized spokespersons
are and their responsibilities for communications with
stakeholders of the Company.

In addition, the Company has communicated to all relevant
staff regarding the implementation of the Inside Information
Disclosure Policy.

The Board considers that the Company’s existing measures are
effective and appropriate compliance mechanisms to safeguard
the Company and its officers in discharging their disclosure
obligations in respect of inside information.

The Inside Information Disclosure Policy is posted on the
website of the Company.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as a
code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions.
A reminder is served by the Company to each Director twice
annually of the black-out period that Directors cannot deal in
the securities and derivatives (if any) of the Company.

Directors are required to notify the chairlady of the
Remuneration Committee and to receive a dated written
acknowledgement before dealing in the securities and
derivatives (if any) of the Company. In the case of the
chairlady of the Remuneration Committee herself, she must
notify the Managing Director and receive a dated written
acknowledgement before any dealing.
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Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Directors
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code and the Company’s code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions throughout the year ended 31 December
2019.

The Company has also established a written guideline no less
exacting than the Model Code for securities transactions by
relevant employees (including any employee of the Company
or director or employee of a subsidiary who, because of his
office or employment in the Company or a subsidiary, is likely
to possess inside information in relation to the securities of the
Company). No incidence of non-compliance was noted by the
Company.

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

During the year, the remuneration paid/payable to the
Company’s auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, is set out as
follows:
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
financial statements of the Group which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group on a going concern
basis and in presenting the annual and interim reports and
other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, the
Directors aim to present a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of the Group's position and prospects.

The statement of the auditor of the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers,
about its reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 232 to 239 of this annual report.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

On 22 March 2012, the Board adopted a Shareholders’
Communication Policy reflecting the current practices of the
Company for communication with its shareholders. Such
policy aims at ensuring the shareholders of the Company are
provided with ready, equal and timely access to balanced and
understandable information about the Company, in order to
enable shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed
manner, and to allow shareholders to engage actively with the
Company.

To foster effective communications with the shareholders,
the Company provides extensive information in its annual
and interim reports and announcements. All shareholders’
communications are also available on the Company’s website at
www.shougang-intl.com.hk.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides a useful
forum for shareholders to exchange views with the Board. All
Directors will make an effort to attend. The external auditor
is also available at the annual general meeting to address
shareholders’ queries. In case of any general meeting to
approve a connected transaction or any other transaction that
is subject to independent shareholders’ approval, members of
the independent Board committee will also make an effort to
attend to address shareholders’ queries.
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During the year, 4 general meetings were held. One of the
general meetings was the annual general meeting held on 28
May 2019 (the “2019 AGM") and the others were the general
meetings held on 27 March 2019 and 18 December 2019 (the
“GMs") for approving the followings:

1. the sale and purchase agreement dated 21 November
2018 entered into between the Company and Shougang
Holding (Hong Kong) Limited (“Shougang Holding")
in relation to the proposed restructuring by way of
transferring the entire issued share capital of Fair Union
Holdings Limited held by the Company to Shougang
Holding and the transactions contemplated thereunder;

2. the capital increase agreement (the “Capital Increase
Agreement”) dated 30 December 2018 entered into
among Beijing Shouxing Zhixing Parking Management
Co., ltd. (ItRBEETEEBEEFRAF) (formerly
known as Beijing Shouxing Zhixing Investment Co., Ltd.
(bR EEETREGREAR), “Shouxing Zhixing”),
Shouzhong Investment Management Co., Ltd. (&R #&
LEEEERAA, “Shouzhong Investment”), Beijing
Shouzhong Car Parking Management Co., Ltd. (it
REFEEEEAR AR, "Shouzhong Parking”),
Beijing Shougang Fund Co., Ltd. (It R EHMESER A
7], “Shougang Fund”) and Beijing Static Traffic Anda
Parking Management Co., Ltd (It R BLIEFEE
EIRHMAF (formerly known as Beijing Gonglian Anda
Car Parking Management Co., Ltd. (It R A ZEEE
B AR ARF), "Gonglian Anda”) in relation to the
capital increase in the registered capital of Shouzhong
Parking and the transactions contemplated thereunder;

3. the joint venture agreement dated 30 December 2018
entered into among Shouxing Zhixing, Shouzhong Investment,
Shouzhong Parking, Shougang Fund and Gonglian Anda in
relation to operation and management of Shouzhong Parking
and the transactions contemplated thereunder;
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4. the supplemental agreement dated 14 January 2019
entered into between Shouxing Zhixing and Shouzhong
Parking to supplement certain terms of the Capital
Increase Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder;

5. the private fund management service agreement dated
18 November 2019 (the “New Fund Management
Service Agreement”) entered into between the
Company and Shougang Fund, pursuant to which the
Company and/or its subsidiaries will provide private
fund management services to Shougang Fund and/or its
associates; and

6. the annual cap amounts in respect of the New Fund
Management Service Agreement as set out in the
circular of the Company dated 28 November 2019 for
each of the five financial years ending 31 December
2024.

The auditor of the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers,
attended the 2019 AGM. Details of the attendance of each
Director at the general meetings of the Company held during
the year are set out in the table above under subsection
“BOARD OF

“Attendance records” of the section headed

DIRECTORS".

During the year, all notices of general meetings despatched
by the Company to its shareholders for meetings held were
sent for annual general meeting at least 20 clear business days
before the meeting and at least 10 clear business days for all
other general meetings. Separate resolutions were proposed
at general meetings on each substantially separate issue,
including the re-election of individual retiring Directors, and all
resolutions put to the vote of a general meeting were taken
by way of a poll. At the general meetings, the chairman of the
meetings explained the procedures for conducting a poll and
answered questions from shareholders on voting by poll, if any.
The results of the poll were published on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
Convene a general meeting

Shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total voting
rights of all shareholders of the Company having a right to vote
at general meetings can request the Directors to call a general
meeting pursuant to Section 566 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The request must
state the general nature of the business to be dealt with at
the meeting and may include the text of a resolution that may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting.
Such request must be authenticated by the shareholder(s)
making it and sent to the Company in hard copy form or in
electronic form for the attention of the Company Secretary.

Put forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings

Shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all shareholders of the Company or at least 50
shareholders who have a relevant right to vote at a general
meeting can request the Company to circulate to the
shareholders of the Company a statement of not more than
1,000 words with respect to a matter mentioned in a proposed
resolution or other business to be dealt with at that meeting
pursuant to Section 580 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The expenses shall be borne
by the shareholder(s) making the request unless the meeting
concerned is an annual general meeting and the statement is
received by the Company in time for sending with the notice
of the meeting. The request must identify the statement to be
circulated, and must be authenticated by the shareholder(s)
making it and sent to the Company in hard copy form or in
electronic form for the attention of the Company Secretary at
least 7 days before the meeting to which it relates.
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Shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all shareholders of the Company or at least 50
shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution at an
annual general meeting can request the Company to give to
the shareholders of the Company notice of a resolution that
may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting pursuant to Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The request must
identify the resolution of which notice is to be given, and must
be authenticated by the shareholder(s) making it and sent to
the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form for the
attention of the Company Secretary no later than 6 weeks
before the annual general meeting to which the requests relate,
or if later, the time at which notice of the meeting is given.

Shareholders’ enquiries

Specific enquiries or suggestions by shareholders can be sent in
writing to the Board or the Company Secretary at our registered
office or by email to our Company. In addition, shareholders
can contact Tricor Tengis Limited, the share registrar of the
Company, if they have any enquiries about their shareholdings
and entitlement to dividend. Relevant contact details are set
out on page 3 of this annual report.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year.
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The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures are set out in notes 17 and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
and the state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in
the audited consolidated financial statements on pages 240 to
406 of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board considers sustainable returns to shareholders whilst
retaining adequate reserves for the Group’s future development
to be an objective. Under the dividend policy adopted by the
Company, dividends may be recommended, declared and paid
to shareholders from time to time. In summary, the declaration
of dividend is subject to the discretion of the Board, taking into
consideration of, among others, the following factors:

° financial results;

o shareholders’ interests;

o general business conditions and strategies;

o capital requirements;

o taxation considerations;

o contractual, statutory and regulatory restriction, if any;
and

o any other factors that the Board may deem relevant.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEEREE

EECENIREEEEREERARRIREN
B ([A&EE])EH=2019F12831HIEF
EZEEBEZRYEHRER UHEEE-
FTEEK
ARAIZEBEBAEREER - STEWEAR
A BERRRAE R ZERINNREGESE
ERERMFEI7R18 -

ES

AREEEHF2019F12A3MBIEFEFEZEZE N
AEBRZB ZH B RE TR A FIRE240
BZEFL06 B 2B AMBRE -

KR E

EZenEREARRTEREELRFRKHAK
SENARERFREZRHB REAQAR
MOBREBR ARAIHETHRABRERE
EMRERB -BEME REERAKES
2ZR (HPBE) U TERENBET

. MRS
. R

. BBEBRRRER:
. HEEEF

. MBEEEE

. BRI EERBRERS (WH) Rk

. EFeUtsEBENENEERE-

BREBRFTCEARR AR 2019F#H 929



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERESE

Where a dividend is being declared in any particular financial
year, the total amount of payment shall not exceed 50% of the
accumulated profits available for distribution during such given
financial year.

The Board has resolved to recommend a final dividend in
the total amount of HK$500 million for the year ended
31 December 2019 (2018: HK$700 million), payable to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company at the close of business on Thursday, 18 June
2020. Based on 6,925,576,780 ordinary shares of the Company
in issue after the Share Consolidation (as defined below)
becoming effective on 30 March 2020, such a final dividend
would amount to HK7.22 cents per consolidated ordinary
share (2018: HK2.55 cents per ordinary share before the Share
Consolidation).

Subject to shareholders’ approval of the proposed final dividend
at the Company’s annual general meeting to be held on Friday,
22 May 2020 (the “AGM"), the final dividend is expected to be
paid on or about Wednesday, 22 July 2020. In order to qualify
for the proposed final dividend, all transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s share registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 18 June 2020 for registration.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 19 May 2020 to Friday, 22 May 2020 (both days
inclusive) to determine the shareholders’ entitlement to attend
and vote at the AGM. During such period, no transfer of shares
of the Company will be registered. In order to be eligible to
attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s share registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 18 May 2020 for registration.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019 is set out in the sections headed “Chairman’
s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on pages 9 to 36 and pages 37 to 61 of this annual report
respectively.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set out
on page 407 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year, the Company issued an aggregate of
4,884,043,134 new ordinary shares (before the effect of the
Share Consolidation), details of which are set out in the section
headed “SHARES ISSUED" below.

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during
the year are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date and as at the date
of this report, the Company has issued an aggregate of
5,698,949,999 new ordinary shares (before the effect of the
Share Consolidation). Details of which are set out in the section
headed “SHARES ISSUED" below.

On 21 February 2020, the Company announced that the
Board proposed to implement the share consolidation on the
basis that every five (5) ordinary shares of the Company be
consolidated into one (1) ordinary share of the Company (the
“"Share Consolidation”).

Pursuant to the resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company on 26 March 2020, the Share Consolidation became
effective on 30 March 2020 and the total number of issued
shares of the Company was adjusted from 34,627,883,902 to
6,925,576,780.
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Details of the Share Consolidation are set out in the Company’s
announcements on 21 February 2020 and 26 March 2020 and
circular on 11 March 2020.

DONATIONS

No charitable donation was made by the Group during the year
(2018: Nil).

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
are:

Executive Directors

Zhao Tianyang

Xu Liang

Liang Hengyi

Li Shaofeng (resigned with effect from 1 November 2019)

Non-executive Directors
Li Yinhui

Liu Jingwei

Ho Gilbert Chi Hang

Li Hao

Independent Non-executive Directors

Wang Xin

Choi Fan Keung Vic

Deng Yougao

Zhang Quanling

Qiao Yongyuan (appointed with effect from 14 June 2019)

In accordance with article 93 of the Company’s articles
of association (the “Articles”), Dr. Qiao Yongyuan will be
subject to, and offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM. In accordance with article 102(A) of the Articles, Mr.
Liang Hengyi, Dr. Li Yinhui, Mr. Deng Yougao and Ms. Zhang
Quanling will retire and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming AGM.
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year and up to the date of this report, directors
of the subsidiaries of the Company include Zhao Tianyang, Li
Shaofeng*, Liang Hengyi, Shu Hong*, Bao Linsheng*, Chang
Yingxin, Chen Zhichao, Chen Zhong*, Fu Qiang, Hao Bolin, Ji
Weizheng, Jia Tingting, Jiang Molin*, Li Chensong*, Li Na, Li
Qingyang, Li Yinhui, Lin Yan, Liu Hongyi, Liu Wenbin, Meng
Yue*, Meng Ziyang, Qin Gang, Ryan Reed Botjer, Shen Zhuolin,
Shi Xiaodong, Sui Changzheng*, Tan Long, Tian Aibin, Wang
Hongpeng, Wu Jing*, Xia Xiaohong, Xie Peng, Xu Huajie, Xu
Ke*, Yu Haiyang, Zhang Chunping*, Zhang Jun*, Zhang Lan,
Zhang Meng, Zhao Xiaotong, You Wenli, Li Wei, Liu Shuyi,
Guan Yingwu, Wang Qi, Ning Jingbian, Peng Cheng, Liang
Lixia, Yang Yang, Song Changhai, Lu Ping, Zhao Bin, Xu Yu, Bai
Lin, Gao Feifei and Leung Yuen Chee Sara.

*  Ceased to be directors of relevant subsidiaries of the Company as at the
date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES AND INSURANCE

As permitted by the Articles, every Director or other officer of
the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the
assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of
his office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability coverage for the Directors and officers of the Company.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), were
as follows:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company
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% of the total
number of shares of
the Company in issue

Number of as at 31.12.2019
shares held LF N
Capacity in which (Note 1) 20196 12H31A8
Name of Director interests were held BERGHE ERTROEH
EsnE BREREZZEH (Hia1) ZEDH
Liang Hengyi Beneficial owner 3,880,000 0.0134
RE% ExBAA
Liu Jingwei Beneficial owner 2,576,000 0.0089
A=E ERERA
Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 300,000 0.0010
REEE 2 B (it2)
Wang Xin Beneficial owner 200,000 0.0007
iz ERERA
Interest of spouse 1,000,000 0.0035
feB s
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Notes:

1. As at 31 December 2019, the total number of issued shares of the
Company was 28,928,933,903 ordinary shares. The number of
shares or underlying shares held by the Directors and chief executive
of the Company was not adjusted for the effect of the Share
Consolidation after the reporting period.

2. These shares were held by Sunshine Express International Consulting
Company Limited, which was 100% controlled by Mr. Liu Jingwei.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates had registered any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed in the section headed "“DIRECTORS’
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES” herein,
at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, its parent company or any subsidiary of its parent
company a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
or their respective spouses or children under 18 years of age
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts that is significant in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries, its parent company or any subsidiary of its
parent company was a party and in which a Director or his/her
connected entities had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEEREE

Bet

1. EE20199F12A31H KR A E #FTHR (748 %
#328,928,933,903R Z iR - EFER AL Al &z
BITHA B AT R 17 26 16 B AR 17 20 B 90 K B K
RIS LT e -

2. ZER D B B = 1E £ ET100%FE #6955 Ot 28 38
REHAFRLAFFE -

B EXEr#EEIN 2019128318 &%
SARAREERITHABRBES A 2B A
ENA QB E AR AR EB D - HERG
SERETEE BEARABREELARPE
BRI E3IS2GREERTF2ECMP RS2 F
A=A R KRB FETUNESITHAE R
RE KRR 2 A ERSAE -

EERERDNEER ZEFR

A [ ERBETRABRE 48
B REREE 2 B RAR | — B REE
Sh - B PO AL 1D - AN ) o AT B
BAR EBARRESAAGEARBAR
WS R EARYE FEFRREEAL
BBIART/\FOT LA REE AR AR
1 A 25 A LB 2 B S M T 19 ) i o

EENRZ REFEHNzER

ARRFEEAMBELR EEQRHEER
AT B AR ERAFEERESIAFEL
AREA SERITEAEAREXBARL
THEERS THAAH EHEFHEMH
EERAERIARETEANN G-

BERBEECEAR AR 2019035k 105



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERESE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, the following
Directors have declared interests in the following businesses
(other than those businesses where the Directors were
appointed as directors to represent the interests of the
Company and/or any member of the Group) which are
considered to compete or are likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group during the year:

Name of entity
whose businesses are
considered to compete

EERNEFRE2ER

RIFEMRAESI0E U TEFCEERS
RUATEBHERRZ (U TEREEEZER
BERARZEFURKARA R, SAEEE
AREBARIESEZER) MERSRBEAR
RAFERNERAEEXBERERXEERF
KA RER AR BT

Description of businesses
of the entity which are
considered to compete
or likely to compete

or likely to compete with the businesses Nature of
with the businesses of the Group interest of
of the Group EBERA the Director
EBRRRELRER BRAREEEY in the entity
Name of Director EBBARFERARE BE %P AT REE A ESRERESR
EEns BRHEFZERZER BECERCER ZHERZMHE
Zhao Tianyang Shougang Holding (Hong Kong) Trading of iron ore and steel Director
RS Limited (“Shougang Holding")* products Eos
BER (FE)BRAA HEAMMMERE S
([EWmER])
Beijing Shougang Fund Co., Ltd. Fund management Director and
(“Shougang Fund")* HeERE General
tREHMESER AR Manager
([BEmEZ])" EERERE
Xu Liang Shougang Holding* Trading of iron ore and Director
"= EEkY steel products 5=
HEALMMMERE S
Ho Gilbert Chi Hang Urban Parking Limited* Car park management Director
CE=XE] EWEESEBERAA EESER B%

#  Such businesses may be carried out through the subsidiaries or —* ZZ XAl E A BERBERE > WEBRGBER
associates of the entity concerned or by way of other forms of FlEk AR B 7T o

investments.
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The Board is independent from the boards of the above-
mentioned entities and is accountable to the Company's
shareholders. Coupled with the diligence of its Independent
Non-executive Directors whose views carry significant weight
in the Board’s decisions, the Group is capable of carrying on
its businesses independently of, and at arm’s length from, the
businesses of these entities.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS UNDER THE SFO

So far as is known to the Directors and chief executive of the
Company, as at 31 December 2019, the following persons
(other than a Director or chief executive of the Company) had
or deemed to have interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO:

Long positions in the shares/underlying shares of
the Company
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EXeBURLIBERBZEEE WEARAAR
ARRAE - AEBZBYIFRTEERRCD
B -HEFERARREHEBEREEZER
HAKREENZAFRAIEZEZEEZARLE
Ry 2R

REBSRPERIETERRERZRK
-}

HREERARARZRITBHRABA  12019F
12A318 TIAL (REZH AR R HE=IT
BABIN AR R M S AERE AR (D R A 3k
WREES CEARRREES RS KL
E336IKM T BB T2 ELMP Rz

NP
A

RADERYHERDZFR

% of the
total number of
shares of the

Company in
Capacity in which Number of shares/ issue as at
Name of shareholder interests were held underlying shares 31.12.2019 Notes
EARRT
20195128318
ERTROAH
3R & BEEEZHH R4 HERGHE ZEAL izt
Shougang Group Co., Ltd. Interests of controlled 12,727,237,198 43.9948 1,7
("Shougang Group”) corporations
HMEBRERAR ([HHEM]) REEE R
ORIX Corporation Interests of controlled 5,220,408,397 18.0456 2,7
BRhT&E® corporation
XEEEER
ORIX Asia Capital Limited (“ORIX Asia") 5,220,408,397 18.0456 2,7

BHTEMERERAF ([BRAOLEM])

Beneficial owner
g

TEREA A
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EXEHRESE

% of the
total number of
shares of the

Company in
Capacity in which Number of shares/ issue as at
Name of shareholder interests were held underlying shares 31.12.2019 Notes
EARDT
20195 12H31H
ERITROAR
R R &8 BEREZEH R4/ HERGHE ZEIL Vi3
HOPU Investments Co. Il Ltd Interests of controlled 2,715,464,456 9.3867 37
corporation
XEEEER
HOPU USD Master Fund Ill, L.P. Interests of controlled 2,715,464,456 9.3867 37
corporation
XEEE R
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings II) Limited Interests of controlled 2,677,425,528 9.2552 4,7
corporations
REEE R
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited Interests of controlled 2,677,425,528 9.2552 4,7
corporations
XEEEER
Rocket Parade Limited Beneficial owner 2,677,425,528 9.2552 4,7
EnBEBA
JD Fountain Technology (Hong Kong) Limited Beneficial owner 1,500,000,000 5.1851 57
RRBRRBE (BEB)ERAF EaEEA
JD Innovation Information Technology Limited Interests of controlled 1,500,000,000 5.1851 57
REAFEEREERAR corporation
XEEE R
Jingdong Digital Technology Holdings Limited Interests of controlled 1,500,000,000 5.1851 57
("JD Digital”) corporation
RRYFHBEZERARLA ([ZRREF]) REEE #R
Sugian Boyu Guangnian Internet Interests of controlled 1,500,000,000 5.1851 57
Technology Limited (“Suqian Boyu") corporation
BEBMAEFRERMERAR ([BEER]) IHFEEZER
Mr. Liu Qiangdong Interests of controlled 1,500,000,000 5.1851 57
Bl R AEAE corporation
XEEE R
Ms. Zhang Zetian Interests of spouse 1,500,000,000 5.1851 57

BERLL
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Notes:

Shougang Group is interested in (i) all the shares held by its direct
and indirect subsidiaries, namely, Shougang Holding (holding
360,601,160 shares), China Gate Investments Limited (holding
2,757,829,774 shares), Grand Invest International Limited (holding
768,340,765 shares), Wide Success Holdings Limited (holding
4,106,748,921 shares), Prime Success Investments Limited (holding
48,574,000 shares), Lyre Terrace Management Limited (holding
230,000 shares) and Jingxi Holdings Limited (holding 4,591,579,245
shares), and (ii) 93,333,333 shares to be allotted and issued to
Shougang Holding pursuant to the subscription agreement dated 29
November 2019 entered into between the Company and Shougang
Holding.

ORIX Corporation is interested in (i) all the 1,503,741,731
shares held by its wholly-owned subsidiary, ORIX Asia, and (ii)
3,716,666,666 conversion shares to be issued and allotted to ORIX
Asia or its designated person upon exercise of the conversion rights
under the zero coupon convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$1,115,000,000 pursuant to the subscription agreement dated
29 November 2019 entered into between the Company and ORIX
Asia.

HOPU Investments Co. lll Ltd ("HOPU Investments”) is interested
in 2,715,464,456 shares held by its indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary, Soteria Financial Investment Company Limited (“Soteria
Financial Investment”). Soteria Financial Investment is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Soteria Financial Holding Company Limited,
which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of HOPU USD Master
Fund Ill, L.P, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of HOPU Investments.
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B EBRODAEEERBEENIE R AFEZ
TBERGFHEGEm  HENE RS F B
B AR (5 5360,601, 160K & 17) + China
Gate Investments Limited (#52,757,829,774
BREZ17) ~ Grand Invest International Limited
(#55768,340,765/R & (7) « Wide Success
Holdings Limited (% H4,106,748,92 1% &
17) ~ Prime Success Investments Limited (=&
48,574,000 K 17) EEEEFR 2 [ (#F
F230,000817) R R AR BER 2 A (#5
4,591,579,24558 2 (7) K (i)#R 45 7K 23 7] 2 &
PR A B B2019F 11 529 H & 5T #9385 15
B R A B AR D R #17793,333,333/
f/\ °

B 77 + 5 B R ) B 2 B W E 2 B ) 1 32 N #
B2 281,503,741, 73 1RR 7 F B ¥z K
(IIRIE A 2 F] B2 77 + 2 M 2019F 11 529H
FEIHRE i ETTIE AR £ 41,115,000,000
BT H)E B A R R E AR IE G - AT R
FEFE )+ DMK EIEEA+.23,716,666,666
JRIBIRIR (7 B W ar o

HOPU Investments Co. Il Ltd ([HOPU
Investments |) R A B # £ & I & 2 &)
Soteria Financial Investment Company Limited
([Soteria Financial Investment])ff #%
22,715,464, 456 R R (7 FHEH # & °

Soteria Financial Investment#&Soteria Financial
Holding Company Limited.> = & H1/& 2 & + i1
Soteria Financial Holding Company Limited &
HOPU USD Master Fund Illl, L.P.Z % &/ 2
a] * HOPU USD Master Fund 1ll, L.P Al ZHOPU
InvestmentsZ B # % &1 & 22 7] o

BEREBEECEAR AR 201905k 109



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERESE

Rocket Parade Limited is wholly-owned by NWS FM Limited which
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of NWS FM Holdings Limited. NWS
FM Holdings Limited is wholly-owned by NWS Service Management
Limited (incorporated in the British Virgin Islands) which is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of NWS Service Management Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman lIslands) ("NWS Service”). NWS
Service is wholly-owned by NWS Holdings Limited which is held as
to 60.86% by New World Development Company Limited, which
in turn is held as to 44.35% by Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited
(“Chow Tai Fook Enterprises”). Chow Tai Fook Enterprises is
wholly-owned by Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited, which is held as
to 81.03% by Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited, which in turn is held
as to 48.98% and 46.65% by Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings)
Limited and by Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings Il) Limited
respectively.

JD Fountain Technology (Hong Kong) Limited is wholly-owned by JD
Innovation Information Technology Limited, which is in turn wholly-
owned by Sugian Boyu, which is in turn wholly-owned by JD Digital.
JD Digital is owned as to 21.44% by Mr. Liu Qiangdong.

Ms. Zhang Zetian is the wife of Mr. Liu Qiangdong, and therefore
Ms. Zhang Zetian is deemed to be interested in Mr. Liu Qiangdong’s
interest in the shares pursuant to Section 316(1) of the SFO.

As at 31 December 2019, the total number of issued shares of the
Company was 28,928,933,903 ordinary shares. The number of
shares or underlying shares held by the persons set out in the table
was not adjusted for the effect of the Share Consolidation after the
reporting period.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the

Company had not been notified of any person (other than

a Director or chief executive of the Company), who had any

interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of

the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by

the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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4. Rocket Parade LimiteddiINWS FM Limited% &

#AH - MNWS FM Limited BNWS FM Holdings
LimitedZ £ & [ & 2 7] - NWS FM Holdings
LimiteddINWS Service Management Limited
(REBEXHSTMA L) 2 EHEF  TINWS
Service Management Limited 531 BIiE AR 7% & 1%
BRRA(RESESTMA L) ([HAZR
#]) 22 ENE 2 E] - B2 IR B ¥ Bl 2 5
BBERA A2 EHE  MFHEIREBFRAAH
Frtt RERE G IR L A]15560.86 %K - ATt
RERBGRRAIAIBEAXE X ERL A ([/E
AFLE]) 15 H44.35% R 1 o B A 181 % A1 /]
AE(FER)BERLGIZEHRT  MREIAE (F
/&) B[R 2\ 7] 41 Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited
7 H81.03%/&## + f1iChow Tai Fook Capital
Limited#i Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings)
Limited X, Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings 1I)
Limited 77 Bl #5 5 48.98 % K 46.65 % % ## °

5. REFEREE (BE) BIRL A R RENF 158

BIRBERL A2 EHEE T REEF 55 F#
BRAG]HTEEBREERE BEERA G
RRUFEEHE REEFTHE BRI
B21.44% 7 ©

6. BEEXL T RERRAELEZZF FURIEZE

HFREEIEOIEI6(1)IF EEXLLRER
REERELEZ R B E o e

7. AE20199F12A31H KRG E #FTHR (748 %
#328,928,933,903% & i Ik ° Z F AT Z A + AT
FE AR 17 8L FA B AR 17 9 B 2 K [ A 3R & B 1 BR 17
B R E T -

B EXXEr#EE SN 20199128318 » &
FRAAL(BEERARBERITEABRIN
EMEARARRERARR RO LBERGF
BB EARRIREZES RS KAIFE3361K
REEBGE ECMPESE o ERIKE -
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTEREST IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “"CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS” below, at no time during the year had
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and the controlling
shareholders (as defined under the Listing Rules) or any of
their subsidiaries entered into any contract of significance
or any contract of significance for the provision of services
to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by the controlling
shareholders or any of their subsidiaries.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, there
is a sufficiency of public float of the Company’s securities as
required under the Listing Rules as at the date of this annual
report.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 25 May 2012, the shareholders of the Company adopted
a share option scheme (the “2012 Scheme"”), which became
effective on 29 May 2012.

The purpose of the 2012 Scheme is to enable the Company
to grant share options to selected participants as incentives
or rewards for their contribution or potential contribution to
the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries and/or any entity
in which any member of the Group holds any equity interest
(the “Invested Entities”). The 2012 Scheme shall be valid
and effective for the period of ten years commencing on 25
May 2012, being the date on which the 2012 Scheme was
conditionally adopted by the shareholders of the Company, and
ending on 25 May 2022 (both dates inclusive).

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEEREE

ERBRRREERZ 2R

BRTIXHERSREERER S| — &M K
BEIN ARBHEEFMHBRRAERNFEEE
IR AR - B IR AR (B R EHARAD)
FEMBARZERLERERE X AREIE
PR AR S E B R B[R AR R S A B A B4R
HERBWEEEL -

NRERE
RIBEARBIMESZARENERESHA
RAFHNNERH AR ZESFTAE LTMR
AIFIREZ RRARIRERE -

BRRETE

2012958258 R ARI MR F RN —EER
& ([2012F 518 ) - 2581201245
H298 4 % -

02F B EFEARAIEMEIE TN E
ERTERE EARBRBREHEFEHARQF
R/ SEMERBAR RSN EBEMRKE
REFEEMEREZTRNEER ([REER])
FriEE RIS BE T B - 2012 51218201245
A258 (B12012F 5H &1 AR A B AR 3R B 1§45
ME) B ER) BB ZE2022F 58250 1B MR A RK
(BEEREMA)  AH+F-

BEEBELCEXERAT 2019F% 111



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERESE

Under the 2012 Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion,
offer full-time or part-time employees, executives, officers or
directors (including executive and non-executive directors) of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any of the Invested
Entities, and any advisors, consultants, agents, suppliers,
customers and distributors, who, in the sole opinion of the
Board, will contribute or have contributed to the Company and/
or any of its subsidiaries and/or any of the Invested Entities,
share options to subscribe for shares of the Company.

No share option has been granted under the 2012 Scheme
since its adoption. The maximum number of shares of the
Company available for issue upon exercise of all share options
which may be granted under the 2012 Scheme is 895,330,622
(being 179,066,124 shares after the Share Consolidation
becoming effective), representing approximately 2.59% of the
issued shares of the Company as at the date of this annual
report. The total number of shares of the Company issued
and which may fall to be issued upon the exercise of share
options to be granted under the 2012 Scheme and any other
share option scheme(s) of the Company (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding share options) to each grantee in
any 12-month period up to the date of offer shall not exceed
1% of the number of shares of the Company in issue as at the
date of grant. Any further grant of share options in excess of
this 1% limit shall be subject to the issue of a circular by the
Company and shareholders’ approval in a general meeting. In
addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company,
or to any of their associates, which would result in the shares
of the Company issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of the offer
of such grant (a) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue on the date of the grant; and
(b) having an aggregate value of in excess of HK$5,000,000

112

RIBE201255 3 EFEEARBAARARE
AEMBARNEMEEERE 2 2BRRRBIE
B 1TRAR BEXEE (BRNTRIERT
EF) UREEFe2RIR/BHERBYHARN
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(based on the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated
in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date
of each grant), such further grant of options shall be subject
to the issue of a circular by the Company and shareholders’
approval in a general meeting on a poll at which the grantee,
his/her associates and all core connected persons of the
Company shall abstain from voting in favour of the resolution
concerning the grant of such options, and/or such other
requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to
time. A connected person of the Company will be permitted to
vote against the grant only if his intention to do so has been
stated in the circular. Any grant of share options to a Director,
chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company,
or to any of their associates, is required to be approved by
the Independent Non-executive Directors (excluding the
Independent Non-executive Director who is the grantee of the
options).

The period during which a share option may be exercised will
be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, save
that no share option may be exercised more than ten years
after it has been granted under the 2012 Scheme. There is no
requirement that a share option must be held for any minimum
period before it can be exercised but the Board is empowered
to impose at its discretion any such minimum period at the time
of offer of any share options.

The exercise price in relation to each share option will be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion and shall not
be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares
of the Company as stated in the daily quotations sheet of the
Stock Exchange on the date of offer of share options; (ii) the
average closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in
the daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of offer of share
options; and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company
on the date of offer of share options. Each of the grantees is
required to pay HK$1.00 as a consideration for his acceptance
of the grant of share options in accordance with the 2012
Scheme. The offer of share options must be accepted within 30
days from the date of the offer.
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Share options to be granted under the 2012 Scheme do not

confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at general

meetings.

No share option has been granted under the 2012 Scheme

since its adoption. Accordingly, as at 31 December 2019, there

was no share option outstanding under the 2012 Scheme.

SHARES ISSUED

(a)

114

Issued 3,384,043,134 shares on 9 April 2019

On 19 March 2019, the Company entered into the
following agreements to broaden the shareholders base,

enhance the profile of the Company and increase the

trading liquidity of the shares of the Company:

(i)

(i)

a subscription agreement (the “Subscription
Agreement 1”) with Soteria Financial Investment
Company Limited (“HOPU"),

the Company has conditionally agreed to allot

pursuant to which

and issue and HOPU has conditionally agreed
to subscribe for an aggregate of 2,715,464,456
new ordinary shares of the Company (the “HOPU
Subscription Shares”) at a subscription price of
HK$0.25 per HOPU Subscription Share, equivalent
to an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$678,866,114.

a subscription agreement (the “Subscription
Agreement IlI”) with Red Avenue Investment
Group Limited (“Red Avenue”), pursuant
to which the Company has conditionally
agreed to allot and issue and Red Avenue has
conditionally agreed to subscribe for an aggregate
of 120,000,000 new ordinary shares of the
Company (the “Red Avenue Subscription
Shares”) at a subscription price of HK$0.25
per Red Avenue Subscription Share, equivalent
to an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$30,000,000.
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(iii)  a subscription agreement (the “Subscription
Agreement IllI”) with Matrix Partners China
V Hong Kong Limited (“Matrix Partners”),
pursuant to which the Company has conditionally
agreed to allot and issue and Matrix Partners has
conditionally agreed to subscribe for an aggregate
of 548,578,678 new ordinary shares of the
Company (the “Matrix Partners Subscription
Shares”) at a subscription price of HK$0.25 per
Matrix Partners Subscription Share, equivalent
to an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$137,144,669.50.

The subscription price of HK$0.25 per HOPU
Subscription Share, Red Avenue Subscription Share
and Matrix Partners Subscription Share represented a
premium of approximately 8.23% over the closing price
of HK$0.231 per ordinary share of the Company as at
the date of entering into the Subscription Agreement I,
Subscription Agreement Il and Subscription Agreement
Il (collectively, the “2019 March Subscription
Agreements”). Completion of the 2019 March
Subscription Agreements took place on 9 April 2019.
The HOPU Subscription Shares, Red Avenue Subscription
Shares and Matrix Partners Subscription Shares
(collectively, the “2019 March Subscription Shares”)
were allotted and issued on 9 April 2019 under the
general mandate to issue and deal in the ordinary shares
of the Company granted by the shareholders to the
Directors at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 18 May 2018.

Details of the total funds raised from the issue of
the 2019 March Subscription Shares and the use of
proceeds are set out under the section headed "USE
OF PROCEEDS FROM SUBSCRIPTION OF NEW SHARES”
in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report.
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(b)

116

Issued (i) 1,500,000,000 shares on 11 December
2019, (ii) 93,333,333 shares on 17 January
2020, (iii) 388,950,000 shares on 20 January
2020 and (iv) 3,716,666,666 shares on 5
February 2020

On 29 November 2019, the Company entered into
the following agreements to reserve and supplement
funds for the rapid development of the Group’'s main
businesses and the increase in the Group’s market share:

(i) a subscription agreement (the “JD Fountain
Subscription Agreement”) with JD Fountain
Technology (Hong Kong) Limited (“JD
Fountain”), pursuant to which the Company has
conditionally agreed to allot and issue and JD
Fountain has conditionally agreed to subscribe
for an aggregate of 1,500,000,000 new ordinary
shares of the Company (the “JD Fountain
Subscription Shares”) at a subscription price
of HK$0.30 per JD Fountain Subscription
Share, equivalent to an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$450,000,000. Completion of
the JD Fountain Subscription Agreement took
place on 11 December 2019. The JD Fountain
Subscription Shares were allotted and issued on
11 December 2019 under the general mandate
to issue and deal in the ordinary shares of the
Company granted by the shareholders to the
Directors at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 28 May 2019 (the “2019
AGM").
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a subscription agreement (the “Shougang
Holding Subscription Agreement”) with
Shougang Holding, pursuant to which the
Company has conditionally agreed to allot and
issue and Shougang Holding has conditionally
agreed to subscribe for an aggregate of
93,333,333 new ordinary shares of the Company
(the “Shougang Holding Subscription
Shares”) at a subscription price of HK$0.30 per
Shougang Holding Subscription Share, equivalent
to an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$28,000,000. Completion of the Shougang
Holding Subscription Agreement took place
on 17 January 2020. The Shougang Holding
Subscription Shares were allotted and issued on
17 January 2020 under the specific mandate to
issue and allot Shougang Holding Subscription
Shares under the Shougang Holding Subscription
Agreement granted by the shareholders to the
Directors at the general meeting of the Company
held on 10 January 2020 (the “2020 GM").

The subscription price of HK$0.30 per JD Fountain
Subscription Share and Shougang Holding
Subscription Share represented a discount of
approximately 13.04% over the closing price of
HK$0.345 per ordinary share of the Company
as at the date of entering into the JD Fountain
Subscription Agreement and Shougang Holding
Subscription Agreement.
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(iii)

a subscription agreement with each of ORIX Asia
(the “CB Subscription Agreement 1”), Matrix
Partners China V, L.P. (“Matrix Partners V") (the
“CB Subscription Agreement II”) and Matrix
Partners China V-A, L.P. (“Matrix Partners
V-A") (the "CB Subscription Agreement
11") (collectively, the “"CB Subscription
Agreements”), pursuant to which the Company
has conditionally agreed to issue and ORIX
Asia, Matrix Partners V and Matrix Partners
V-A (collectively, the “CB Subscribers”) have
conditionally agreed to subscribe for the zero
coupon convertible bonds in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$1,231,685,000 (the
“Convertible Bonds”), of which ORIX Asia
agreed to subscribe for a principal amount
of HK$1,115,000,000, Matrix Partners V
agreed to subscribe for a principal amount of
HK$105,693,000 and Matrix Partners V-A agreed
to subscribe for HK$10,992,000. The Convertible
Bonds will mature at the second anniversary of
its issue date and are convertible into shares of
the Company (the “Conversion Shares”) upon
the exercise of the conversion rights attaching to
the Convertible Bonds at a conversion price of
HK$0.30 per Conversion Share (the “Conversion
Price”) (subject to adjustments).

(iii )
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Completion of the CB Subscription Agreements
took place on 17 January 2020. On 20 January
2020, 352,310,000 Conversion Shares and
36,640,000 Conversion Shares were allotted
to Matrix Partners V and Matrix Partners V-A
respectively upon receipt of a conversion notice
from each of Matrix Partners V and Matrix
Partners V-A to convert the Convertible Bonds
in the principal amount of HK$105,693,000 and
HK$10,992,000 respectively in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the Convertible
Bonds under the specific mandate to issue and
deal in the ordinary shares of the Company
granted by the shareholders to the Directors
at the 2020 GM. On 5 February 2020,
3,716,666,666 Conversion Shares were allotted
to ORIX Asia’s designated person, Mountain
Tai Peak | Investment Limited (“Mountain
Tai Peak”), upon issuance of a mandatory
conversion notice by the Company to Mountain
Tai Peak to convert the Convertible Bonds in
the principal amount of HK$1,115,000,000 in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Convertible Bonds under the specific mandate
to issue and allot the Conversion Shares under
the CB Subscription Agreements granted by the
shareholders to the Directors at the 2020 GM.

Details of the total funds raised from the issue of the
JD Fountain Subscription Shares, the Shougang Holding
Subscription Shares and the Convertible Bonds, and the
use of proceeds are set out under the section headed
“USE OF PROCEEDS FROM SUBSCRIPTION OF NEW
SHARES"” in the “Management Discussion and Analysis”
of this annual report.
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(c)

Issued 1,500,000,000 shares on 21 February
2020

On 14 February 2020, the Company entered into
a subscription agreement (the “FTLife Insurance
Subscription Agreement”) with FTLife Insurance
Company Limited (“FTLife Insurance”) to raise capital
and resources required for the Group's development
which will contribute to better investment return for
the shareholders of the Company. Pursuant to the
FTLife Insurance Company Subscription Agreement, the
Company has conditionally agreed to allot and issue and
FTLife Insurance has conditionally agreed to subscribe
for an aggregate of 1,500,000,000 new ordinary shares
of the Company (the “FTLife Insurance Subscription
Shares”) at a subscription price of HK$0.30 per FTLife
Insurance Subscription Share, equivalent to an aggregate
amount of HK$450,000,000. Completion of the FTLife
Insurance Subscription Agreement took place on 21
February 2020. The FTLife Insurance Subscription Shares
were allotted and issued on 21 February 2020 under the
general mandate to issue and deal in the ordinary shares
of the Company granted by the shareholders to the
Directors at the 2019 AGM.

Details of the total funds raised from the issue of the
FTLife Insurance Subscription Shares and the use of
proceeds are set out under the section headed "USE
OF PROCEEDS FROM SUBSCRIPTION OF NEW SHARES”
in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “SHARE OPTION
SCHEME"” and “SHARES ISSUED"” above, no equity-linked
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing

shares or that require the Company to enter into any

agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing

shares were entered into by the Company during the year or

subsisted at the end of the year.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
(whether on the Stock Exchange or otherwise) during the year.

DISTRIBUTION RESERVES

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has reserves
available for distribution as calculated in accordance with
the relevant provisions of the Companies Ordinance, details
of which are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the aggregate sales of
continuing operations attributable to the Group's five largest
customers represented approximately 38.2% (2018: 44.3%)
of the Group's total sales of continuing operations, of which
the sales attributable to the largest customer accounted for
approximately 17% (2018: 19%) of the Group’s total sales of
continuing operations.

For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December
2018, the aggregate purchases of continuing operations
attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers combined were
less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases of continuing
operations, the purchases attributable to the Group's largest
supplier were less than 10% of the Group's total purchases of
continuing operations.

Shougang Group, being the substantial shareholder of the
Company, directly and/or indirectly held the following interests
in these major customers as at 31 December 2019:

(1) Shougang Group and/or through its subsidiary(ies), held
approximately 99% interest in Beijing Shougang Industry
Transformation Fund Co., Ltd. (It R EXERNHEEH
(NGB
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Shougang Group and/or through its subsidiary(ies), held
approximately 59% interest in Beijing Shoujing Fengtai
Management Consulting Centre (Limited Partnership)
(R EREREBHFATOL(BRER));

Shougang Group and/or through its subsidiary(ies), held
approximately 58% interest in Beijing Shouxin Jinyuan
Management Consulting Center (Limited Partnership)
(tREHETERZATL (BRER));

Shougang Group and/or through its subsidiary(ies), held
approximately 56% interest in Jilin Shougang Industry
Revitalization Fund Partnership (Limited Partnership) (&

MEMEXKREESABAE (BRER)), and

Shougang Group and/or through its subsidiary(ies), held
approximately 40% interest in Beijing Shoushi Ming Zhi
Jin Xin Economic Consulting Firm (Limited Partnership)
(EREMEESEERELACE(ERER)).

Save as disclosed, as at 31 December 2019, none of the

Directors, their close associates or any shareholder of the

Company (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owns

more than 5% of the issued shares of the Company) had any

beneficial interest in these major customers.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions were recorded during the year and up
to the date of this annual report:

Connected Transactions

(a)

(i) Capital Increase Agreement and Joint Venture
Agreement dated 30 December 2018 and
Supplemental Agreement dated 14 January 2019;
and (ii) Shouzhong Parking Acquisition Agreement
dated 27 March 2020

(i)

On 30 December 2018, (i) Beijing Shouxing
Zhixing Parking Management Co., Ltd. (bR &
BETFEHEERBMRADAF) (formerly known
as Beijing Shouxing Zhixing Investment Co., Ltd.
(e ®EETREEBEMRAA), "Shouxing
Zhixing”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, Shouzhong Investment
Management Co., Ltd. (B REEEFR AT,
“Shouzhong Investment”), Beijing Shouzhong
Car Parking Management Co., Ltd. (dt R &
FBEE®EAEMRAA, “Shouzhong Parking”),
Shougang Fund and Beijing Static Traffic Anda
Parking Management Co., Ltd (1t REFRER BT i
REEEAR QA (previously known as Beijing
Gonglian Anda Car Parking Management Co.,
Ltd. ("It R B EFEEIEBR AR, "Gonglian
Anda”) (collectively, the “Parties”) entered
into a capital increase agreement (the “Capital
Increase Agreement”), pursuant to which,
Shouxing Zhixing agreed to contribute
RMB76,000,000 to the registered capital of
Shouzhong Parking, and the registered capital
of Shouzhong Parking will thereby be increased
from RMB144,000,000 to RMB220,000,000
(the "Capital Increase”); and (ii) the Parties
also entered into a joint venture agreement (the
“Joint Venture Agreement”) for the operation
and management of Shouzhong Parking.
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The Capital Increase was made by Shouxing
Zhixing in cash before 31 January 2019 and
after the Capital Increase, the equity interest
of Shouxing Zhixing, Shouzhong Investment,
Shougang Fund and Gonglian Anda in Shouzhong
Parking became 34.546%, 31.5%, 33.136%
and 0.818% respectively, and the Company's
aggregate indirect equity interest in Shouzhong
Parking was increased from approximately
48.125% to approximately 66.046%.

The Capital Increase will significantly add to
the capital strength of Shouzhong Parking,
and thereby expand the Group’s business in
investment and operation of airport parking
building in the future.

On 14 January 2019, Shouxing Zhixing and
Shouzhong Parking entered into a supplemental
agreement (the “Supplemental Agreement”)
to the Capital Increase Agreement to supplement
certain terms of the Capital Increase Agreement.

Given that Shougang Fund and Shouzhong
Parking (an associate of Shougang Group) are
connected persons of the Company under the
Listing Rules as at the date of the respective
agreements, the entering into of the Capital
Increase Agreement, the Joint Venture Agreement
and the Supplemental Agreement constituted a
connected transaction of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

Details of the transactions contemplated under
the Capital Increase Agreement (as supplemented
by the Supplemental Agreement) and the
Joint Venture Agreement were disclosed in
the announcements of the Company dated 30
December 2018 and 14 January 2019 and in the
circular of the Company dated 21 February 2019.
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On 27 March 2020, Shouxing Zhixing and (i)  72020%3R27H B EE1TH
Shougang Fund entered into an agreement BMESFI VKR ([BEHREEK
(the “Shouzhong Parking Acquisition Bl B g@8ETRE
Agreement”), pursuant to which Shouxing Wi - aMEeRELEERE
Zhixing agreed to acquire and Shougang Fund #33.136% M R - HEREF
agreed to sell 33.136% equity interest in fFEFMERARK72,900,000
Shouzhong Parking, representing RMB72,900,000 7T RE R/ AK94,410,0007T
in the registered capital of Shouzhong Parking, (B EEWRESEE])  EEF
at a consideration of RMB94,410,000 (the H A prat ey S R IR (I i A S 3R
“Shouzhong Parking Acquisition”), subject to Fo

fulfilment or waiver of the conditions precedent
set out therein.

Upon completion of the Shouzhong Parking BHRIEEWRHEERTHKE BH
Acquisition, Shouxing Zhixing, Shouzhong BT BPRENABMETER
Investment and Gonglian Anda will hold BERFEEMNRESSIE AL
approximately 67.682%, 31.5% and 0.818% 67.682% ~31.5%#0.818% -
equity interest in Shouzhong Parking respectively, KRR EREENMEERES
and the Company’s aggregate indirect equity #8115 FR 4966.046 % IE2 N E 4
interest in Shouzhong Parking will be increased 99.182% - HEHITEBEFRE
from approximately 66.046% to approximately BWEEERERIEEEER
99.182%. After the increase of Shouxing Zhixing’ A B G OR At £ B E oK
s equity interest in Shouzhong Parking through B #IZHIEE  (EMERRAE
the Shouzhong Parking Acquisition, the Company BAFEEEMNEZLS A2
will participate more extensively in projects of AIF B AR EERENELE
Beijing Daxing International Airport which will o

contribute to accumulating operation experience
of parking project of transportation hub, a
segment the Company wishes to further expand
its leading advantage in the future.

Given that Shougang Fund is a substantial B EMRA REREEWE
shareholder of the Company and hence a WEAH HMESALRARZ
connected person of the Company under the FERREBEEALT ARG
Listing Rules as at the date of the Shouzhong B IFERERREXARRZ
Parking Acquisition Agreement, the entering into MERZ G-

of the Shouzhong Parking Acquisition Agreement
constituted a connected transaction of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

Details of the transactions contemplated under BREERERZEE TEHETH
the Shouzhong Parking Acquisition Agreement REMFIEENRARNBIBHR
were disclosed in the announcement of the 20203 H27TEM R EFHEE -

Company dated 27 March 2020.
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(b)
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Acquisition and Capital Injection Agreement dated
29 March 2019

On 29 March 2019, Beijing West (Hong Kong) Limited
("Beijing West"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, as the purchaser and investor entered into
an agreement (the “Acquisition and Capital Injection
Agreement”) with Shougang Fund as the vendor
and Beijing Jingxi Venture Capital Fund Management
Co., Ltd. (kR RAEEREESEEAR R A,
“Jingxi Venture”) as the target company. Pursuant
to the Acquisition and Capital Injection Agreement,
(i) Beijing West agreed to acquire and Shougang Fund
agreed to sell 75% equity interest in Jingxi Venture,
representing RMB37,500,000 in the registered capital
of Jingxi Venture, at a consideration of RMB67,394,325
in cash (the “Acquisition”); and (ii) Beijing West
agreed to contribute RMB89,859,100 to the capital
of Jingxi Venture, of which RMB50,000,000 would be
contributed to the registered capital of Jingxi Venture
and the remainder to its capital reserve (the “Capital
Injection”).

The Acquisition and Capital Injection would help the
Group deepen its management and operation of car
parking assets and therefore, expand its innovation
business for car parking business. In addition, the Group
would strengthen its competitive advantage in the urban
renewal industry with the foundation of Beijing Vstartup
Investment and Development Co., Ltd. (1t Al ¥ A%
EEREAMR AR, which is one of Jingxi Venture's direct
investments, through its existing real estate operation.

Given that Shougang Fund is a substantial shareholder
of the Company and hence a connected person of
the Company under the Listing Rules as at the date of
the Acquisition and Capital Injection Agreement, the
Acquisition and Capital Injection in aggregate constitute
a connected transaction of the Company under the
Listing Rules. Details of the transactions, including the
Acquisition and Capital Injection, contemplated under
the Acquisition and Capital Injection Agreement have
been disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 29 March 2019.

(b)
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(c)

Equity Transfer Agreement dated 7 May 2019 and
Restated Partnership Agreement dated 8 May 2019

On 7 May 2019, Beijing Shouyuan Investment Limited
(ERBRREBRAF,

subsidiary of the Company, as the transferor and Beijing

“Shouyuan”), a wholly-owned

Shougang Industry Transformation Fund Co., Ltd. (b
REMEXEUESAERAA,

the transferee entered into an equity transfer agreement

“Fund Company”) as

(the "Equity Transfer Agreement”) whereby Shouyuan
agreed to transfer and the Fund Company agreed to
acquire the committed capital contribution to Beijing
Shoujing Fengtai Management Consulting Centre
(Limited Partnership) (It R HEEHREZZAP L (B
[R& %), "Partnership”) in the amount of RMB10,000,
representing approximately 95.24% equity interest in
the Partnership at nil consideration. Upon completion of
the Equity Transfer Agreement, the Partnership shall be
held by Beijing-Hebei Co-development Exhibition Zone
(Tangshan) Fund Management Co., Ltd. (RE R % E
TEER(FLESBEEBERAT) (now known as Jingji
Tiancheng (Beijing) Fund Management Co., Ltd. ( R
AR (UER)ESEBRAERRAA,

wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as general

“Jingji Capital”), a

partner and the Fund Company as limited partner as to
approximately 4.76% and 95.24% respectively.

On 8 May 2019, Jingji Capital and the Fund Company
entered into a new partnership agreement (the
“Restated Partnership Agreement”) in relation to
the Partnership, pursuant to which Jingji Capital’s
committed capital contribution to the Partnership
shall increase from RMB500 to RMB60,000,000 and
the Fund Company's committed capital contribution
to the Partnership shall increase from RMB10,000
to RMB1,540,000,000, representing approximately
3.75% and 96.25% equity interest in the Partnership
respectively.
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(d)

128

The term of the Partnership shall be long-term. The
objective of the Partnership shall be generating revenue
from carrying out corporate management consulting,
corporate management and technical services activities.

Given that the Fund Company is owned by Shougang
Group, Shougang Fund and Jingji Capital as to
approximately 37.04%, 61.73% and 1.23% respectively,
and Shougang Group and Shougang Fund are connected
persons of the Company under the Listing Rules, as such
the Fund Company is an associate of the connected
persons of the Company as at the date of the Equity
Transfer Agreement and the Restated Partnership
Agreement, the entering into of the Equity Transfer
Agreement and the Restated Partnership Agreement
constitute connected transactions of the Company
under the Listing Rules. Details of the transactions
contemplated under the Equity Transfer Agreement and
the Restated Partnership Agreement have been disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 8 May
2019.

Shougang Holding Subscription Agreement dated
29 November 2019

On 29 November 2019, the Company as issuer entered
into the Shougang Holding Subscription Agreement
with Shougang Holding as subscriber in relation to the
subscription of 93,333,333 new ordinary shares of the
Company at a subscription price of HK$0.30 per share.
The Completion of the Shougang Holding Subscription
Agreement took place on 17 January 2020. Details of
the Shougang Holding Subscription Agreement are set
out under the section headed “SHARES ISSUED"” above.

(d)

ERCENHRERAN -GREEL
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Continuing Connected Transactions

(a)

Master agreement dated 3 October 2016

As stated in the announcement of the Company dated 3
October 2016 and in the circular of the Company dated
18 November 2016, a master agreement between the
Company and Shougang Corporation (now known as
Shougang Group), a connected person of the Company
by virtue of its being the controlling shareholder of
the Company, was entered into on 3 October 2016
(the “2016 Master Agreement”) for governing the
continuing connected transactions to be entered
into between the Group and Shougang Group and/
or its associates for the three financial years ended
31 December 2019. Pursuant to the 2016 Master
Agreement, Shougang Group and/or its associates will
provide iron ore, steel and related products to the Group
(the "Purchases”) during the three financial years
ended 31 December 2019.

The cap amounts of the Purchases for each of the three
financial years ended 31 December 2019 are as follows:
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(a) B A B20165FE1053A B4 & 3

BN RBA2016F10 A3 A E K&
20165 11 H18 B By @ L ATt - A2 &) £
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+)R2016F 1083 F5] — DGR E %
& ([2016F EWME]) URELRE
EEEMEEREK SEBEARERE
2019512 A31 8 1E = 1A 8 Bt 5 E HA
ETHRERERS - RIB2016F 4546
Wk REZE2019F 12 A31 8 1E = @8
HEERE aREmE SREBEA
MASERHEEL. HEAREEED
([EREBEE]) -

REE2019%F12A31H IE = @B B &
EEFNHEEEBE 2 LRESBUOT:

Financial year ended 31 December

BZNRAMBALBBREE
2017 2018 2019
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
B EE T B E T BT
Cap amounts for the Purchases $REEEBE 2 LIRS 1,100 1,600 2,700

The continuing connected transactions with Shougang
Group and/or its associates under the 2016 Master
Agreement would secure a stable source of supply
of iron ore, steel and related products to support the
business of trading in iron ore, steel and related products
carried out by the Group following the disposal of the
Qinhuangdao business in late 2016.

AREBRE2016F 454 L E M EE
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The price and terms of the transactions under the
2016 Master Agreement have been determined in
accordance with the pricing policies and guideline set
out in the relevant announcement and circular of the
Company dated 3 October 2016 and 18 November 2016
respectively.

Tenancy agreements

As stated in the announcement of the Company dated
23 December 2016, the following tenancy agreements
(the “Tenancy Agreements”) were entered into by a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and subsisted
during the year:

(i) a tenancy agreement dated 23 December
2016 (the “Tenancy Agreement 1") whereby
a portion of the 6th Floor, Bank of East Asia
Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong with an aggregate gross
floor area of approximately 190 square feet
was leased by Winluck Properties Limited
("Winluck”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Shougang Holding, to Shougang Concord Services
Limited (“Shougang Services”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, for a term of thirty-
six (36) months commencing on 1 January 2017
and expiring on 31 December 2019 at a monthly
rental of HK$9,000, exclusive of rates and
management fee; and

(ii) a tenancy agreement dated 23 December
2016 (the “Tenancy Agreement 2") whereby
a portion of the 7th Floor, Bank of East Asia
Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong with an aggregate gross
floor area of approximately 6,618 square feet
was leased by Wonderfine Development Limited
(“Wonderfine”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Shougang Holding, to Shougang Services for a
term of thirty-six (36) months commencing on 1
January 2017 and expiring on 31 December 2019
at a monthly rental of HK$311,000, exclusive of
rates and management fee.

(b)

2016 F 6 HBIE T 2 R P EE RIGER
T RIBIE AR AR 2016F 10 A3 &
201611 H188 2 8~ & K il K B
o EBHEKEKRIESIEE -

HE &

BN AR A A PR20165F12 823 A%
Frat KRR ZE2EMBARGI AT
mEERZ ([HEHR])  UREAFE

(i) B EIA20165 122380 HE
W ([HEHBR1]) ik =il
?Hxsﬁiﬁﬂfﬂ% AIKEEXR

REI([XKE])MARAHER
EW%"ﬂ%%HE%EB&"‘
(BERBRB N HERELE@E
Zﬁ19o¥7?ﬂﬂmf£ﬁ§,“1¥%iﬂ
SR R I R1T B E P L6ERE
ME®E: BHE36ME A - 820174
1A1HEZ=2019F12A31HE
W ATB 9, 0007 (T EEE
MRERE) &

(ii) HEIA20165 12238 HE
W ([HEH#E2]) Bt E i
TR EENBARKEELERE
ERAB(IXEE)MEER
B HAREEAELG6,618FF
RE B T &5 4T 8565 R an
WTEERLTEIIMER 5
Hi36M@ A - B2017F1A1HESR
201912 A31HE R AFEK
311,000 (T EIEEZMEEE
B)-o

Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited Annual Report 2019



(c)

Based on the monthly rents payable under each of the
Tenancy Agreements, the annual caps for the three years
ended 31 December 2019 are as follows:

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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For the three years ended
31 December 2019

HZE2019%F1248

3M1AL3 AEE

HKS$

JB

Tenancy Agreement 1 HEWmZEI 108,000
Tenancy Agreement 2 HEWZ2 3,732,000
Total et 3,840,000

Each of Winluck and Wonderfine is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Shougang Holding, which in turn is the
substantial shareholder of the Company. Accordingly, the
transactions under the Tenancy Agreements constituted
continuing connected transactions for the Company
under the Listing Rules.

Partnership agreements

On 8 September 2017, Jingji (Hong Kong) Limited
(the “First Purchaser”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into an agreement (the “First
Agreement”) with Shougang Fund under which the
First Purchaser agreed to acquire 95% of the equity
interest (the "First Sale Shares”) in Jingji Capital (the
"First Target Company”) for RMB231,135,000 and to
inject RMB32,300,000 into the First Target Company as
committed and unpaid capital for the First Sale Shares
(the "First Acquisition”). The First Target Company
is a limited liability company which is principally
engaged in the business of the provision of private fund
management services in the PRC.

(9]

KENMXKEBEHREMERNEEN
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Before the date of the First Agreement, the First Target
Company or its subsidiaries had entered into certain
partnership agreements with, among others, Shougang
Fund and/or its associates which were connected
persons of the Company, for the establishment and
regulations of the partnerships. Pursuant to such
partnership agreements, the First Target Company or
its subsidiaries shall provide private fund management
services to such partnerships as a general partner
or private fund manager. As such partnerships were
associates of Shougang Fund, such partnerships became
connected persons of the Company upon completion of
the First Acquisition. The provision of the private fund
management services by the First Target Company or its
subsidiaries to such partnerships under the partnership
agreements therefore constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules
upon completion of the First Acquisition.

The principal business of the First Target Company is
the provision of private fund management services.
The partnership agreements were entered into prior
to the First Acquisition and were being carried out
in the ordinary course of business of the First Target
Company and/or its subsidiaries. As the partnership
agreements have remaining terms of between 3 years
and 10 years to run, the continuous performance of the
partnership agreements is necessary to avoid the First
Target Company (or its subsidiaries) defaulting on its
obligations upon completion of the First Acquisition.

Details of the partnership agreements were disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 8 September
2017 pursuant to rule 14A.60 of the Listing Rules.
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(d) Master agreements dated 8 September 2017 and 18
November 2019

(i)

In contemplation of the First Target Company
and/or its subsidiaries continuing to provide
private fund management services to any
new partnerships or entities (being associates
of Shougang Fund, a connected person of
the Company) after completion of the First
Acquisition, the Company and Shougang Fund
entered into a master agreement on 8 September
2017 (the "2017 Master Agreement”). Pursuant
to the 2017 Master Agreement, the Company
and/or its subsidiaries will provide private fund
management services to Shougang Fund and/or
its associates for a term commencing from the
completion date of the First Acquisition (i.e. 13
December 2017) and will expire on 31 December
2019.

The transaction amounts under the 2017 Master
Agreement during the term of the agreement will
not exceed the following annual caps:

From the
commencement

date of the

2017 Master Agreement
(i.e. 13 December 2017)
to 31 December 2017

EEEREE

(d)  HEAE2017F958H K20194F11518H
WiRE s

(M)

EEINE-BEZARKHEM
BAREE —WEESIETHKIEE
BRETAFAEELERETR (A
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FZTFHEFEWEEE TR
B85 (B120174128138 ) # 4
1 ¥R 2019F12831H @ °

RBZEFRA - 2017F 545 HE
BRZRGEHEBTFEBAT
FELR:

H2017E K6 HR For the year ended For the year ended
EXAH 31 December 2018 31 December 2019
(B2017%128130) & B Z2018F12A31R EZ2019%F12A31A1
2017%12A31H LEE LEE
RMB RMB RMB
ARE ARKE ARE
Provision of private fund
management services 10,000,000 180,000,000 250,000,000

RELEESERRY

Pursuant to the terms of the 2017 Master
Agreement, the provision of private fund
management services shall be priced between
0.5% and 2% of the capital commitment or the
capital contribution of the partnership each year
(as determined under the respective partnership
agreements) which was determined by reference
to and in accordance with the prevailing
marketing prices offered by the other private fund
management companies for the same and similar
scope of services.
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(i)

Details of the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the 2017 Master Agreement
were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 8 September 2017 and in the
circular of the Company dated 25 September
2017.

On 18 November 2019, the Company and
Shougang Fund entered into a new private fund
management service agreement (the “2020
Master Agreement”) in respect of the provision
of private fund management services by the
Company and/or its subsidiaries to Shougang
Fund and/or its associates for a term commencing
from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2024.

The transaction amounts under the 2020 Master
Agreement during the term of the agreement will
not exceed the following annual caps:

(i)

2017 F A HRE T 2B ERE
RGHFHBEAEARRRN20174F
9A8HM AL K2017F9H25H
B 3/ EK 1A E (3 7R o

M2019F 11188 » ARRFI
WESRBEARE R LEK B
ARAAEMES R SHHEBEA
RHLEESBTIRRG I VA
e EERBHE ([20208 746
WeE])  FHH2020F1818
Z2024F12831H °

RipZFRA - 20206545 s
ATNZRSEEGTEBENAT
FELER:

For the year ending 31 December

BENANALEE
2020 2022 2023 2024
RMB RMB RMB RMB
AEH ARH AR AR AEH
Provision of private fund management services 358,000,000 701,000,000 851,000,000 924,000,000

RELZEESEERY

Pursuant to the 2020 Master Agreement, the
provision of private fund management services
shall be priced between either (i) 0.1% and
2% of the capital commitment or the capital
contribution of the partnership each year (as
determined under the respective partnership
agreements) for urban renewal related funds; or
(i) 0.5% and 2% of the capital commitment or
the capital contribution of partnership each year
(as determined under the respective partnership
agreements) for any other types of funds.

RIE2020F 47 & Wt - IRAEALEE
E & B8R A% ()3 1 5 37 A8
HECEBFRABLERBLE
BHEHLER (REAREZH
HET)Z01%E2% ;5 (i)Ht
FREMBENESTFRAEBD
ERBEEBENEHLER (IR
BRI&ZBEETE) 205%E
2%E(E -

Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited Annual Report 2019



(e)

Details of the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the 2020 Master Agreement
were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 18 November 2019 and in the
circular of the Company dated 28 November
2019.

Carpark operation contractor agreements and
carpark management agreement

As stated in the announcement of the Company
dated 1 November 2018 and in the circular of the
Company dated 28 November 2018, Urban Parking
(Beijing) Limited (B3 (Lt R)IEEEBER A A,
“Urban Parking Beijing”), became a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company upon completion of the
acquisition of the entire equity interest in Urban Parking
Beijing (i.e. on 28 December 2018) by Shouzhong
Investment, entered into (i) three carpark operation
April 2015 (the
“Carpark Operation Contractor Agreements”) with

contractor agreements dated 1

each of Beijing Chong Wen e New World Properties
Development Co., Ltd. (b RE 3t 7 = #h & %
BB MR~ 7, "Beijing Chongwen"), Beijing Chong
Yu Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (It EZ=HE
MEF % BR A A, “Beijing Chongyu”) and China
New World Electronics Ltd. (FEIFItt REFTER A
a], “China New World Electronics”), each of which
is a subsidiary of New World Development Company
Limited (“New World Development”), which in turn
is a substantial shareholder of the Company; and (ii)
a carpark management agreement dated 1 April 2018
(the “"Carpark Management Agreement”) with Beijing
Xianghe Property Management Co., Ltd. (3t R EEFI ¥ 2
B2 HR A A, “Beijing Xianghe”), a subsidiary of New
World Development.
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Pursuant to the Carpark Operation Contractor
Agreements, the initial term is 36 months commencing
on 1 April 2015 and expiring on 31 March 2018, after
which Urban Parking Beijing may opt to (and with
respect to the year commencing 1 April 2018, has opted
to) renew the respective Carpark Operation Contractor
Agreements for a successive period of one year each,
until 10 years from the date of the agreement, subject
to any framework agreement applicable to Urban
Parking Beijing and re-compliance with the Listing Rules
at the relevant time; and Urban Parking Beijing will
provide carpark operation services to Beijing Chongwen,
Beijing Chongyu and China New World Electronics
for different sections of the carparks in Beijing New
World Department Store Phase 1 and Phase 2 (”Beijing
Carparks”) in return for income from parking, car
detailing, rental fees in the car park, advertising revenue
and other service incomes subject to the following
payments of fees (the “Carpark Operation Contractor
Fees"):

1 April 2015 to
31 March 2017

H201554818 £2017%3 4318

RIEZSEESEEANE RS VE
HAPR &3618 B H2015F4A1HE R
2018F3H3 1R EMm  EREHESEIL
RARIE (RR2018F4A1HMABZF
EFEEB)RSHZSEESEEANR
@SB 1F  HEE W 0 EEs
10F AL EAXBERAREREEILR
AR HEZE % FT AR R IEA*ﬁF%Eﬁﬁ
BEMET EMARAZHRTE SHEEL
ﬁﬂ%ﬁibi%i~jt,?\m%§ﬂqﬂl%ﬁﬁi
AREFRZERNERFHAGE 8
ZHTRAMENEES ([ZELRE
BHig ) IRHEESEERY M= HE
HiL R B RBREREES  REXR
FEEHAe WA EE s REAmR
BB ETIFASZHER ([FEEE
EEANRTER])

Subsequent 2-year period
from 1 April 2017
2017F4B1BBHEMFH

Beijing Chongwen
EREX

RMB1,166,975 per year
ST ARE1,166,9757T

Beijing Chongyu
ERER

RMB1,900,000 per year
F4 AR¥1,900,0007T

China New World Electronics
AR BT R E

RMB733,025 per year
BF ARY733,0257T

Pursuant to the Carpark Operation Contractor Agreements,
the Carpark Operation Contractor Fees are subject to the
following annual caps:

1 April 2015 to
31 March 2017

1 April 2017 to
31 March 2019
201554A1BZ 201754R1HBZE

1 April 2019 to
31 March 2021
2019F4A1BZ 20215481HZE 2023F4R1BZ

Approximately 5% increase

F#A5%

Approximately 5% increase

F#A5%

Approximately 5% increase

F#H45%

BEZSEESLEARBBE FF
LEBEANBMERTNATFELRRE
%'J-

1 April 2021 to
31 March 2023

1 April 2023 to
31 March 2025

2017938318 2019§3A31H  202143A31H  2023F3A31H  2025%3A31H

RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB

A Vs AR AR AEH

Carpark Operation Contractor Fees 3,800,000 3,990,000 4,189,500 4,398,976 4,618,924

FESEEARBER
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(f)

Pursuant to the Carpark Management Agreement, its
term is 24 months commencing on 1 April 2018 and
expiring on 31 March 2020 and Beijing Xianghe will
be responsible for the management and maintenance
services of certain sections of the Beijing Carparks.
Urban Parking Beijing will pay to Beijing Xianghe a
monthly fee of RMB145,000, amounting to an annual
fee of RMB1,740,000 per year, which is also the annual
cap of this agreement.

Details of the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the Carpark Operation Contractor
Agreements and the Carpark Management Agreement
were disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 1 November 2018 and in the circular of the
Company dated 28 November 2018.

Operation right transfer agreement dated 11
January 2019

As stated in the announcement of the Company dated
11 January 2019, an operation right transfer agreement
between Shouxing Zhixing and Shouzhong Parking was
entered into on 11 January 2019 (the “Operation Right
Transfer Agreement”) for governing the continuing
connected transactions to be entered into between
Shouxing Zhixing and Shouzhong Parking. Pursuant to
the Operation Right Transfer Agreement, Shouzhong
Parking agreed to transfer to Shouxing Zhixing the
operation right in relation to the convenience facilities
and advertising spaces located in two parking buildings
in Beijing Daxing International Airport for an initial
term of three years commencing from 11 January 2019
to 10 January 2022 (the “Initial Term"),
extension by Shouxing Zhixing for another three-year

subject to

terms up to twenty years from the commencement date
of the Initial Term. In return, Shouxing Zhixing will pay
Shouzhong Parking an annual transfer fee representing
70% of the annual revenue generated from operation of
such convenience facilities and advertising spaces (the
“Annual Transfer Fee").
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The cap amounts of the Annual Transfer Fee for each of
the three years ending 10 January 2022 are as follows:

From 11 January 2019
to 10 January 2020
2019F1AN1MBE

From 11 January 2020
to 10 January 2021
2020F181MB &

HZE2022F1 8108 1L 23 EFEE SR B
MFEEEEBEHALRSBOT

From 11 January 2021
to 10 January 2022
2021F1AN1MBE

202018 10H 202118 10R 2022F1810R

HKS HK$ HKS$

B JB JB

Annual Transfer Fee 180,000,000 180,000,000 180,000,000

FEERER

The Operation Right Transfer Agreement and the
continuing connected transactions with Shouzhong
Parking thereunder would strengthen the Group’
s business of car parking facilities and investment
operation in the PRC with a focus on smart car parking
market and to expand the Group’s investment and
operation of airport parking building in the future.

Details of the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the Operation Right Transfer
Agreement were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 11 January 2019.

In accordance with rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules,
the continuing connected transactions as set out above
during the year have been reviewed by the Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company who have
confirmed that the transactions have been entered into:

(a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

(b) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) according to the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole.

RegEEhREEREENRFER
BRXHBRBANEEERBERNERER
EMENEEREEFMIREESL I
E—TEARRERRERGIFTERE
R EEE -

FHAREEEZHRETHFERER
SZFHBERARTBEA2019%1 A
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RAE AR RIS 14A 5506 - F 8 _EXCAT
P2 FHEBERZEAARFIELIEN
TEEEH UEIRIEEK:

(a) HEAKBOBEEXRBHEIL:

(b) BB ERGERIEEGRKE
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The Company’s auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers
("PwC"”) was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor's Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. PwC has issued an
unqualified letter containing findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group in the paragraph above in
accordance with rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions which were
undertaken in the normal course of business are set out in note
35 to the consolidated financial statements. For those related
party transactions that constituted connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions (as the case may be)
(other than those described in the section above headed
“CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS”) under the Listing Rules, such transactions
were fully exempt from shareholder’s approval, annual review
and all disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in
the Corporate Governance Report on pages 69 to 98 of this
annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL MATTERS

The Company's compliance with the relevant provisions set out
in the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules for the financial year ended
31 December 2019 are set out in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report on pages 141 to 231 of this annual report.

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu resigned as the auditor of the
Company and PwC has been appointed as the auditor of the
Company to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation
of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, both with effect from 1 August
2018.

Save as disclosed, there has been no other change in the
auditor of the Company in any of the preceding three years.

PwC will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A
resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting to reappoint PwC as the auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board
Zhao Tianyang

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2020
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. PREAMBLE

At present, the demand for parking in large and medium-sized
cities in China is increasing. Under the shortage of supply,
the impacts on people’s livelihood are beginning to appear.
The shortage of parking supply aggravates the problem of
illegal parking, causes traffic congestion and impairs the city’s
environment, urban development and life quality. Guided by
the scientific advancement of the planning of urban parking
facilities, taking the rational allocation of parking resources
as the core, regarding the orderly building of parking lots
as the guideline and setting the goals of reasonably guiding
traffic demands, Shougang Concord International Enterprises
Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Shougang
Concord” or “the Company”), as the first and only listed
company in the Mainland China that focuses on the investment
and operation of parking facilities, is committed to becoming
a pioneer and promoter of the parking industry, and actively
improving parking services to tackle the environmental and
social problems caused by parking supply in China. The
Group's urban renewal-oriented fund management business
is committed to the urban renewal as the main axis and
creating an experiential social-economic-natural complex
ecosystem to continuously upgrade the function and stimulate
the vitality of the city through the integration of regional
resources. In addition, the investment focus of this business
segment will consider the investment in new energy vehicle
parts and equipment manufacturing, which demonstrates the
emphasis of Shougang Concord on environmentally sustainable
development. The Group continues to build sustainability
through smart, large-scale, efficient and innovative operating
models, rapidly expanding its businesses while also fulfilling its
environmental and social responsibilities.

As the “Paris Agreement” and the United Nations 2030
Agenda for Sustainable Development continue to accelerate
the progress of global low-carbon development, climate
change has become one of the risks which the Group will
focus on and take necessary measures to respond to in the
next decade. The Group insists on constantly taking up
technological innovation, widening digital applications and
bringing positive impacts on climate change through premium

RE HERERERSE
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RE HERER®RSE

services and technological innovation. Through forward-looking
planning and construction, and intelligent management and
maintenance, the Group’s car parking segment actively lives up
to its responsibility to protect the environment of China and
makes contributions to delivering the commitments of global
sustainable development.

The Group lays great emphasis on its environmental, social and
governance (“ESG"”) management and policy implementation,
aiming to reduce the environmental impacts of its operations
and management of parking assets and urban renewal business
while adhering to its philosophy of “being a good corporate
citizen” and fulfilling its social responsibilities. The Group plans
to improve its internal management approach and forge a
sustainable corporate culture as its core by effectively making
use of its leading market layout, efficient capital operation
and robust operating management, integrating the three
elements of society, economy and environment into corporate
development strategies and establishing common values.

Robust economic

growth
MTAEEIER

Practising >
environmental
responsibilities |

BITIRIREE
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II. ABOUT THE REPORT

In strict compliance with the requirement under Appendix
27 — Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide ("ESG Guide"”) of Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("Stock Exchange”), the Group is pleased to present its ESG
Report (the “ESG Report”) for the financial year 2019, to
demonstrate the Group’s ESG management and corporate
sustainable development policies and performance for the
twelve months ended December 31, 2019 (“FY2019"). The
information disclosed in this ESG report was collected and
sorted through a variety of channels, including the Group's
policies, environmental and social datasheets, and the feedback
of internal and external stakeholders via surveys. The Group
refers to the GRI (Global Reporting Initiative) sustainability
reporting standards to improve the integrity, international
compatibility and industry comparability of the report. A
complete index of the content is given at the end of the
ESG report for readers to check its completeness. This report
has been prepared in both Chinese and English, and along
with the annual report published on the Group’s website at
https://www.shougang-intl.com.hk/en/.

Boundary Setting

The Group believes that clear reporting boundaries help
the Group’s stakeholders understand the timeliness of the
implementation of the Group’s ESG-related policies and allow
the Group to review, identify and evaluate the business and
its operational risks during the year under review. Under the
Operational Control Approach, the ESG report reveals the ESG
performance of the Group’s main businesses in FY2019, which
primarily covers the Group’s Hong Kong office, parking asset
operations and management business and urban renewal-
oriented fund management business.
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Reporting Principles

The Group believes that strictly sticking to the reporting
principles in the preparation of ESG reports is fundamental to
ensuring the accuracy of the reports and the validity of the
content. The ESG report collected, organised and disclosed data
based on the principles of ‘Materiality’, ‘Quantitative’, ‘Balance’

and 'Consistency’.

BE % R Al

A -

APPLICATION OF ESG REPORT PRINCIPLES

ESGHREERFAEM

AEBERSEESGHRE EFEBIETERBERE
WRAZHEARREEBREMATAERENR
Ko RESGHREREIER M) [81] - TF
gl A0 T —20M ) R AV BB 1T IR SR - B

The principle of Materiality
can measure the significance
of various ESG indicators to
the enterprise and emphasise
the important environmental
and social impacts in the
operations of the enterprise.
Stakeholders and business
operators can make informed
judgments and decisions
based on relevant information,
and take practical actions.
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The principle of Quantitative
can effectively help companies
understand the Group's
ESG performance in recent
years in numeric form. By
accurately quantifying the ESG
performance in various areas,
the Group and its stakeholders
can also benchmark it with the
industry’s best performance
for effective decision-making.
S/LRBITT AR BE B E A
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The application of the
principle of Balance can assist
readers to fully understand the
information about the Group’s

development and prevent
report issuers from concealing
the negative performance
intentionally or inadvertently.
Enterprises can also make
changes to the development
models and management
approach in sustainable
development in specific
areas in the future through a
comprehensive analysis of its
annual ESG performance.
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To ensure that the information
disclosure of the Group's
sustainable development can
utterly describe the Group's
genuine performance, the
consistency of reporting
method is a prerequisite for
achieving this goal. Through
the unification of calculation
methodologies of the
environmental data, reporting
framework, and disclosure
format, the comparability
and readability of corporate
ESG reports can be improved
substantially.
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Materiality:

In the ESG report, the Group incorporated the feedback from
stakeholders as part of the Group's considerations for strategic
decisions by conducting a materiality assessment of the
outcome and generating a materiality assessment matrix. The
materiality assessment identified a series of ESG-related issues
as the relatively important aspects to the Group, including
the participation in public welfare activities, systematic risk
management and energy use. In addition, the application of
the Materiality principle was also reflected in the setting of
reporting boundaries and the collection and organisation of
relevant environmental data. Regarding indicators under the
social subject, especially the information disclosure of product
responsibility, the ESG report selectively reported on the key
ESG information which the Group considered paramount.

Quantitative:

The 'Quantitative’ principle of the ESG report was mainly
shown in the ‘Emissions’ and ‘Use of Resources’ chapters
under the environmental subject, as well as the relevant
data organisation and disclosure of the performance in the
Group's employment, training, and community investment
under the social subject. The Group made further analysis of
the results of the initial quantitative data of greenhouse gas
(“GHG") emissions and displayed the amount of GHG emissions
generated from the Group's consumption of various energy
resources in operating regions during the year under review in
the form of Sankey Diagram.

Balance:

The Group followed the rule of ‘Balance’ in its ESG
performance disclosure to ensure that the correct and valuable
information can be delivered to its stakeholders. Adhering to
this principle, the Group fully evaluated the potential ESG-
and climate-related risks that it faced, effectively compared
the ESG performance in various areas of the Group with last
year, and disclosed the progress made and areas that needed
improvement, aiming to depict a complete and comprehensive
blueprint of the Group’s sustainable development for its
readers.
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Consistency:

The ESG expert team of the Group prepared the ESG report by
adopting the consistent principles for boundary setting, online
platforms for data collection, data accounting methods and
reporting processes. The Group made full explanations on the
different principles of statistics and calculation methodologies
that were adopted in the environmental and social subjects
through words, and was committed to improving the
consistency and comparability of the entire report with previous
ones.

lll. ABOUT THE GROUP

Listed on the main board of Stock Exchange in 1991,
Shougang Concord is one of the earliest Hong Kong red
chips. Its main businesses include car parking assets operation
and management business (“Carpark operation”) and
urban renewal-oriented fund management business (“Fund
management”).

Group goals

It is the mission of Shougang Concord to become the leading
listed company providing comprehensive urban services in
Hong Kong, being competitive in different economic circles
with healthy cash flows and well-established operations.
Shougang Concord is committed to creating maximum value
for shareholders and enabling investors to obtain rich returns.
It is also one of the Group's goals to be the best employer
that benefits employees who have no concerns when devoting
themselves to the enterprise.

Group history

Since 2017, the Group has been undergoing a transformation
with its main business changing to car parking assets
operation and management and urban renewal-oriented fund
management.

Strategic investor

The Group has a strong shareholder background, which
provides financial support and resource to Shougang Concord.
The major shareholders of the Group include Shougang Group
Co., Ltd. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries (“Shougang
Group”), NWS Holdings Limited and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries (“NWS"), ORIX Corporation and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries(”ORIX"), JD Digits and China International Marine
Containers (Group) Co., Ltd. ("CIMC").
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Resource Import

has started the industrial transformation in recent years
and provided Shougang Park as development resources for

Business Collaboration

Financial Services

Headquartered in Tokyo, Japan, it is one of the world’s largest
integrated financial services groups with branches in 36
countries and regions, covering dozens of fields in finance and
industry.

Technology coordination

Internet of Things and Blockchain, to establish and develop
core digital risk management, user operation, and corporate
service in B2B2C model.

Industrial Cooperation
As China’s first professional container production plant and

three-dimensional parking system business will be in
collaboration with the Company’s car parking business.

Group business

The Group has established a two-wheel-drive business
development model of “Industry + Funds” and is committed to
being the leading company in the Carpark operation and Fund
management in China.

New World Development Company Limited’s infrastructure NWS
and service flagship with operations in Hong Kong, Mainland %ﬁ- gu P
China and Macau.

%

one of the earliest Sino-foreign joint ventures, its automated CIMC
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IV. REPORT SUMMARY

4,200 PARKING SPACE IN THE PARKING
BUILDING OF BEIJING DAXING
INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT

4 7 K 52 ] B 4 $5.4,200 18 E {2

Beijing Daxing International Airport was officially
put into use on 25 September 2019, becoming an
important transportation hub for the Beijing-Tianjin-
Hebei integration and Xiong'an New District. The
parking lot in the new airport was built by Shougang
Concord with technological sense and thoughtful
services, and started operation since then.
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IV. BERE
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SECURITY MEASURES IN THE PARKING LOT
FESREREERE

To ensure service safety, the operation team regularly
performs emergency drills such as the failure of the toll
system, the prevention of typhoon and flood, and the
spontaneous combustion of vehicles.
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URBAN RENEWAL
W E

The Beijing International Talent Community project set
up a total fund of Renminbi 6 billion and cooperated
with the World's top industrial operator Tishman
Speyer to launch the large urban renewal complex.
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YOUTH DREAMER - PLAN S
DEERR- SEHEl

Everlove Foundation launched the project of Youth
Dreamer - Plan S, inviting 20 orphans from Jilin to
Beijing to pursue their dreams.
BRORBEARESCBRTOVFERRSHE  BFEKE
HARE920AZ A 52 2R B A A SHRAL IR A8 -
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ENVIRONMENTAL DATA SUMMARY BiEZHiEHEE

DN & =

8,665.8 19.0 6,542

Total GHG Emissions Total Air Pollutants Solid Waste
(tonnes CO,) (Sulphur Oxides, Nitrogen (tonnes)
ﬁlgﬁ%ﬁm%g Oxides and Partlc:late Matters) (kg) ﬁ%@ﬁ%
(=B E) ZRERY (HER)
(&Y - AECDRERN
Y) #E (T%)

T

58,630 9,871.2 17.6

Water Resources Consumption of Intensity of
Consumption Energy Resources Paper Consumption
(cubic metre) (Electricity and Gasoline) (MWh) (kg/employee)
KERHFER BRER (BEHMAM) HER HIRHFERE
(IZH3K) (FFE®H) (F=/&E)

SOCIAL DATA SUMMARY #22iEHE

Number of Employees Number of Training Participants
on 31 December 2019 of the Group in FY2019

372 #1-2019%12A318 352 —E-NABREEREESE
SEEBAH EINEEA

(T (D)

Training Hours of .
the Group in FY2019 22 5 Ratio of Male and
y Male 5 Female Employees
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V. SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY
AND MANAGEMENT

Governance Structure

To reduce the potential negative impact of the business
development of the Group on the environment and natural
resources, to improve the living standards of employees and
the communities where it operates, and to realise and create
the common value for stakeholders, the Board of Directors of
the Group (the “Board”) firmly takes sustainable management
approach across the organisation and resolutely implements
the sustainable development principles and policies raised
by the leaders who are believed to have a vital role to play.
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The Group insists on adopting an integrated ‘top-down’ and
‘bottom-up’ governance strategy for sustainable development.
The Board is responsible for overseeing corporate ESG-related
issues, formulating corporate sustainable development goals
and creeds, and ensuring that policies can be communicated
within the Group without barriers and effectively implemented
with concerted efforts of management and all departments.
To fully execute the strategy for sustainable development, the
Group assigns professional teams and staff to the formulation
of ESG policies, supervision and management, ESG information
disclosure and ESG report preparation of the Group. Relying
on its appropriate and robust sustainable development
management strategy and governance framework, the Group
is committed to continuously lowering its environmental
and social risks while enhancing the value of the enterprise.
It has fully carried out the three ‘build’ and one ‘expand’
principle, namely build future-oriented flagship products, build
differentiated products in the business, build delicate and
efficient operating systems and expand innovative space for
non-parking business, while supporting the improvement of
people’s living standards through people-oriented products
and services, intelligent solutions, and environmentally friendly
action plans, and moving forward to sustainable development.
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RE HERERERSE

Board
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e Formulate strategic plans for
sustainable development;

e Assess corporate internal ESG risks
and external market changes;

e Evaluate the Group's sustainable
development according to
international guidelines such as
TCFD.
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Sustainable Development Goals

The Group aims to play a leading role in the field of sustainable
development, especially in the business development of the car
parking assets operation and management and urban renewal,
the practice of the concepts of environmental protection
and community investment, and strives to take sustainable
development as one of the core corporate values. As a pioneer
and future leader in sustainable development, the Group
continues to develop more brand-new solutions for sustainable

‘Bottom-up' information report [ B i L] EE K&

Supervise and monitor the
execution of sustainability policies
in various business segments of the
Group;

Provide integrated solutions
to problems arising during the
execution of policies;

Set relevant metrics and goals, and
monitor the implementation of
policies and progress of targets.
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Complete the tasks of implementing
policies and missions;

Report to the management of

the Group on the difficulties and
experiences summed up during the
implementation of policies.
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development, running the enterprise and managing its supply

chain in a socially and environmentally responsible manner.
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VI. STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

INTERNAL STAKEHOLDERS
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RE HERERERSE
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Stakeholders include individuals or organisations that are
likely to be affected by corporate decisions and who can
promote and influence corporate development decisions to
make adjustments and reforms. Effective communications with
material internal and external stakeholders are essential for the
Group to adapt to the changing environment of the market
and improve its own business. An in-depth understanding of
the ESG issues that are of interest to stakeholders also helps
the Group to translate its commitment to environmental,
social and economic sustainable development into long-term
value creation. The Group maintains long-term and stable
communication with its stakeholders through various channels,
and regularly reviews and adjusts its ESG management policies
to meet the requirements of stakeholders.

The Group has maintained a good relationship and built a
platform with its stakeholders for sound communication,
responding to their concerns and expectations through the
following channels.

Suppliers
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The Public
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Professional
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Common communication channels

Stakeholder types

Major expectations and concerns

FzEEEER FEHENEBEY HREEER
Governments e Compliance with laws and regulations e Compliance with local regulations
and regulatory BRRER BT EMAREERANEE
authorities e Anti-corruption policies Routine reports and tax payment
TR R BE B 4 48 R B B R BRBENZNHRK
e Occupational health and safety
BERREL S
Shareholders e Investment returns Corporate reports
B 128 B % DERE
e Business management Company announcements
hEER hEAIE
e Business compliance General meetings
EBEMR (&N
Group's official website
SEE A
Employees e Salary and benefits of employees Performance appraisal of employees
i=4=] 1 B 8 F K F 4 Fl & B RBTE
e More charitable activities arranged by the Group to Meetings and training
help people from all walks of life &M
%%%?E%%%QE%@J’%E}J$@%J§E’UA Seminars
e Healthy and safe workplace HENRE
BEMRZZ2HTERR Emails, notice boards, hotline and various
¢ Training opportunities recreational and sports activities such as
HAREHE the Group's sports meet
B AR ARRESEL2EEEEYSS
XEEH
Customers e Product quality control Customer's satisfaction surveys
BE ERERER BEREERE
e Protection of customer’s privacy and rights Face-to-face meetings and onsite visit
H B TR A0 R 4R T %1 T /) =& =5 F1 3R 55 A
e Expectation of more quality services and parking Customer service hotline and emails
lots to customers BERBGRGIE T4
HETEREEERHEESEENRENEESH
Suppliers e Fair and transparent procurement Open tender
it JE 7S PEINCIOEA INCEY
e Win-win cooperations Supplier’s satisfaction survey
ERmAaE HERNEERE
e Environmental protection Telephone calls
RIFRE B
e Strengthening communication Face-to-face meetings and onsite visit
N 58 Bt B2 B T 39 T B9 & 5 RN 2R 35 3
Industry seminars
TEMRTE
Profes_sior_Ia| e Formulation of policies regulating the practice of Telephone calls
organisations employees and business activities B
HEAES RAR AR LR B K% 7 325 B B IR MO BUR 3 2 Questionnaires and online engagement
e Environmental protection and social responsibility SEY-chas £l
REREELSEME Meetings (informal or annual general meetings)
e Diversity of employees T GEEAHFERREAS)
ZREMABRE
The public ¢ Involvement of enterprises in community activities Press conference and inquiry response
NR HEEEHANFARAREENHS R 158 R E S AR (el fE
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To enhance the awareness of the enterprise and its stakeholders
on global sustainable development goals and progress, the
Group advocated the United Nations Sustainable Development
Goals (“SDGs") among its employees and external stakeholders
via questionnaires in 2019. According to the outcome of the
survey, the Group considered Goal 1, 2 and 4 as the SDGs
that were generally concerned by its stakeholders, and listed
the specific requirements and elements under each goal that
were closely related to the Group’s development as the premier
task of its sustainable development in the future and the
cornerstone of realising its corporate vision.

e Goal 1: No Poverty — “End poverty in all its forms
everywhere”

e Goal 2: Zero Hunger - “ End hunger, achieve food
security and improved nutrition, and promote sustainable
agriculture”

e Goal 4: Quality Education - “The access to quality
education is fundamental to improving people’s lives and
achieving sustainable development.”

RE HERERERSE
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Source: http://www.undp.org/content/undp/en/home/sustainable-development-goals.html

KR+ http://www.undp.org/content/undp/en/home/sustainable-development-goals.html

To respond to and address stakeholders’ concerns about
achieving the SDGs and align the Group’s business strategies
with the international standards and requirements, the Group
aims to make solid contributions to the global sustainable
development in the following areas:

ATORYEANGHEEHERAIFELER
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RE HERERERSE

Materiality assessment

BERMFME

INTERPRETATION OF MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT PROCESS & E # FHfh REZMEN

Board reviewing and
incorporating the outcome into
decision-making

ESEERAMARKER

Producing materiality
assessment matrix

R EE AR

Processing survey
results

BEHEREE

Communication via
online surveys

BRESAEBREER

The risks and opportunities involved in

corporate ESG

management vary from industry to industry and depend on
a range of factors including the company’s business model,
development direction and governance structure. The Group
makes an annual stakeholder review every year to identify the
main concerns and significant interests of its stakeholders on
the Group's ESG issues. In FY2019, the Group commissioned
an independent third-party agency to send invitations to
its material stakeholders who participated in the Group's
Stakeholder Materiality Assessment Survey. The Group selected
its internal and external stakeholders based on its influence
and dependence on the Group. The invited stakeholders
voiced their concerns on a series of ESG management-related
issues through corporate ESG questionnaires, which covered
a number of areas including the Group's environmental
impact, employment, supply chain management approach,
product responsibility management, enforcement of anti-
corruption policies, community investment, and leadership and
governance. The results of this survey assisted the Group to
effectively identify the material ESG matters, with which the
Group can manage its business more effectively.

158

Identification of
stakeholders
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Analysis of
stakeholders

FzAABIE DT

Selection of
stakeholders
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e Customer satisfaction

BEEmEE
e Selection of suppliers and Areas that have
evaluation standard of its been identified

products/services to be relatively

RE HERERERSE

e Anti-corruption policy and
whistleblowing procedures
REFHERBHRRIZ

e Protection of customer'’s
information and privacy

BEEAMMETLRE

e Prevention of bribery,

HEmREREER RBEN important Areas that have extortion, fraud and money-

s R L to external been |den_t|f|ed laundering
e Social risk assessment of stakeholders to be vital Py IEBRER - BhR - MERAER
suppliers only 150 B 38 5 #
HEE L g R TG 8 At+oEE e Product/service health and
e Procurement approach B 1% B B 2 By &1 = safety
1R 1 15 2 5 5B A 2 48 B2/ RBRENZS
mERHER e Systematic risk management
R R LE R E R
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Through this materiality assessment, the Group ranked the 18
sustainable development issues accordingly. This survey also
helped the Group to prioritise and allocate more resources
to the research of relevant sustainable development issues,
which, in the meantime, allowed the Group to elaborate its
performance under certain subjects in the ESG report.

e Public welfare and
philanthropy
N ME=E

BB RE R DT A KBRS 181E AT
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VIl. PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY
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Team collaboration
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Learning and training
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Quality matters
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Customer first
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Outcome-oriented

R [

Full of passion

FmEtE

Open and inclusive
FRER

Embrace changes

2t

Loyalty and devotion

BHER

Regarding the health and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy of the Group’s products and services, the Group
complied with relevant laws, regulations and standards in China
in FY2019, including:

Product Quality Law of the People’s Republic of China;
e Fire Control Law of the People’s Republic of China;

e Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Protection of
Consumer Rights and Interests;

e Interim Provisions on the Construction and Management of
Parking Lots;

e Measures of Beijing Municipality for Management of Parking
Motor Vehicles;

e Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486 of the Laws of
Hong Kong); and

e Information security technology—Personal information
security specification (GB/T35273-2017), etc.
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Given the characteristics of the Group’s businesses, the quality
of products/services, health and safety, and the protection of
customers’ privacy are considered to be the relatively important
aspects of the Group's product responsibilities.

Car Parking Assets Operation and Management Business

Since Shougang Concord officially launched its transformation
of business in 2017, it has embarked upon the Carpark
operation and Fund management, reduced and gradually
divested itself of traditional businesses, and fully entered the
city’s comprehensive service industry. With the acceleration
of urbanisation in China, the demand for parking in cities is
increasing and the impact of insufficient parking supply on
people’s livelihood has emerged. Car parking problems are
currently the major barriers in the management of large and
medium-sized cities in China. The huge gaps between the
demand for and the supply of parking spaces have become the
primary issue for large and medium-sized cities in China.

RE HERERERSE

ENAEBENEBEH ER/ RENEE -
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A SERIES OF PROBLEMS THE PARKING INDUSTRY OF CHINA IS FACING CURRENTLY
BRIFEEFEETEREE - RIEE

A Rapid increase of cars in China /

and there were 66 cities in which the number of vehicles surpassed
1 million. Notably, the number of vehicles in Beijing and Chengdu
exceeded 5 million.

FEAEREEAERER BHERAEE BEHEEERS
In June 2019, the number of vehicles in China reached 250 million e Lagging plan for parking investment;

e Insufficient land resources leading to intensive applications;

e Many obstacles in city parking development, such as the property
restriction of stock land, complex procedures of fire control
approval, long investment cycle and so on.

\ Imbalanced urban development causing
many barriers in city parking

development of parking lots

FESHEETERITER

20196 A PEITEREEDE25EH  MTEHEBBI00ETH o EHEREHBILE:
W ae6(E i METERA S RIEIBS00EH - o THVERERMESLLER:
e WHMEFEBHEMNERS fINMEFEIHmEENRE B EILEE
REBHRERE-
Low-efficiency and imbalanced E Mismatching of parking spaces and

vehicle number

FERANRAEFEFITE

e |solated information about parking lots and inefficient utilisation of
parking spaces;

e Lack of standardisation and efficiency of the management in
parking lots, resulting in the difficulty to meet the demand for
parking and taking cars.

s FESERINE EMERTEERUIA:
o FEBEEERETAE WEXE BEAFNBREEMEFK -

At present, the average ratio of cars and parking spaces in large
cities in China is about 1:0.8, and in small and medium cities is
about 1:0.5, while in developed countries, the level is 1:1.3. The gap
between parking demand and parking spaces in China exceeds 50
million, and one in six neighbourhoods in the country is facing the
problem of parking spaces insufficiency.

BATREBI AWM/ TR REEM AT H49/51:0.8 - F/IMRT O R
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RE HERERERSE

To solve the problem of scattering, weakness, small scale and
low operational efficiency of the car parking industry, the
Group, from a professional standpoint, provides integrated
solutions for the control of regional static traffic and smart car
parking facilities, thereby improving the operational efficiency
of both static and dynamic traffic management in the region.
To accelerate the layout of the parking industry, the Group'
s parking business focuses its efforts on the principles of
urban core areas and premium parking spaces, and the sub-
markets including airports, hospitals, shopping malls, office
buildings and roadsides, seeking high-quality and high-yield
operating projects.
been completed and the Group has entered into agreements

Beijing Daxing International Airport has

with model projects in the industry such as Shanghai Honggiao
Airport, Guiyang Longdongbao International Airport, China-
Japan Friendship Hospital in Beijing and Beijing Station.
The Group has accumulatively acquired more than 70,000
parking spaces. Meanwhile, the Group continues to explore
the intelligent parking lots and retrofit existing parking
spaces. Taking the China-Japan Friendship Hospital project as
an example, the Group reconstructed the hospital’s original
parking lot, which can provide 520 parking lots, representing
an increase of 53% as compared with the previous one. After
the effective planning and reconstruction of the parking lot, the
traffic speed of the main roads around the hospital has been at
least doubled during peak hours, and the average waiting time
of vehicles has been reduced by 80%.
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THE VALUE OF INTELLIGENT PARKING EE{tEFEWNEE

o © o o6 o

Promote
Ease urban collaboration
traffic of modern Improve urban
Solving parking congestion services Environmental public safety
difficulties B4R (B benefits BT
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the parking lot
information, to
effectively ramp up

wandering for spaces
by means of parking
space guidance

planning, thereby
lowering carbon

to improve the
capability of vehicle

the utilisation of the  soer/=wmymig=gf;  development of the emissions detection and ensure
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Through the investment and operation of parking assets,
the Group has achieved product upgrades, management
empowerment and increased service value, to provide users
with better services and thus obtain good returns from assets.
The Group adheres to the principle of ‘investment in key cities,
core locations and quality parking spaces’. For the layout of
investment region, it has continued to focus on domestic first-
tier and second-tier key cities; for product types, the Group
has concentrated on investing in large transportation hubs,
public facilities with high density, and auxiliary parking assets
of commercial property with large traffic, and has already
achieved an edge.

AEEBRBFEEENREMEE BREM
T EEEEMRBIEE RRPRHEL
MRS EMESRIFNEERS FERK
ERAEEHET ROMNE BEBMHRE -
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RE HERERERSE

The Group is also committed to comprehensively improving
the quality of parking services and has launched a five-star
service system, while continuing to enlarge the scope of its
investment in the parking technologies. The Group provides
users with unified and efficient parking services through a
smart, standardised and large-scale operational model. The
Group has also upgraded the project equipment and systems,
and made breakthroughs in the research of an advanced SONIC
operation management system. Relying on the SONIC parking
system, the Group can make use of the ‘Al + big data + mobile
payment algorithms’ to deeply integrate itself with the owner’s
membership system, develop abundant travel-related products
such as parking space reservations, service reservations and
points redemption, and fully explore the value of its parking
lots.

REENBNREZEBAFERBEDE  BE
FERBRER RSFENKEEERENE
ANE - AEBEBBEZ( BE{L FEL
RELERANERERHEST— sk =ER
B AEBMTEHBERNRZENRFETARKR
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EBISONICIE B R - BBAI+ R E R+ B B
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Combine various commercial patterns,

release the vitality of

parking assets and increase the level of income

HEBEEERE  BREEEEED  EAAREKT

Innovative non-parking
business

FEERIZT

Competition
strategy

R R

Rational allocation of assets, the asset
structure is conducive to the expansion
of business scale and to maintain the
level of asset returns

RELEAERE  SEARMEH
REBRIERER - XAFRERFEE
Y27k

Rational
allocation of
assets

BEEAERE
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In the development and operation of high-quality and smart
parking hardware facilities, the Group continuously enhances
its software performance and is committed to providing
customers with the best services. The Group's parking lot
in Beijing Daxing International Airport provides a number of
humanised measures, such as parking reservations, online car-
hailing zones and valet parking. There are numbers of parking
spaces only for female drivers. In addition to the exterior design
that caters to women, the parking space is more spacious
as well. The Group has allocated vast amounts of resources
to service management, including the regular training of
employees, formulation of service standards, implementation of
service appraisals and customer satisfaction surveys. To ensure
the stability of the intelligent parking system, the Group has

adopted various measures, including:
e Select software vendors with sufficient development
experience, and standard, high-quality hardware vendors

with a high-grade reputation in the market;

e Upgrade and maintain hardware and software systems in a
timely manner;

e Assign specific staff to manage the update and maintenance
of the software and hardware; and

e Emergency management by onsite personnel.

RE HERERERSE
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B HBREARS

The parking building of Beijing Daxing International Airport, 75 E##R AEITRO4L 7oA HE B 45 (B2
which was newly commissioned by the Group, provides free 1R B EFEEERE HARKENEETE
parking guides that encompass the transport information of HEBEMEE 2 WEZENECRES
Beijing Daxing International Airport, the division of each floor, Z & THEEFR  BEFIREFEEHN - FE -
the charging standards and special services which are user AEESEEZUBHEYBERAETE  BIEML
friendly to customers. In the meantime, the parking lot of RFE EARDEMI6EFT L&Y LU RAR
Beijing Daxing International Airport has been designed based #EEERREEEBEIMNGH T ERLTSHEDIE
on the motifs of animals and plants, including the images of 2 ARMBREFEASHYNESEHE -

16 species of wild animals on the pillars in different zones and

pictures of the endangered animals and plants in China on the

glass exterior wall at the service area of each floor, which are

used for the education of the protection of wildlife.
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To ensure the operation safety of parking lots, the Group has
implemented policies for internal management, including the
‘Implementation Standards for Car Park Traffic Safety Facilities
and Signs’ and 'Parking Lot Safety Management Regulations’,
providing instructions for the traffic safety, fire control safety,
protection against burglars, information security and order
maintenance in the parking lot. The Group has laid emphasis
on the details of parking management, especially the staff in
inspection/guidance post in performing their duties, in order
to guarantee the effectiveness and safety of the Group's
parking lot operations, which reflects the experience and
professionalism of the Group in parking lot management.

RE HERERERSE
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o Staff in inspection post and guidance post should guide vehicles in place
in time and ensure that vehicles are parked in an orderly manner. The
Group regulates that no more than 10 vehicles are allowed to be not in
place at the same time each day and 95% of vehicles enter and leave
the parking lot for no more than 3 minutes;

e The work of constructing, renovating or displacing the relevant
equipment and facilities of the parking lot should be fenced;

¢ |n the event of vehicle accident, the staff in inspection post and
guidance post should arrive at the scene within 2 minutes for onsite
management and guiding vehicles;

o Staff in inspection post and guidance post should strictly abide by all
operating procedures, and carry out inspections in accordance with the
regulated mobile inspection frequency and routes; and

e When suspicious person is found by the staff in inspection post and
guidance post, it is necessary to make an inquiry and hand over the
person to the police and keep record.
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RE HERERERSE

The Group's car parking business segment requires its
employees to master the knowledge of fire control and
understand what the hazards of fires are, how to prevent
fires, how to extinguish fires, when to call the police, how
to use firearms and how to put out a fire in the beginning.
Meanwhile, the Group has defined clear responsibilities of the
staff that are in charge of safety in various departments, to
effectively ensure the safety of the operating processes.

AEBEFEERBERETIAREEBHLZEA
BoMEZE=g BEAKNEEL BFR
Br NS RN R A @ RE EAK
KNEg - BB N - [IE - N6 B 5 & 0PI
RE2AEEANBEELAEE R AARRE
AEBELEBENLT R

e Implement the regulations of fire control and master the fire control
information of the department;

e Cooperate with firefighters to carry out the inspections of fire

prevention measures;

e |dentify the risks of fires, make rectifications and report problems that
cannot be solved in time;

e Strictly follow the fire permit regulation (fire application sheet is

THE DUTY OF STAFF FOR

provided by firefighters); and

FIRE CONTROL SAFETY e Organise employees in the department to attend training courses about

HEZ2REEANRE

fire control knowledge, and urge employees in the department to

conduct inspections on fire prevention.

o BERHITHIER ZEAMMKBEH L 21BN

o BERIEM ABETH ARERLKE

o REFBBANKIZE  RREN - TREAIRMNE K R RER

o BRMITBIANEAGIE (BARFEHHEHERME) K

o MBAEIFIR THEITEM AREE - BRAAFIE THEITH AR -

The Group regularly checks the parking system to detect
any system failures and replace malfunctional equipment.
The Group places safety signs in dangerous areas to remind
people of being careful about the potential danger. In order to
prevent the parking system from the breakdown or responding
to the contingency, the Group has set up clear management
regulations on how to deal with malfunctions and temporary
chaos, and established complete response procedures, such
as 'Parking Lot Emergency Plan’, ‘Emergency Plan for Traffic
Congestion’, 'Emergency Plan for Vehicle Oil Leaking Incident,
‘Emergency Plan for Damages on Parked Vehicle’, "Emergency
Plan for Handling Accidents in Parking Lots’, ‘Emergency Plan
for the Weather with Ice and Snow’, ‘Emergency Plan for Fault
Reports on Tolling Equipment’ and ‘Emergency Plan for Fire
Accidents’, to ensure the smooth and efficient operations of
parking lots. The procedures include but are not limited to:
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e Onsite staff actively guide vehicles to enter and exit during
emergencies;

e Make explanations and coordination to appease the drivers
to minimise the impact;

e Provide clear guidelines on how to respond to fires,
including measures on fire prevention, fire-fighting methods
for different substances, fire escape, buddy aid and

emergency treatment;

e Inspect and fix system problems by technical staff in a timely
manner;

o Effectively replace the malfunctioned equipment with new
one;

e Realise the rapid response to all problems in the parking
lot within 24 hours in the customer service and monitoring
centre in some parking buildings; and

e Ask for the support from governmental departments in time
based on incident development.

In terms of the application of innovative technologies, the
Group has continuously tapped the potential of smart parking
services. By integrating digital tickets, license plate recognition
and parking software applications, it provides car owners with
parking services that are intelligent, cloud-based and efficient
in management improvement. The 4,238 parking spaces of
the parking building of Beijing Daxing International Airport
that was completed and delivered during the year have 630
charging spaces and are equipped with nearly 10,000 square
metres area full of convenient service facilities. It is worth
noting that AGV intelligent parking equipment has been
introduced on the first floor of the parking building and applied
in a total of more than 100 parking spaces. AGV intelligent
parking equipment can increase the parking space efficiency by
30%, which can significantly enhance the parking experience
for passengers.

RE HERERERSE
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RE HERERERSE

V.

The Group values its customers and has formulated and
implemented a series of internal policies to collect customers'
suggestions, focussing on optimising the customer service. In
addition to setting up a 24-hour service hotline, the Group has
stressed the communication with customers in its parking lot
management. Buttons are installed in the parking buildings of
the Group’s Beijing Daxing International Airport, with which
drivers can communicate with the staff of customer service
at any time. By building a barrier-free channel, the Group can
engage itself with its customers, understand their thoughts
and opinions on its services, and resolve the issues that its
customers are most concerned promptly. As such, the Group
has formulated comprehensive procedures and guidelines for
handling user complaints while helping the Group to more
effectively address customers’ concerns and suggestions
for improvement. The Group has strictly implemented the
internal policies of ‘Services and Complaints’ and set up clear
procedures for handling complaints about equipment, service
quality and service attitude, and emergencies.
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RE HERERERSE

GENERAL PROCESS FOR DEALING WITH CUSTOMER’S COMPLAINT

BREEFRHFHN—

Identify the root of
the problem after
analysis and respond
to clients actively and
inform them of
problem-solving
measures
RPN - it
BB - AR
CEEP  &FHE
BRIZPE

Let clients finish talking
before explaining

Should not argue or T2 7 RESCR

ignore clients BEEEHRT

TAHRRFHEEFYR

FETS Judgement

and handling
¥ B R 12

Listening and
recording

IREREERC R

A

The Group stringently abides by the laws on customer privacy
to ensure that the rights and interests of its customers can be
strictly protected. Customers’ data (including the information
about license plate number, vehicle model, parking market,
etc.) should be carefully managed. Data in the system should
be encrypted and access permissions should be set to strictly
restrict personnel from accessing certain data. Staff with no
necessity of data should be prohibited from accessing related
information. The Group strictly complies with the national
electronic data management regulations and all personal data
collected from customers in the course of business is considered
confidential. It is strictly forbidden to provide customer data to
third parties without the customer’s authorisation. The Group
has built a data safety protection system to classify and ensure
the security of personnel information, equipment information
and other information. The Group has educated its employees
to raise awareness of data breaches and signed confidentiality
agreements with employees. The IT department has installed a
protection system between the office network and the business
network to prevent unauthorised use, export and duplication of
data.

Returning visits is

for repairing the
relationship with clients
and compensating
clients' loss
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Returning
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Summarise the
experience and discuss
the incident seriously
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visits

Bl 3

‘ Customer First and
Professional Service
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RE -HgkER

®E

PROTECTION OF CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION # % {5 B R &

PERSONNEL
INFORMATION
SECURITY

ABEERE

No one is allowed to divulge
personal information such as the
name, contact information, license
plate number, and home address of
relevant airport leaders and other
relevant personnel. No one shall
arbitrarily disclose the company's
trade secrets, information about
parking lot personnel, etc.

EQUIPMENT
INFORMATION
SECURITY

REEERR

Computers for tolls must not be
connected to other devices without
permissions. The charge information
shall not be copied at will, and the

transmission is strictly prohibited.

Office computers are strictly
forbidden to be used by external
personnel.

OTHER INFORMATION
SECURITY

HitER2E

No one is allowed to shoot airport-
related video materials in closed
areas. When a major emergency

occurs, no information can be
released to the media, websites,
social platforms, etc. without
the consent of the person in
charge of the project and relevant
departments. The disclosure of
other confidential documents and
information related to the airport is
prohibited.
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At the beginning of the year 2020, the combat against
coronavirus hit the ‘pause button’ for most industries. The
coronavirus epidemic is a critical problem faced by the whole
nation. Being the operator of the parking lot of Beijing Capital
International Airport and Beijing Daxing International Airport,
the Group has actively fulfilled its social responsibilities as a
state-owned enterprise. While launching a reduction and free
of charge policy, the Group ensures the effective protection and
control work during the epidemic in two parking lots, thereby
creating safe and convenient parking space for everyone and
rewarding customers with practical actions.
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Urban Renewal-Oriented Fund Management
Business

The Group adopts the real estate financial model of “funds
+ bases + industries” to participate in the development,
management, operation, and exit of industrial entities.
Controlling the shareholding or investing in the enterprises
in the old industrial zone will lead to the concentration
of high-end industries. The investment focuses on the car
park-based infrastructure and the renovation of old parks.
Meanwhile, it will consider investments in healthcare-based
consumer upgrades, new energy auto parts and equipment
manufacturing, as well as the cutting-edge technologies.

In the project of Beijing International Talent Community, the
Group set up a total fund with the scale of 6 billion and
received a total investment of 2.4 billion from the National
Social Security Fund, which was the first investment of the
National Social Security Fund in the field of urban renewal. The
international talent community will cover a plethora of areas
such as hotels, apartments, commercial buildings and offices,
and will introduce global business resources and partners to
jointly create complex properties with international quality, thus
becoming a talent gathering region in the west of Beijing.
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B HAREARE

The large-scale urban renewal complex launched by the world’s top industrial operator Tishman Speyer - Beijing Winter
Olympic Plaza project ‘Six Gong Hui’ has been fully under construction. It is expected to be put into use in the year 2021
and will be the first large commercial complex to serve the Beijing Winter Olympics and surrounding citizens. The Group
will integrate industrial heritage and future space, create a dynamic cluster of the development of enterprises and provide
people with a unique experience. After the completion of the project, it will become a city landmark with global influence
as a demonstration to the world.

BAURBEREXELHAMPIELOREBETERGRAR — — ERKXRES" NTE" ER2HEMATER  A5t12021
FRAER BRARBAFRLRGIAETROEEALIXRGEE - AMAB IREAMRKETETRS  EXLR RS
NOBERBERER SAME/KESNER AERTREXSEFERTHEZMEE N TR -

CASE STU DY OF Qiaomengyuan project is the first landmark project in which the Group has been deeply

involved in the development of the park, and has opened a new chapter for the company
URBAN RENEWAL to participate in the development, construction and operation of the park. Through trustee
#EEFHE%E;%@“ leasing, the original office building was renovated and the income was obtained through

investment promotion and project operation. The total floor area of the building is 10,000
square metres and the reconstruction has now been completed, laying a foundation for the
development, construction and operation of the second phase of World Overseas Chinese
Businessmen Innovation Centre. In 2018, the ‘Shougang Office Building’ turned into
Shougang - Qiaomengyuan gorgeously, ushering into a new role positioning. Shougang -
Qiaomengyuan is dedicated to creating a scientific research home for overseas academicians
and experts, a service platform of technological Winter Olympic industry, Shougang Park
industrial service window, high-end industrial transfer and transformation centre, Jingxi
industrial activity centre. It now has become the window displaying New Shougang Park to the
external world and the platform for resource connectivity.
BEREARASERELRARMAENE —BFHELE
B ARTRARZEARME 2R ELRBENTREE -8
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In FY2019, the Group was in compliance with relevant laws and R-ZT— W FHF KEELEERERTAEH
regulations regarding health and safety, advertising, labelling ZAEEERZMRENBEEILET 2 BEE EZ£5
and privacy matters of its products and services that have a MEFLEEFHNMEEARNIER -

significant impact on the Group.
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Vill. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

Employment

RE HERERERSE
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SHOUGANG CONCORD TALENT MANAGEMENT PRINCIPLES
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KEEP IMPROVING THE TALENT MANAGEMENT SYSTEM IN THREE AREAS
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technical and highly skilled talents

e Keep improving the key talents development system

e Keep improving the management system of leaders

e Keep improving the promotion system of scientific and

e THITERAEAREERER
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KEEP FACILITATING THE TALENT MANAGEMENT INNOVATION IN FOUR AREAS
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e Keep facilitating the innovation of talent investment mechanism o 7 Ef # ) A A % A H &l 57
 Keep facilitating the innovation of talent acquisition mechanism o ZNET#EE) A 4 5] 3 # 5 A 3T
o Keep facilitating the innovation of talent training mechanism o TETHEE) AT BB WG RIFT
e Keep facilitating the innovation of talent incentive mechanism o TNERHEED A T BRI Al ET
PROMOTING THE EFFECTIVENESS OF TALENT MANAGEMENT IN FIVE AREAS
REFZFEAZT TERBEY
’ e Talent concept can be widely recognised o ATESBIREZRE

e The overall quality of the talent team can be improved steadily » AABREBRELNESB LIRS

@  The research and innovation ability of talent team can be o AN BR R AT A8 T BT g 58

enhanced continuously

e The capability of talent team can be demonstrated
continuously

e Break the record in skill competitions

The Group believes that employees are the power source
of motivation for achieving sustainable development. The
Group cherishes talents and regards them as the Group’s
most valuable asset and the key to its success and stability. It
insists on integrating people-oriented management philosophy
with innovative mechanisms and has built close relationships
with employees based on mutual trust and support through
diversified and humanised management. The Group respects
and protects the legitimate rights and interests of its
employees, pays attention to the health and safety of its
employees, provides a broad platform for employees’ career
development, forges a corporate culture with a sense of
belonging, and creates a positive, healthy, proactive and safe
working environment for all employees.

e ATBBENTHER

o REEBEMBELIER

AEERREERERAFBEERNP IR
FR-AKERPRAS QERAEEREEN
BEMESHAKEKI RIBTENRER  BR§
MABANERESRAFEGEEE BB
ZTAEMAE(EER BETEY TEYNE
FEROAXKNEAER BEMREEIMNAZX
Ba BIBTHWRELZE RETIBERR
REEANTE TEAEREBRNAEX
o - RETRIETRES @F X8 2201
fEIRHE -

BREBREMCEEGRAR 2019F®% 175



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE HERERERSE

Law compliance

Since its inception, the Group's employment policy has been
continuously updated and amended to adapt to social changes
and comply with relevant laws and regulations. During FY2019,
the Group has abided by relevant laws and regulations in
Mainland China and Hong Kong, including the following:

e labour Law of the People’s Republic of China;

e Employment Promotion Law of the People’s Republic of
China;

e Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China;

e Social Security Law of the People’s Republic of China;

e Regulations on Labour Security Supervision;

e Provisions of the State Council on Employees’ Working Hours
e Provisions on Minimum Wages;

e Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong);

e  Minimum Wage Ordinance (Cap. 608 of the Laws of Hong
Kong);

¢ Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cap. 485 of
the Laws of Hong Kong); and

e Sex Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 480 of the Laws of Hong
Kong).

The Group has also complied with laws and regulations
regarding employee’s social security schemes that are
implemented by local governments in Mainland China in terms
of the employee benefits. In accordance with the latest laws
and regulations, the Human Resources Department of the
Group is responsible for reviewing and updating the relevant
policies within the company on a regular basis.
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Staff Structure

As at December 31, 2019, the Group had a total of 372
employees in Mainland China and Hong Kong, including 225

male employees and 147 female employees.

RE HERERERSE

BT#HE
HIEZ2-_ZTE—NF+-_A=+—H8 A£BR
FEAEBEEEEEINEET EHEE

T225 B T147 -

OVERVIEW OF STAFF STRUCTURE IN SHOUGANG CONCORD B REIME T &£ EHE

Female staff
ZET

Male staff
58T

Recruitment and promotion

The Group selects employees with discretion through
recruitment activities including social recruitment, campus job
fair, partnership with headhunters, internal recommendation
and other recruitment approaches, and formulates an annual
recruitment plan to clarify the number of employees, vacant
positions and requirements of the candidate. During the
recruitment process, the Group strictly conforms to internal
policies and considers the applicant’s personal ability,
professional qualifications, work experience and current market
level as the most important decision-making factors, and
strives to provide candidates with an open, fair, transparent
and standard environment for hiring excellent employees. The
Group also refers to market standards and internal ‘Employee
Manual” for employee promotion, providing an appropriate
promotion platform for qualified employees who have shown
outstanding performance and development potential in
their positions. Employees who perform well and meet the
promotion criteria can be recommended via a promotion
report from their supervisors. By improving the remuneration
system and career path, the Group is expected to establish
a comprehensive incentive mechanism based on physical,
mental, feeling-based and growth motivations to maintain a
harmonious and stable employment relationship.
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Compensation and dismissal

Shougang Concord will firmly shape the flattening organisation
to reduce internal levels, ensuring the sensitivity, flexibility
and synergy of the organisation. In the meantime, the Group
has formulated a compensation system and value sharing
mechanism in line with the market-oriented reform direction.
The Group has established and implemented the compensation
system based on a fixed salary and a performance-oriented
floating salary system. The Group performs regular appraisals
of its in-service employees based on their working abilities,
performance, market benchmark and corporate budgets to
encourage employees with contributions. The Group also
releases bonuses based on the performance of employees and
develops stock option plans to motivate key management
personnel who have made giant contributions to the company
in years. The Group strictly prohibits any unfair or unreasonable
dismissal under the dismissal procedures stipulated in the
employment management policy of the ‘Employee Manual’. For
employees who have violated the Group’s employment policies,
the Group verbally warns them before issuing a warning letter.
For those who remain untamed despite repetitively making the
same mistakes and being advised, the Group will terminate
their employment contracts in accordance with relevant
national laws and regulations.
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Working hours and rest periods

The Group has set up policies in accordance with local
employment laws to strictly control employees’ working
hours and rest periods. The internal policies and working
time attendance system of the Group control the working
hours of each employee and ensure the Group's compliance
with relevant local laws and regulations. For employees who
work overtime, the overtime pay or additional leave benefits
can be provided. In addition to the basic paid annual leave
and statutory holidays stipulated by the local governments,
employees are also entitled to extra leave benefits, such as
marriage leave, maternity leave, compassionate leave and
private affair leave.

Equal opportunity and anti-discrimination

As an equal opportunity employer, the Group believes that it is
of paramount importance to create a fair, respectful and diverse
working environment by promoting anti-discrimination and
equal opportunity in all its human resources and employment
decisions. To forge a working environment with diversity and
inclusiveness, the Group requires that all employees should
respect each other regardless of position level, background,
gender or age, and eradicate any discrimination, harassment
or assault in work. The Group keeps standardising its
daily corporate practice and eliminating any activity that
might violate the principles of equal opportunity and anti-
discrimination. The training and promotion opportunities,
dismissals and retirement policies are based on factors
irrespective of the employees’ age, sex, marital status,
pregnancy, family status, disability, race, colour, descent,
national or ethnic origins, nationality, religion or any other
non-job related elements. Employees are highly encouraged
to report any incident involving discrimination to the Human
Resource Department by the Group. The Human Resource
Department holds responsibilities for assessing, dealing with,
recording and taking any necessary disciplinary actions on the
relevant staff.
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Other benefits and welfare

To increase its employees’ sense of belonging, the Group has
provided its employees with a variety of benefits including
annual physical examinations and abundant holiday gifts. To
build stronger bonds with its employees, the Group held a
series of events in 2019 to relieve the stress of its employees,
including sports meet and employee conference organised by
the group. The Group believes that the effective development
of team building activities can help employees gain the courage
and confidence to achieve goals without fear of difficulties,
establish a down-to-earth and dedicated work attitude and the
sense of ownership, enhance the cohesion of the entire team
and improve its competitiveness in the industry. The Group
makes use of social media, e-mails, meetings with managers
and notice boards to maintain good communication between
the management and junior staff, which allow the Group to
garner a better understanding of the ideas and needs of its
employees more effectively.
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SHOUGANG CONCORD TEAM
ACTIVITIES
RS U SE )

In FY2019, the Group actively arranged and
participated in various sports and cultural exchange
activities, aiming to develop a positive attitude
for employees in their spare time and promote its
employees to realise self-improvement through
teamwork and learning of the spirit of perseverance
in sports. Meanwhile, the Group held a conference for
all employees during the year to praise outstanding
individuals and groups.
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Health and safety

The Group has strictly abided by the relevant safety and
health-related laws and regulations in Mainland China and
Hong Kong, such as the ‘Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases,
the ‘Regulation on Work-Related Injury Insurance’ and
‘Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Cap. 509 of the
Laws of Hong Kong)’, and continuously improved the operating
conditions and ensured the health and safety of employees.
The Group has also visualised and regionalised its security
management with networking tools. Specifically, the Group
clearly displays accurate safety signs within its operational
regions, sets up fences and access control in hazardous areas,
equips employees with tools and protective materials that meet
safety standards, and provides them with training, guidance
and supervision of correct use. The Group is committed
to comprehensively creating a clean and tidy working
environment, prohibiting smoking and drinking alcohol in the
workplace, and striving to build a healthy and good working
atmosphere for all employees.

The Group also arranges a series of training courses on
occupational safety and health to enhance employees’
awareness of safety protection. The Group requires the
principals in each parking lot to follow the requirements of
national laws and regulations on occupational hazards and
organises them to receive the occupational health training
regularly, including emergency management, handling
hazardous materials and occupational health and safety. The
Group also supervises the formulation and implementation
of the health management system and operating procedures
in the daily work, and regulates the protective measures
by employees through regular emergency drills. In case of
occupational hazard accidents, the Group should promptly
report to the local production safety supervision and
management department, and organise all departments to
take effective measures rapidly to reduce or eliminate the
occupational hazards and prevent the deterioration of accident.
The Group has experts in occupational safety management,
who are responsible for studying and implementing the
requirements of national laws, regulations, rules and standards
on the prevention and control of occupational hazards. The
experts oversee the implementation of the accountability
system of occupational hazard prevention at all levels, to ensure
that the health and safety of workers in the labour process can
be protected.
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The operation team of Shougang Concord bears great
responsibilities of safeguard. To ensure the safety of services,
the operation team regularly carries out emergency drills such
as the failure of the toll system, the prevention of typhoon and
flood, and the spontaneous combustion of vehicles. The Group
constantly adjusts the planned inspection routes, increases the
frequency of staff and equipment inspections, and ensures the
full coverage in the field. The operation team of the parking
lot in the airport is in close partnership with the airport
fire control department and the police through information
sharing, education and advocacy on strengthening fire safety,
reinforcing the identification and handling of suspicious
persons, objects and vehicles, aiming to eliminate safety risks.
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In FY2019, there were no work-related fatalities or injuries in
the operations of the Group. During the year under review, the
Group was in compliance with relevant laws and regulations
in relation to providing a safe working environment and
protecting the employees from occupational hazards that have
a significant impact on the Group.

Development and training

The Group believes that corporate training is crucial to its
long-term development. The Group has formulated strategic
guidelines for talent training and effectively implemented
relevant policies, endeavouring to enable employees to
obtain sufficient skills, knowledge, professional qualifications,
experience, and good judgment to ensure the professionalism
of their work through the provision of training in various areas.
‘Urban parking lot’, as a ‘new infrastructure’, was highlighted
during the plenary session of the Politburo of the Communist
Party of China in 2019. It encompasses the concepts of
automation, intelligent parking solutions and the relatively
scattered parking market at the current stage in China, which
require the strenuous efforts of the smart parking developers
in the research, study and promotion. Therefore, in addition to
traditional training, the Group has built an internal network for
the teaching and sharing of knowledge and experience among
employees. Through the review and discussion of advanced
concepts and practical experience, the Group aims to create a
highly combative team and an organisation that keeps evolving.

The Group usually provides induction courses for newly hired
employees who can learn the history, vision, corporate culture,
values and governance of the Group. For in-service employees,
the Group provides courses about the improvement of business
and management, and arranges appropriate training from
external organisations, which allows its employees to obtain
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In FY2019, the total number of training participants of the
Group was 352. The total training time was approximately
10,940 hours, with 31.1 hours per person on average being
recorded.

Distribution of training participants
in position types

IS EAS BB

The management level
EEE

Managers and above
EERERUE

General staff
—RET

Labour standards

In FY2019, the Group strictly abided by local and national
labour standards, including but not limited to the Employment
Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Labour Law
of the People’s Republic of China (¥ AR MBI 4 &)%) and
other related labour laws and regulations in the PRC and Hong
Kong to prohibit any child and forced labour employment. To
combat illegal employment of child labour, underage workers
and forced labour, the Group’s Human Resource Department
requires all job applicants to provide valid identity documents to
ensure that they are lawfully employable prior to confirmation
of any employment according to the “"Employee Manual”.
The Group’s Human Resource Department is responsible for
monitoring the compliance of corporate policies and practices
with the relevant laws and regulations that prohibit child labour
and forced labour. Once any case which fails to conform to
the relevant labour laws, regulations or standards is found, the
relevant employment contract will be immediately terminated.

In FY2019, the Group was in compliance with applicable laws
and regulations in relation to the prevention of child and forced
labour that have a significant impact on the Group.

Managers and above
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Anti-corruption

To maintain a fair, honest and efficient working environment,
the Group has complied with local laws and regulations
concerning anti-corruption and anti-bribery in the region in
which the Group operates, including the Anti-Corruption Law
of the People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Anti-Money Laundering, the Anti-Money
Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance (Cap.
615 of the Laws of Hong Kong), and the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance (Cap. 201 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

The Group has formulated and strictly enforced its anti-
corruption policies, such as the relevant provisions in the
‘Employee Manual’ and financial management policies, to
prevent any fraudulent practice. The Group prohibits all forms
of bribery and corruption, and requires all employees to
strictly stick to business ethics. By entering into the business
agreements, procurement contracts, employment contracts,
tender documents, etc., the Group regulates that all employees
must discharge their duties with integrity and not be involved
in any activities related to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering. The Group requires that all procurement activities
should be based on ‘Honesty and Integrity Clause’ signed with
its suppliers and organises employees to study the content of
the clause.
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‘Honesty and Integrity Clause’
of Shougang Concord
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‘ ‘ Party A and B must strictly abide by the relevant laws and regulations

in relation to national anti-unfair competition and the prohibition of commercial

bribe and the relevant requirements of combating corruption and upholding

integrity, resolutely oppose and resist commercial bribe, jointly build a normal,

orderly, legitimate and legal environment for collaboration and business, and

consciously operate legally with integrity.
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Whistle-blowers can report any suspected misconduct to
the Human Resource Department and internal regulatory
department of the Group with detailed information and
evidence. The regulatory department makes investigations
on any suspicious or illegal acts to protect the interests of
the Group. The Group has established an effective grievance
mechanism to protect whistle-blowers from unfair dismissal or
victimisation. Should any suspicious activity that involves crimes
be found, the Group will immediately report to the relevant
regulatory or law enforcement agencies when the management
considers it necessary.

In FY2019, the Group was in compliance with relevant laws and
regulations in relation to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering that have a significant impact on the Group.
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1X. SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

In the supply chain management, the Group adheres to the
principles of people-oriented, risk prevent and control, and
green procurement, striving to minimise the negative impact of
the entire supply chain on society and the environment, while
building a platform that enables mutually beneficial business
collaboration. The Group is aware that effective supply chain
management is the top priority of the company’s business
development. As a socially responsible enterprise, the Group
attaches great importance to controlling the environmental
and social risks of its supply chain, and requires its suppliers
to abide by relevant laws and regulations. The responsible
internal teams should strictly and continuously monitor the
qualifications and practices of their suppliers.

Social risk

The major materials that the Group's intelligent parking lot
purchases in procurement are the management equipment
and related products. In 2019, the Group further improved
its supply management system, setting up policies and
requiring all departments to strictly follow the 'Measures
on the Management of Qualified Suppliers’. The Tender and
Procurement Committee supervises the entire process of
supplier management and holds the responsibility for handling
special and major supplier-related issues. The Group strictly
conducts a comprehensive assessment of potential suppliers,
oversees the bidding process, carries out the background
check on selected suppliers and monitors the quality of the
supplied products and services effectively. Specifically, in strict
conformance with the requirements of its internal supplier
selection system, the Group regulates that each supplier
must comply with relevant national and local market rules
and its qualification meets the Group’s standard. The Asset
Management Department and other departments of the
Group are required to make necessary investigations on the
technically complex suppliers and special suppliers based on
the type of goods and services. ‘Business license’, 'National
Special Equipment (Lifting Machinery) Manufacturing License’,
‘National Special Equipment (Lifting Machinery) Installation,
‘Environmental

Transformation, Maintenance License’,

Management System Qualification Certificate’, ‘Occupational
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Health and Safety Management System Qualification
Certificate’, 'Steel Structure Project Specialised Contracting
Grade 3 and Above Qualification Certificate’ and other
qualification certificates are required to submit. Meanwhile,
the relevant departments should review the implementation
of Quality Management System I1SO9001, Environmental
Management System 1SO14001 and Occupational Health and
Safety Management System 1SO45001, financial status, market
reputation, quality of post-sales service and other aspects of
its suppliers. The Group maintains a reliable partnership with
its suppliers for better communication and collaboration. For
suppliers of the same type of products, Shougang Concord
usually adopts an integrated approach with backup suppliers
to lower the risk in the supply process (normally no less
than 3 suppliers). The Group splits its suppliers into different
groups for specialised management according to the periods
of cooperation and product types. The Asset Management
Department organises relevant departments of the company
to evaluate and grade suppliers in the parking lots and adds
up the scores of suppliers throughout the year at the end of
each year. The Group ranks suppliers based on their annual
scores and classifies them into level A, B and C. Suppliers
in Level A, that is, high-quality suppliers, have the privilege
to be invited to attend the Group's tender and procurement
activities, while suppliers in level C are listed as temporarily
uncooperative and not to be invited to participate in the Group’
s tender and procurement activities within 2 years. Suppliers
that have broken the contract or been found with serious
safety and quality accidents in the cooperation period will be
blacklisted after being approved by the Tender and Procurement
Committee, and cannot engage in the Group's tender and
procurement activities any more in the future.
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"MEASURES ON THE MANAGEMENT OF
QUALIFIED SUPPLIERS”
OF SHOUGANG CONCORD

ERER (ERHEEBEERE)

60 points or below

is Level C - suppliers
with whom we cannot
cooperate for the time
being and cannot be
invited for our tender
and procurement ;
activities
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During daily operations, the harmonisation of the brand,

logo and signage of the hardware in the parking lot, and the
acquisition of long-term management rights for parking lots
that determines the unchanged brands of systems enable the
Group to improve its management and unify the corporate
image.

Environmental risk

The Group has not only implemented environmental policies
for energy conservation and emission reduction in its daily
operations, but also augmented its positive influence on the
environment by optimising the procurement process and
incorporating environmental factors into its process of supplier
selection. The Group has gained an in-depth understanding of
the environmental impact during procurement and refers to its
internal sustainable procurement guidelines and requirements,
prioritising local suppliers as its first choice in choosing business
partners. The Group is committed to embedding the concept
of circular economy in the supply chain management and
cutting down on the waste of materials and energy through
innovative solutions and collaboration, thereby improving the
environment.
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X. COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

As a socially responsible enterprise, the Group has been
committed to integrating the concept of sustainable
development and corporate citizenship into all aspects of its
business development. With the mission of actively nurturing
the well-being and growth of the communities where it
operates, the Group has taken practical measures to care
about the community, adheres to the corporate spirit of ‘living
for change and empowering the innovation’, and relies on
its own strengths, capabilities and platforms to carry out
various activities supporting communities. In the promotion
of community education, the Everlove Foundation of the
Group continues to care about and strongly support the
children in need, assisting them to realise dreams. It is one of
the kernels of the Group’s community care and philanthropy
that employees can be volunteers and contribute to the
harmonious development of local communities and society.
The Group motivates and organises its employees to invariably
pay attention to the community development, to deepen their
engagement with local communities through the participation
in projects and supporting individuals, and to influence more
people around them to make efforts and effectively enlarge
the scope of fulfilling its corporate social responsibilities. In
the past decade, the concept of socially responsible investment
that pursues long-term value growth and takes into account
both economic and social benefits has drawn more and more
attention in the asset management industry. Community
investment and the participation in public welfare activities is
one of the ESG topics of which the Board is most concerned.
Shougang Concord deeply remembers its social responsibility.
In FY2019, in addition to the positive benefits brought by the
Group’s businesses per se to people’s livelihood, the Group
actively involved itself in the community activities to prompt
the economic development of the community and made
unremitting efforts to facilitate a harmonious society.

RE HERERERSE
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Everlove Foundation

Everlove Foundation was initiated by the employees in
Shougang Fund and Shougang Concord. It was created to
sponsor the education of students in Tangshan, Jilin and other
parts of the country, mainly providing educational and medical
assistance services. With the purpose of ‘holding the possibility
for children to realise their dreams’, Everlove Foundation
organised a series of activities in 2019, including visiting
schools, looking back on the past decade, and welcoming and
making wishes for 2020 with children; taking the children
to visit the centennial park changes and Winter Olympic-
related facilities in Shougang Park; experiencing life changes
brought by technology in the R&D centre of new energy
vehicles; launching the 'Doctor in the Future’ program with
Peking University Shougang Hospital in which the children
who dreamed of becoming doctors since childhood could learn
doctor’s work from practice; and building the "Gallery of Public
Welfare” which aroused students’ imagination and desire of life

through creative work.
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In June 2019,
the employees of Shougang
Concord participated in the ‘“Tongxin
Plan’ organised by the Tongxin Volunteer
Association of Jilin Province and had a wonderful
Children’s Day with children in Province Jilin Orphan
School. During the day, our employees played tug
of war, rope jump with children together and chatted
about their dreams. The company with each other brings
warmth to these children and our employees, making
the festival special.
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On the Mid-Autumn Festival eve in 2019, the employees of Shougang Concord were invited to
participate in the sports meeting of Jilin Province Orphan School, experiencing the charm of sports with
the students, conveying the spirit of sports, that is, 'It doesn’t matter if you lose, it's the participation
that matters’, and having a warm and memorable Mid-Autumn Festival with all teachers and kids.
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Year 2019 is the fifth year of 99 Public Welfare Day and the second year of our participation in philanthropy. In 2018, around 50 children from
Caofeidian were invited to Shougang Park in Beijing to experience the journey of the Winter Olympics, which paved our path to public welfare.
In July 2019, the Everlove Foundation launched the Youth Dreamer-S Plan, inviting 20 orphans from Jilin to Beijing pursuing their dreams.

During the four days, the volunteers took these children on the journey to explore their dreams. With the help of doctors from Shougang
Hospital, students received laparoscopic simulation training, basic first aid and laboratory knowledge. In the automotive technology R&D Centre
and other places, 20 students had classes about environmental protection, drama, jigsaw puzzles, dubbing and painting, created the works
with their hands and learned the development history from fueled vehicles to electric vehicles. On the last day, the students made a splendid
report show with carefully rehearsed performances at the headquarter of Shougang Fund. In the end, the volunteers guided the students to
visit the five-storey office of Shougang Fund and experienced first-hand the high-tech items such as digital projection in Shougang Park.
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When | grow up, | will help others and pass on this love. ‘Being not affected

by the surroundings and moving forward for better’ is a big gain from my trip

and a big aspiration and a goal that | endeavour to accomplish gradually. |

hope | can use the money to realise more of my small wishes in my future life,

and then step by step move towards my ambitious goal. Until | was able to live

‘ | hope to be here one day to develop my career. What independently in Beijing and help more people. Beijing is a place where | must
| suggest is to install a thermal insulation layer in the go in my life, and it is this wish that Shougang’s uncles helped me to realise. |
venues of the winter games to keep the stadium cool and  will study hard and won't let you down.

the auditorium warm. This trip to Beijing made me more EANGBELZEHAIA BEEAT THEAEYE MEGNE RE2RE
determined to come to Beijing in the future. RRITH—EAKE BR2EMN—BEAEF —EARSHNEIE FERAUEN
BALERAE —RIER BOEETREERERACE
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VOLUNTEERS’ AND TEACHERS’ FEELINGS & B & & B 1y R &

If we do well, we may learn a lot from children who inspire us to face this complicated world with courage. At
the age full of competitions, let us find and become the ‘wrinkled child” in our hearts.
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Only if I have participated in the activity can I realise that I have a goal, know what I am capable of, and think

of that maybe I can do more.
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This is the second year of our hard work. During the process, we found that a dream could not be realised
with just a trip to Beijing. We also understood that our strength was far from enough. As such, we wish to
gather more power, take children to experience the wonders of the world and cheer for more dreams in 2019.
78 A B T B SR AR AR P IR BB R AR o A — WA b B iR e T A S A Y > TR TR AT
1 B A AN BT A 201948 > M A R MELEL S B WELZ T MEZEMEE IR AEZFE
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The children communicated with the outstanding people and saw more beautiful things, which prompted
them to set higher targets for themselves in the future. They will subtly change their behaviours and willing to

put more efforts into the study.
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Vstartup

In terms of space operations, Shougang Concord owns Beijing’s
largest entrepreneurial incubator — Vstartup, with a total
operating area of 500,000 square metres. Its market layout
mainly focuses on Beijing and covers the whole country with
the creation of the brand of 37 Degree Apartment. Shougang
Concord is deeply aware that small and medium-sized
enterprises are an important force to promote the development
of national economy, market prosperity and social stability. In
response to the call of the State Council Leading Group for the
Development of Small and Medium-Sized Enterprises that small
and medium-sized enterprises are the new force to promote
national economy and social development, the foundation of
building a modern economic system and accelerating high-
quality economic development, and the support for improving
employment and people’s livelihood, Vstartup, as an urban
renewal service provider under Shougang Concord, activates
urban space with the ecological operation mode of ‘fund +
base + industry chain service’, brings together companies
from different industries and development levels to achieve
resource and information sharing, and helps small and medium-
sized science and technology enterprises to realise their
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entrepreneurial dreams. Through the realisation of intelligent
facilities, standard services, socialised residence, financial
assets, and platform-based operations of smart communities
that prioritise hobbies and sociality, Vstartup continuously
meets customer’s living requirements, provides customised
value-added services in butler-style and becomes a gathering
place for young and high-end talents, aiming to create an
open and efficient growth platform for people with aspirations.
Since its establishment, Vstartup has obtained national public
space, national incubator, national youth entrepreneurship
demonstration park and youth entrepreneurship and
employment demonstration point across the Taiwan Straits,
TOP 10 of the China Venture best public space, small and
medium-sized enterprises intellectual property rights centralised
development demonstration region, the first SGS certification
of I1SO entrepreneurship service standardisation system in China
and other honorary titles.

Vstartup has built an actively extended investment and service
ecosystem. It has invited well-renowned scholars and lecturers
from China and other countries to empower entrepreneurs in
the form of college lectures, and built regional development
and service business groups to deeply tap and connect regional
resources for the invested enterprises.
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During the fight against the coronavirus epidemic in early 2020,
Vstartup helped small and medium-sized enterprises to survive
the crisis. It strictly followed the requirements of Beijing and
the group, taking advantage of its own resource edge during
the epidemic and launching a number of measures for small
and medium-sized enterprises that alleviated their pressure,
stabilised employment, supported enterprises and fought the
epidemic together to tide over the hard time. By issuing the
‘Notice on Strengthening the Prevention and Control of the
COVID-19"” and the ‘Working System for the Prevention of the
Coronavirus’, Vstartup built a leading group and control centre,
established a first-level early-warning system, disinfected its
office buildings, set up temperature monitoring stations and
implemented the entry and exit registration policy to ensure the
safety of clients in the workplace.

e Collect various policies concerning small and medium-sized
enterprises;

e Reduce the cost of financial loans to small and medium-
sized enterprises;

e Provide a platform for small and medium-sized enterprises
to join the fight against the epidemic;

e Help small and medium-sized enterprises with the provision
of connectivity of industry chain services.

RE HERERERSE
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Intelligent parking

Shougang Concord is committed to making urban life better
and people’s lives more convenient. It aims to make positive
contributions to increasing operating efficiencies in important
spaces such as car parks,
transportation junctions through enhancing corporate
capabilities and business development, thereby improving the

commercial office buildings and

quality of urban space. Through intelligent interconnection
to achieve the efficient integration of static and dynamic
management, Shougang Concord regards the building of safe,
convenient and comfortable parking spaces as its purpose,
and fully studies and implements the requirements of ‘high-
quality infrastructure’ in the United Nations 2030 Agenda for
Sustainable Development. Through the integration of technical
approach and concepts, the Group plans, builds,
and maintains its parking lot projects from perspectives of
energy conservation, environmental protection, functionality,
intelligence, and craftsmanship, aiming to create a different
brand of the parking lot — S-Park and to tremendously support

manages

urban development and people’s lives. The Group’s parking lot
project, for example, makes it an objective to achieve car pick-
up within 90 seconds, 20% of parking spaces for charging
stations and smart combination of intelligent, graffiti-related
and other technologically trendy elements.
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Space modification works for sports games

It is the strategic principle of Shougang Concord in its urban
renewal to acquire industrial resources, form the industrial
base, improve the quality of space development and increase
asset value through the acquisition of industrial resource
through funds. Shougang is the official partner of city renewal
service of the Beijing Winter Olympic Games. The park has
the largest area for development in the metropolitan area of
Beijing. The current Winter Olympics Plaza project will be in
collaboration with Tishman Speyer of the United States with
an investment in the construction of a new space of 190,000
square metres, aiming to support the dissemination of ice and
snow sports culture, the construction of sports power in the
new era and the acceleration of the development of the sports
industry.

RE HERERERSE
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Nurturing young leaders

In July 2019, the 'Belt and Road’ Global Youth Leadership —
Beijing 2019 event that was co-hosted by Peking University and
Hong Kong Polytechnic University and organised by Shougang
Group and the Group, officially opened in the new Shougang
International Talent Community. The event focused on the three
major themes of ‘innovation, responsibility, and development’,
and arranged a series of four-day keynote speeches, parallel
forums, leadership dialogues, and inspection experience. The
event aimed to encourage young leaders to break through the
bottleneck of thinking, to innovate and make efforts, to pay
attention to the global sustainable development, to actively
participate in the co-building of the ‘Belt and Road’ to promote
the building of the community of common destiny for all
mankind and to propose youth programs by providing youth
plan, wisdom and power. 109 young talents from 28 countries,
Hong Kong, Macao and Taiwan attended the event.
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Open day of the state-owned enterprise in the
capital

Given that 2019 was the 70th anniversary of the founding of
the People’s Republic of China, Shougang held the 4th ‘Open
day of the state-owned enterprise in the capital’, enabling the
general public to obtain more information about Shougang
Concord and the steel industry of Shougang. Under the
theme of ‘70 Years of Glory and Re-encoding the Resplendent
Chapter’, the open day fully showcased the substantial changes
and magnificent achievements of the state-owned enterprise
in the capital since the founding of the People ‘s Republic of
China 70 years ago and the contributions made by the state-
owned enterprise in the capital since the founding of the New
China. The open day advocated the reputation of China’s steel
power and represented a gift of Shougang to New China for its
70th anniversary since the founding with actions.

RE HERERERSE

EHEEEKA

BEFTEKIIOBFE EHENR T ENE
[BHMECRARA] BEATRE-TEES
REBE L EHOME TR - U EE-TH -
BEMEEATIER] ARAXSRTFTE
RIZ70F R EHMBE R E RSB NEBEKH -
#— IR IZ IR B B b # P B RS AR P
MBI MER EEPEEERENEE
NEBRITB R B L70E RS ©

/

COMMUNITY
INVESTMENT OF

SHOUGANG CONCORD
BEREBRUEERE

Open day of the
state-owned enterprise

in the capital

EHE MK E

/

BEREBRCEGRAA 2019F5% 203



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE HERERERSE

Health protection

Since the epidemic outbreak, the Vstartup has urgently
established an epidemic prevention and control department,
issued a series of guidance notices, formed and implemented
various work plans, and set a protective bottom line for
enterprises and residents. Vstartup has enforced strict
prevention and control measures in 16 sites in and outside
Beijing. The project managers in all sites reported daily
information of the epidemic prevention and control practices,
infection emergencies, property disinfection, mobile staff
management and notifications of prevention and control with
owners, and formulated the next day’s work plan.
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The Group holds on to and embeds its social responsibility of
‘focusing on human development and achieving harmonious
win-win collaboration’ into corporate governance, employee
values, and integrates its philosophy of philanthropy into the
blood of the enterprise, making charity an important part of
the corporate culture. On the road of philanthropy and value
creation to all, the Group strives to explore its resources and
develop its competitiveness, and promote the harmonious
growth of both the enterprise and society by contributing to
children’s development, the building of growth platform for
small and medium-sized enterprises, creation of innovative
place, sports culture, people’s livelihood and health protection.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY OF SHOUGANG CONCORD
EREBHEEE

“Remain true to our original aspiration and keep our mission firmly in mind, deeply cultivate the
virtuous circle formed by corporate social responsibility and value chain and lead the enterprise to
sustainable development in a persistent and stable way”, is the only way to realise the Group’s economic,
environmental and social responsibility. It is also a strategic need for the enterprise to take root in the
masses, care about society, benefit the community and achieve common prosperity.
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XI. ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

To seek the sustainability of the environment and community
where it operates, the Group has made an effort in controlling
its emissions as well as its consumption of resources,
ensuring that its daily operations strictly comply with relevant
environmental laws and regulations in Mainland China and
Hong Kong, including but not limited to the:

e Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of
China;

e Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Atmospheric Pollution;

e Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Water Pollution;

e Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes;

e Law of the People’s Republic of China on Conserving
Energy;

e Regulations of the Management of Economical Use of
Urban Water; and

e Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap. 354 of the Laws of Hong
Kong).

This section primarily discloses the Group’s policies, practices,
and quantitative data on emissions, use of resources, the
environment and natural resources in FY2019.
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Emissions

In FY2019, the Group abided by relevant basic national and
local environmental laws regarding emissions during its daily
operations. The Group was not in violation of the laws and
regulations concerning air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes, and noise that have a significant impact
on the Group. Sticking to the “innovative, coordinated, green,
open and shared” development concept, the Group actively
controls its energy consumption and emissions, reducing the
negative impact on the environment.

It is the business nature of the Group that determines that
its air emissions mainly come from the fuel consumption for
vehicle transportation. In FY2019, the amount of sulfur oxides
("SOx"), nitrogen oxides ("NOx") and particulate matter
17.44 kg, and 1.28 kg, which
dropped as compared with that in FY2018.

("PM") emissions was 0.31 kg,

Greenhouse gases are acknowledged as a primary factor
causing global warming. In response to the initiative of the
United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change
and the “The Work Plan to Control Greenhouse Gas Emissions
during the 13th Five-Year Plan Period”

committed to effectively managing its GHG emissions. The

, the Group has been

GHG emissions of the Group are mainly from the purchase of
electricity during operations. During the year under review, the
Group’s total GHG emissions were 8,665.8 tonnes of CO2e
and its intensity was 23.3 tonnes of CO2z. per employee. In
particular, the Scope 2 indirect carbon emissions accounted
for 98.8% of the total emissions, while the direct emissions
from Scope 1 and other indirect energy emissions from Scope 3
constituted only 1.2% of the total emissions. As such, it can be
seen that electricity consumption was still the major source of
the Group’s GHG emissions.

RE HERERERSE
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In addition to the GHG emissions, the administrative offices
and parking lots of the Group also generate a certain amount
of solid waste and sewage. In FY2019, the Group had a total
of 6,542 kg of non-hazardous solid waste (intensity of 17.6
kg/employee) and 58,630 m? of non-hazardous commercial
wastewater (intensity of 157.6 m3employee) during its
operations. The Group did not generate any hazardous
waste or wastewater during the year under review. The total
emissions of the Group are summarized in Table 1. To better
illustrate the GHG emissions of the Group, especially from
the geographical locations, use of resources and emission
scopes, a GHG emissions Sankey diagram has been formulated.
It visualises the patterns of corporate GHG emissions with
the width of the flows that represent the magnitudes of the
amount of emissions in detail.

Use of
Resources

Regions

i &

BEREM
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158,630 F KM ER £ EE/K (RE R157.6
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Management of air and GHG emissions

Through the effective management and control of vehicles
for business affairs, the Group is committed to continuously
reducing the generation of exhaust gas during its operations.
The Group also vigorously organises training courses on energy
conservation and emission reduction, and encourages its
employees to pay attention to the repercussions of their daily
lives and work on the environment. Meanwhile, the Group
has effectively integrated parking spaces and guided vehicle
owners to park quickly and efficiently through the operation
of intelligent parking lots, which considerably improves the
parking efficiency, shortens the time for vehicle owners to
find parking lots and spaces, and benefits the reduction of
air pollutants generated from parking lots. Considering the
positive correlation between GHG emissions and electricity
consumption, the Group has implemented policies and
stepped up measures to lower electricity consumption in daily
operations. Details are set out in the sub-section headed
"Electricity’ in the Use of Resources of the report.

Waste management

Commercial solid waste including the rubbish during cleaning up
the parking lots and wastewater are the main waste generated
during the Group's operations. The relevant departments of the
Group in the operating area, such as the management of the
property buildings, are responsible for wastewater treatment.
The wastewater is discharged to the municipal sewage treatment
plant through sewage pipelines. The solid waste generated by
the Group is mainly the waste paper from administrative uses
and solid waste generated from employees in daily operations.
To lower the amount of solid waste, the Group has vigorously
implemented waste classification, promoted the reuse of waste
and reduced the use of packaging materials at source as many
as possible. The Group has encouraged employees to bring lunch
boxes to the offices, effectively use office supplies and reduce
the consumption of disposable items. In the urban renewal
business segment, the Group has focused its efforts on the
integration of environmental protection concept into the park
development projects, providing effective guidance and offering
constructive advice on how to cut down on the waste during
development and construction.

RE HERERERSE
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Use of resources

During the year under review, the Group complied with relevant
laws and regulations concerning the use of resources in the
Group. In FY2019, the main resources consumed by the Group
were electricity, water, gasoline and paper. Given the business
nature, the Group did not consume any packaging materials
during the year under review. Table 2 details the resources that
were used by the Group during the year under review.

Electricity

The electricity consumption of the Group comes from the
daily operations of administrative offices and its car parking
business. In FY2019, the total electricity consumption of the
Group was 9,688.18 MWh (with an intensity of 26.0 MWh/
employees), which significant increased as compared to the
data last year. The major reason leading to the rise was rapid
business growth during the year. In the future, the Group
will strengthen its monitoring and evaluation of electricity
consumption and setting up relevant policies to control the use
of electricity effectively.

The growth in electricity consumption was also the major
factor resulting in the drastic increase in the GHG emissions
in FY2019. Thus, the Group has decided to take electricity
consumption management as the most important task to
improve its ESG performance. To coordinate with the electricity-
saving policies of the Group, all subsidiaries and parking lots
of the Group have brought in many measures to ensure the
effective use of electricity, and demonstrated their resolution to
preserve the environment.
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Switch off idle lighting fixtures and air conditioners;

FMEENRARRNERAKE

Post up slogans and posters of ‘Saving Electricity’ in the prominent areas, and encourage

employees to conserve electricity;

EERUERMBORERENSR XBHETHORE:

Purchase and use the electrical equipment with ‘Energy Efficiency’ labels in the office;

ELECTRICITY- EMAEBENERAASEEHNAERE:
SAVING
MEASURES
BT Switch off all electronic device and equipment after work in time;

TR REFEMAEFARMRE:

Upgrade and maintain the equipment such as the air conditioners, fridges and paper
shredders regularly to keep their high efficiency; and

EHE =R KM HAREREETHEDTY URFESHE R

Replace the traditional electricity-intensive bulbs with LED lights in the office.

ERAZFLEDE B RERREEREM -

Other energy resources

The other major energy resource consumed by the Group
in its daily operations is gasoline for the use of vehicles for
business affairs. In FY2019, the Group’s gasoline consumption
was 21,245 litres (intensity of 57.1 litres/employee). When
compared with FY2018, the amount of gasoline consumption
declined by approximately 70%. The Group has encouraged
its employees in all business segments to take public transport
or walk instead of driving to work and make full use of
electronic equipment and technology for online meetings,
thereby reducing the frequency of travel. The Group has strictly
managed the use of vehicles for business affairs, thus reducing
the use of gasoline.

HgERER

AEERREEREIEERNEMERERA
Al ARARIABEMNER RZT— K
FE -AEBERTHEREE B21,2457F (B E
BSTAF BT BT — \BEFAEH JTH
HIEE TR TH70% - NEEEB S EEBIKR
BB TIURAKERBTARSTREREL
e aofAEFRENERFRETESRS
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Water Fk

Given the business nature, the water consumption of the Group HREBNME  REFEHKERBEETE R
mainly comes from the daily use of its employees. In FY2019, HBHEIWMABFERA -R_ZE—NFHHRFE"
the Group did not face any problems in sourcing water that is  ZN 5 8] /£ SR EUE f 7K R 7 T I 8 (T (o] fE 78 o 1
fit for purpose. During the year under review, the total water [EIEEFE N KNEBHEFEKE A58,6303L 77
consumed by Group was 58,630 m3 (intensity of 157.6 m3/ K (3&E A157.63XF K, BT) - BiRm/KE
employee). To utilise water resources more efficiently, the JRFIAME  AEBEHETAIBRE - k2
Group has formulated internal regulations that require all 2288 TE&&ET H ®IEE HHEIKEEK -
employees to strictly follow the policies of water conservation

in daily operations.

e Require employees to strictly comply with the policies of water

conservation of the Group;
ERETIBRRETAEEHORAKZIBR:

e Repair the dripping faucets timely to prevent any leakage of the
water supply system;
B R & 3 0 K K BE B8 M sl R K R IR 2R

e Advocate and educate employees to save water;

EERKEBTHHMAK: WATER
e Check and maintain the water taps, water pipes and water tanks CONSERVATION
. MEASURES
regularly; and
EHIRE R M KT KB R R Bk ¥E it
e Reuse the water that has been recycled for cleaning.
ERAEKRZKARIBER-
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Environment and Natural Resources

As a leading enterprise in the intelligent parking industry, the
Group has long been adapting to vicissitudes of times, adhering
to the principle of humanised development and insisting on
the concept of sustainable development through in-depth
integration and innovation. With a deep understanding
of and commitment to global climate change and green
urbanism, the Group is dedicated to continuously improving
internal management policies, raising employees’ awareness
of environmental protection, mitigating adverse impacts on
the environment, and alleviating and tackling climate change.
Through a series of effective measures in energy conservation
and emission control, the Group aims to forge a reliable,
resilient and sustainable enterprise leading the flourishing
development of the intelligent parking industry. While the
environmental impact of the Group in FY2019 was minimal,
it always bears in mind its duty of environmental protection,
aiming to unswervingly realise the rapid development of both
the ecosystem and enterprise and move towards building
a sustainable and green city through the perseverance in
reviewing and improving its performance in energy efficiency
and waste management.

The Group's major impacts on the natural environment mainly
come from its purchase and consumption of natural resources
and energy resources. To lower its consumption and reduce the
environmental destruction caused by the waste and emissions,
the Group has strictly monitored, managed, and optimised its
business model, focusing on the recycling plan, management of
electricity consumption efficiency and the upgrade of operation
process and equipment, thereby minimising its environmental
impact. In terms of parking lot operations, for instance,
the Group provides training on water conservation to all
employees, and regulates that all washrooms be installed with
water-saving equipment and regularly inspected. In addition
to the replacement of the lighting fixtures in the offices, the
Group's underground parking lots promote interval lighting
and are setting out to adopt energy-saving lights. The Group
requires its employees not to print daily meeting materials in
daily operations and to make use of multimedia applications
such as video projection (e.g. CVTouch intelligent conference
system and Xiaoyu mobile conference system) to save paper.
In the meantime and the Group is in pursuit of the concept of
Paperless Office, continuously advances towards the goal of
sustainable development by reusing envelopes, and file folders
and vigorously recommending the use of email instead of
paper.

RE HERERERSE
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As the governments around the world are accelerating their
efforts in sustainable development, use of clean energy and
the exploration of new industries, new energy has become
a major strategic move in global energy transition and the
course of confronting climate change. The Group takes green
development as its core and makes unremitting efforts in the
exploration, trial and investment in new energy in its business
development and operations. For example, the Group's
intelligent parking has not only dramatically solved the problem
of insufficient parking supply and environmental problems
arising, therefrom by indirectly reducing the exhaust gas
and GHGs caused by urban traffic congestion and inefficient
parking, but also incorporated the development of new energy
into the design and operation of its parking lots. Specifically,
the new airport parking lot of Beijing Daxing International
Airport is equipped with 630 charging stations for electric
vehicles, demonstrating the Group's support for clean energy
and the leading demonstration role that the Group plays in
the industry. Furthermore, the Group has invested RMB16.31
million in the building of solar panels in the parking lot of
Beijing Daxing Internation Airport in 2019, aiming to use
sustainable energy resource to lower the GHG emissions from
electricity consumption and other environmental pollutions.
The investment of the Group’'s Fund management will also
consider investing in new energy vehicles’ parts and equipment
manufacturing, highlighting Shougang Concord’s emphasis
on the development prospect of environmental friendly
technologies.

Looking forward, the Group will further track the progress of
its corporate sustainable development through strict monitoring
measures on environmental performance and continue to
deepen its understanding of the environmental impact of its
development and in its value chain. The Group commits to
unwaveringly striving for a sustainable and climate-resilient
future with innovative and green development concepts.
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XIl. ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL Xl RERMESERERRR
PERFORMANCE AGAINST KEY INDICATORS
TABLE 1 - TOTAL EMISSIONS OF THE GROUP BY K——AEER-ZT-NBBRFERERHE
CATEGORIES IN FY2019 DB E
Intensity "
(Unit per
Emissions Unit Amount employee)
BEO
58] By e (EusSES)
Air Emissions SOx Kg 0.31 -
&R BE B mary T
NOx Kg 17.44 -
RE(D F
PM Kg 1.28 =
FERL ) Fi
GHG Emissions® Scope 1 (Direct Emissions) Tonnes of COze 51.5 0.14
BERBHERS HE— (BRHR) B-Elihae
Scope 2 (Energy Indirect Emissions)  Tonnes of COze 8,562.9 23.02
BE— (RRREEHER) M- EtihEe
Scope 3 (Other Indirect Emissions) @ Tonnes of COze 51.4 0.14
BE= (EtEEER) @ W-EtiEEe
Total (Scope 1 & 2 & 3) Tonnes of CO2ze 8,665.8 23.30
@t (8E—=-=) M- SitiE e
Non-hazardous Waste Solid Wastes Kg 6,542 17.59
BEEBMIER ElIf8REEY Fi
Wastewater m3 58,630 157.61
K ST K
() Intensity was calculated by dividing the amount of emissions by the "V ZFEEBHKNEGAEEFZH IR -_F—F+_-H
number of employees of the Group as at 31 December 2019; =1+ —HABESE A

20 The Group's Scope 3 (Other Indirect Emissions) included only paper — @ K% [ 4% B = (H 1 B1E L) (£ €T F v ] 1E
waste disposed of at landfills and electricity used for processing fresh HE A5 A S FE LA R LT BB P FE A AR R 57K FH B
water and sewage by government departments; and ERIBERL R

() The methodology adopted for reporting on GHG emissions set out ¥ _|- i 3§ & 8 = T B2 HE I AT R AN 9 77 02 B B 58 T 85

above was based on “How to Prepare an ESG Report — Appendix Ha) [ 20 RIRE - & REFHE M2 - IR
2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock BEKPIEYFR & 76 5] | K IPCCHE R B 2L 20 15 [ -

Exchange and the IPCC Emission Factor Database.
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TABLE 2 - THE RESOURCES CONSUMED BY THE RZ-ZFEER-Z-NBBRFERERE
GROUP BY CATEGORIES IN FY2019 PERBERER
Intensity™
(Unit per
Type of resources Item Units Amount employee)
BMEM
ERER HH By #E (EuSESR)
Energy resources Electricity MWh 9,688.18 26.04
&R (% FTRE
Gasoline L 21,245 57.11
U #
Water Water m? 58,630 157.61
K 7K MK
Paper Paper Kg 6,542 17.59
HoR R NI
(" Intensity was calculated by dividing the amount of consumed resources "V Z/EEBEREHEL X EFE IFR =F—NF
by the number of employees of the Group as at 31 December 2019 A=t —HEESEATZ
TABLE 3 - NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES BY GENDER, ZS-ZE-NAMBFERMER - BRER

POSITION TYPE, AGE GROUP AND GEOGRAPHICAL B -FRAREE HEINETHEY
LOCATION IN FY2019

Unit: Number of employees Age group
BN BIAH FR M
Aged Aged
Aged between between Aged

below 30 31 and 40 41 and 50 50 or above Total
Gender 14 5 308 AT 31-405% 41-508 50BN L st
Male 3B 54 103 42 26 225
Female z 44 79 16 8 147
Total wmat 98 182 58 34 372
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Position type

RE HERERERSE

MmEER
Full time Part time Total
S B st
372 372
Geographical location
35 2
Mainland China Hong Kong Total
FE A BB st
352 20 372

TABLE 4 - EMPLOYEE TURNOVER BY GENDER AND

KO- —ZE-NMBFERENINFRDE

AGE IN FY2019 HEERAR
Unit: Number of employees Age group
BN BTAH FRoMh
Aged Aged
Aged between between Aged
below 30 31 and 40 41 and 50 50 or above Total
Gender 1 B 308 AT 31-405% 41-508%  S50EZMUE At
Male £ 4 13 3 6 26
Employee turnover B TR R+ 1.0% 3.3% 0.8% 1.5% 6.6%
rate* (percentage) (B L)
Female z 8 9 0 0 17
Employee turnover B TEERE* 2.0% 2.3% 0% 0% 4.3%
rate* (percentage) (B2 th)
Total @t 12 22 3 6 43
Total employee HMETRERE 3.1% 5.6% 0.8% 1.5% 11.0%
turnover rate* (BaL)

(percentage)
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Geographical location

i3 5 e
Mainland
China Hong Kong Total
HE A i BB et
30 13 43
Employee turnover rate* (percentage) 7.7% 3.3% 11.0%

ETRBER*(AoL)

* Turnover rate refers to the ration of the number of employees who

resigned and the number of employees on average in FY2019.

TABLE 5 - NUMBER OF TRAINING PARTICIPANTS OF
THE GROUP BY GENDER AND POSITION IN FY2019

*

BEBEE T NIBREFREABTHBNBEST
BHETHML R

RAO-ZF-NBBREFERMERMBAE S
MBS BT AR

Unit: Number of employees Position
BUBETAH B
The
General Manager management
employee and above level Total
Gender 5l —-RET KEHKRUL EEE wat
Male S 177 20 18 215
Female z 125 4 8 137
Total training participants EAAEATT 302 24 26 352

TABLE 6 — TRAINING HOURS OF THE GROUP BY
GENDER AND POSITION IN FY2019

R’A-—ZZ-NBMBRFERER MBS D
B9 2N 52 B35 51 B B

Unit: Hours Position
BN B
The
General Manager management
employee and above level Total
Gender 4 5l —-®ETI KEHRUL EEE @5t
Male £ 5,310 700 720 6,730
Female z 3,750 140 320 4,210
Total training hours B3I B B A 9,060 840 1,040 10,940
Training hours per employee on £i5& A& 31.1

average
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XIll. REPORT DISCLOSURE INDEX Xl HmEFERS
Aspects ESG Indicators Description GRI Standards and Disclosures* Page
BE BREENER #¥ GRIEEEKF* R
A, Environmental 208
A RE
A1: Emissions  General Information on: GRI 103: Management Approach: Disclosure 209-211
Disclosure  (a)  the policies; and 103-2 (c-i) (used together with GRI 305:
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and Emissions, and GRI 306: Effluents and Waste)
regulations that have a significant GRI 305: Emissions: Management approach
impact on the issuer relating to air and disclosures guidance
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges  GRI 307: Environmental Compliance: Disclosure
into water and land, and generation of 307-1
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
Al BB —REE ERBRRRRERBHN FARLHEET  GRI103: ERF# : REHN03-2 (c-i) (EGRI
BEREEREVNELEN: 305 : BERU KGRI 306 : BEAK Y — B (F
w BEER )
(B) BTHEBTABEAZEMRWARK GRI305: B BRI sHRERR
MBI ER GRI 307 : REARZREM ZRERE  BEBKR
307-1
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emission GRI 305: Emissions: Disclosures 305-1, 305-2, 209
data. 305-3, 305-6, and 305-7
BRENER HRmERE A REE GRI 305 : HER: BB F305-1 -305-2
A1.1 305-3 ~ 305-6}2305-7
KPI'A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes)  GRI 305: Emissions: Disclosures 305-1, 305-2, 217
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit ~ 305-3, 305-4
of production volume, per facility).
BEENESR RERBAHRE (ANEHE) R (WER)EE GRI 305 : HEAU: BB KR305-1 +305-2
Al1.2 (MABESBN BRRMEHE) - 305-3 + 305-4
KPI'A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) GRI 306: Effluents and Waste: Disclosure 306-2 217
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit  (a)
of production volume, per facility).
BREIER MELASEENEAE (UHE) R (NER) GRI306 : BEAMEY : K E K R306-2 (a)
A13 HE(MABESEN BEREHE) -
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Aspects ESG Indicators Description GRI Standards and Disclosures* Page
=g BREVNER B GRIBZE B F+ %
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in GRI 306: Effluents and Waste: Disclosure 306-2 217
tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. (b)
per unit of production volume, per facility).
BRENER MELERZEZVEE (JAE:E) R (MER) GRI306 < BKMEEY : B E H3306-2 (b)
A1.4 BE(MAGESEN BERMHE) o
KPI' A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions  GRI 103: Management Approach: Disclosure 211
and results achieved. 103-2 (used together with GRI 305:
Emissions)
GRI 305: Emissions: Clause 1.2 and Disclosure
305-5
BRENER HOREHRENEERAEKR- GRI103 : BB A it - BEHRFK103-2( EGRI
A1.5 305 BRI —GHE )
GRI 305 : HER: 13012 R AR B 1 5% 305-5
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non- GRI 103: Management Approach: Disclosure 211
hazardous wastes are handled, reduction 103-2 (used together with GRI 306: Effluents
initiatives and results achieved. and Waste)
GRI 306: Effluents and Waste: Disclosures 306-2
and 306-4
BRERER HARBAEREZSEENNAE REEE GRI103:EEA#: REKHK103-2(EGRI
A1.6 SREBRAKAR 306 : BEKMEY —GHEA)
GRI 306 : BE/KMEEY) : 3 1R 70306-22306-4
A2: Use of General Policies on the efficient use of resources, GRI 103: Management Approach: Disclosure 212-214
Resources Disclosure including energy, water and other raw 103-2 (c-i) (used together with GRI 301:
materials. Materials, GRI 302: Energy, and GRI 303: Water)
A2 BRER —REE BERERER (RERR KREMEME)E GRI103: EEAH: REBK103-2(ci) (&
HR GRI 301 : ¥} GRI 302 : B2JR KGRI 303 : 7K
—HiEm)
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption GRI 302: Energy: Disclosures 302-1 and 302-3 218
by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total
(kWh in "000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
BREBER RRUASMHERR/IMELR (NE AHA GRI302 : R REHEK302-1Kk302-3
A2.1 m)EFEE (UTRETREHE) REE (WIS
EE B BERBHE) -
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. Not covered by the GRI Standards 218
per unit of production volume, per facility).
MRERER BRKERTE (MABESEN BERMT GREBEERERE
A22 8)e
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EH BREREE #9 GRIZEEHE* R
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives ~ GRI 103: Management Approach: Disclosure 213-214
and results achieved. 103-2 (used together with GRI 302: Energy)
GRI 302: Energy: Disclosures 302-4 and 302-5
BEENESR HARREARGAERMENR- GRI 103 - BB J75f : FEER103-2( EGRI
A23 302 BER—HHEER)

GRI 302 : §)F : B 1£357302-4%302-5

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in GRI 103: Management Approach: Disclosure 214
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water 103-2 (used together with GRI 303: Water)
efficiency initiatives and results achieved. GRI 303: Water: Disclosure 303-3
BRENER HARMERKRLABEMER ARRA GRI103: BRI REKK103-2(£GRI
A2.4 RKBEAERMERR 303 1k —hER)

GRI 303 : /K : K & 1657303-3

KPI' A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished GRI 301: Materials: Disclosure 301-1 211
products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with
reference to per unit produced.

BRENESR HARMAREMHNES (LEEE) R (I GRI301 : ¥# : BEKHK301-1

A2.5 BR)BEEEULE-
A3: The General Policies on minimising the issuer's significant ~ GRI 103: Management Approach: Disclosure 215-216
Environment  Disclosure  impact on the environment and natural 103-2 (c-i) (used together with GRI
and Natural resources. 301:Materials, GRI 302: Energy, GRI 303:
Resources Water, GRI 304: Biodiversity, GRI 305:

Emissions, and GRI 306: Effluents and Waste).
A3 RERARA —MHE RBETAHRERARERENEAFEH GRI103: EE A HEBE103-2 (c-i) (2GR
BR B o 301 : %% GRI 302 : 8% * GRI 303 : 7k * GRI
304 : % HE  GRI 305 ¢ BERUR GRI 306

BKMEEY —HHE R ) BiRENER

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of GRI 103: Management Approach: Disclosures ~ 215-216
activities on the environment and natural 103-1 and 103-2 (used together withGRI 301:
resources and the actions taken to manage Materials, GRI 302: Energy, GRI 303: Water,
them. GRI 304: Biodiversity, GRI 305: Emissions, and

GRI 306: Effluents and Waste)

GRI 303: Water: Disclosure 303-2

GRI 304: Biodiversity: Disclosure 304-2

GRI 306: Effluents and Waste: Disclosures 306-3
(c) and 306-5
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EmE BRENER 39 GRIFERRKE* B

HARENERE HRAERIPHYRERRAERNEAZER GRI103:EEHH: REBKH03-1%103-2( &
A3.1 EERERRHTENTE- GRI 301 : #7 - GRI 302 : 84 - GRI 303 : /K »
GRI 304 =¥ % HME - GRI 305 « HEMXGRI
306 : BEKMEY—HHER)
GRI 303 : 7Kk : K & {5 3(303-2
GRI 304 : £ %M B & EF304-2
GRI 306 : BEKHIEE ) : $ 5 (£ 53063 (O R
306-5
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EH BREREE #9 GRIZEEHE* R
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, ~ GRI 102: General Disclosures: Disclosures 102-8 218
age group and geographical region. (a), 102-8 (b), and 102-8 (c)
GRI 405: Diversity and Equal Opportunity:
Disclosure 405-1(b-ii)
BEENESR RUH ERER FRAFNKUEEHDOEER GRI102: —RBE  WEFR102-8 (A) 102-8
B1.1 By (B)%102-8 (¢)
GRI405 : LTI R FEHE  FE (FR405-1
(B-Il)
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group  GRI 401: Employment: Disclosure 401-1 (b) 219
and geographical region.
BRENER RUR FRARNEEDNESRKLE . GRI401 ER - BEFF401-1 (b)
B1.2
B2: Health and General Information on: GRI 103: Management Approach: Disclosure 182
Safety Disclosure  (a)  the policies; and 103-2 (c-i) (used together with GRI
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and 403:0ccupational Health and Safety)
regulations that have a significant GRI 419: Socioeconomic Compliance: Disclosure
impact on the issuer relating to 419-1
providing a safe working environment
and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.
B2: REEZE —RKE ERRBZ2THERERREESEEBENE GRI103: ERAH: REEH03-2(c-i) (&
EEM: GRI403 BEXRERZ2—HER)
A BER GRI419  HE LB AR ER  HEHR419-1
(B) ETHETAREAZENHEBZEZR
R
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities. GRI 403: Occupational Health and Safety: 184
Disclosure 403-2
BRENESR EIBEMECHARRILER. GRI403 - BRERERZ 2 : WE HHK403-2
B2.1
BEREBRMEERAR 2019F5% 225
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=g BREVNER B GRIBZE B F+ %
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. GRI 403: Occupational Health and Safety: 184
Disclosure 403-2
BREREE FIGBAIERH- GRI 403 - B ¥RERZ 2 : KT HH403-2
B2.2
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety ~ GRI 103: Management Approach: Disclosure 182-183
measures adopted, how they are implemented 103-2 and 103-3 (a-i) (used together with GRI
and monitored. 403: Occupational Health and Safety)
BREMER HOMRMOBEREEL2ER ARMEHE GRI103: R REMKK03-2%103-3
B2.3 RTREERE. (a-i) (HGRI403 BERERZ 2
)
B3: General Policies on improving employees’ knowledge  GRI 103: Management Approach: Disclosure 184-185
Development  Disclosure  and skills for discharging duties at work. 103-2 (c-i) (used together with GRI 404:
and Training Description of training activities. Training and Education)
GRI 404: Training and Education: Disclosure
404-2 (a)
B3: BRERIFH —RRE ERRABRERTIERENMERBAMON GRI103: EEAH: REBR103-2(ci) (&
R BIES GRI 404 : JIREHE —HEMH)
GRI 404 : FIREHF « H 5 574042 (a)
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by Not covered by the GRI Standards 220
gender and employee category (e.g. senior
management, middle management).
BREREE RURRESERN(NRRAEEE 1REEE GREEREE
B3.1 F)APMXINEEB DL
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per GRI 404: Training and Education: Disclosure 220
employee by gender and employee category. 404-1
BREBERE RUSNKREEENES BEESTMXIN GRI404: JIREHE  RE R K041
B3.2 FHEEE o
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EH BREREE #9 GRIZEEHE* R
B4: Labour General Information on: GRI 103: Management Approach: Disclosure 185
Standards Disclosure  (a)  the policies; and 103-2 (c-i) (used together with GRI 408: Child
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and Labor and GRI 409: Forced or Compulsory
regulations that have a significant Labor)
impact on the issuer relating to GRI'419: Socioeconomic Compliance: Disclosure
preventing child and forced labour. 419-1
B4: B TRA —REE BB LETHRHBIN: GRI 103 - B 78t WEHR103-2(c-i) (8
(A BE: R GRI 408 : E T R GRI 409 : 388 5k 58 #l 558) —
(B) ETHBTABEAZENMEBZER HER)
Bl GRI419  HE LB AR ER  WEHR419-1
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment GRI 103: Management Approach: Disclosure 185
practices to avoid child and forced labour. 103-2 (used together with GRI 408: Child
Labor and GRI 409: Forced or Compulsory
Labor)
GRI 408: Child Labor: Disclosure 408-1(c)
GRI'409: Forced or Compulsory Labor: Disclosure
409-1(b)
BRENER HiRIBREMNOBEAELETIREMES GRI103: BRI REKK103-2(£GR
B4.1 I 408 : T R GRI 409 : B KA HI S8 — G2
)
GRI 408 : & T : 5 5 30408-1(c)
GRI 409 : 38238 38 1% 3) T 15 K409-1(b)
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such ~ GRI 103: Management Approach: Disclosure 185
practices when discovered. 103-2 (used together with GRI 408: Child
Labor and GRI 409: Forced or Compulsory
Labor)
GRI 408: Child Labor: Disclosure 408-1(c)
GRI 409: Forced or Compulsory Labor: Disclosure
409-1(b)
BRENER HOEERERBELSAREARBAMKRG GRI103 - ER 5  KEFK103-2(HRGRI
B4.2 e 408 : BT RGRI 409 : 838 K& 5158 —
)
GRI 408 : E T : R FERR408-1(c)
GRI 409 : 9838 3 34 ) 25 3 : R B 16 50409-1(b)
BERBEBMCEGRAR 2019F% 227
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=g BREVNER B GRIBZE B F+ %
Operating Practices
EEEH
B5: Supply General Policies on managing environmental and social GRI 103: Management Approach: Disclosure 188-189
Chain Disclosure  risks of the supply chain. 103-2 (c-i) (used together with GRI 308:
Management Supplier Environmental Assessment and GRI

414: Supplier Social Assessment)

B5: HIERER —RKE BEEERIRE R RBEE GRI 103 : EEF#t: BEBKEH103-2(c-i) (&
GRI 308 : f E B IRIA AT RGRI 414 : &S
e E—HER)

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.  GRI 102: General Disclosures: Disclosure 102-9
BRENES RHRIASNHREHHA - GRI 102 : —fRIE : WFE H3N102-9
B5.1
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging ~ GRI 103: Management Approach: Disclosure 190
suppliers, number of suppliers where the 103-2 (used together with GRI 308: Supplier

practices are being implemented, how they are  Environmental Assessment and GRI 414:
implemented and monitored. Supplier Social Assessment)
GRI 308: Supplier Environmental Assessment:
Disclosures 308-1 and 308-2
GRI 414: Supplier Social Assessment: Disclosures
414-1 and 414-2
BRENER BAEHEREEENEDN MEANTERE GRI103:ERF: HRERHK03-2(HEGRI
B5.2 PlevftERm e  ARBEBRTRER A 308 : HEBHRFAERGRI 414 HEHHE
AHE—GHER)
GRI 308 : ft A RFE A5 - R R3308-1R
308-2
GRI 414 - BB &3 : REBFH44-1R
414-2
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EH BREREE #9 GRIZEEHE* R
B6: Product General Information on: GRI 103: Management Approach: Disclosure 160
Responsibility ~ Disclosure  (a)  the policies; and 103-2 (c-i) (used together with GRI 416:
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and Customer Health and Safety, GRI 417:
regulations that have a significant Marketing and Labeling, and GRI 418:
impact on the issuer relating to health Customer Privacy)
and safety, advertising, labelling and GRI 416: Customer Health and Safety: Disclosure
privacy matters relating to products 416-2
and services provided and methods of ~ GRI 417: Marketing and Labeling: Disclosures
redress. 417-2 and 417-3
GRI'418: Customer Privacy: Disclosure 418-1
GRI' 419: Socioeconomic Compliance: Disclosure
419-1
Bo. EmAL —REE BRFREERNBRBNERERZE ES 18 GRI103: EEA#: REKRK103-2(c-) (&
ERABEEURBRA A GRI416 : EFREERZ S GRI 417 : TR
A BE R BURGRI 418 - BEFPLE—HERA)
B) BFHEBETATEATENHBAZER GRI46:FPERERE  KEBEFH416-2
Bl GRI 417 (TR E - WERH417-28417-3
GRI418 : BRFALE - BEHHK418-1
GRI419 : H B BEREMRE : KB HF419-1
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped  Not covered by the GRI Standards 170-171
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons.
MRENER CEICERERARTRZ2EREEMN GREBEREE
B6.1 ARBE A DL
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related GRI 102: General Disclosures: Disclosures 102-43 170-171

BRENER
B6.2

complaints received and how they are dealt
with.

REBNERRRBORFHE UL

and 102-44
GRI 103: Management Approach: Disclosure
103-2 (c-vi)
GRI 418: Customer Privacy: Disclosure 418-1
GRI102 : — MR 58 « B 1R 30102-43%102-44
GRI103 : BB 778t BEHHK103-2(c-vi)
GRI 418 : B P - BB (504181
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=g BREVNER B GRIBZE B F+ %
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing  Not covered by the GRI Standards N/A

and protecting intellectual property rights.

BMREMER HLISAELRRBEAZEEFENED- GRIZEREE

B6.3
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and ~ Not covered by the GRI Standards N/A
recall procedures.
BRENER BIZSETRRRERBKRER - GRIBEREE
B6.4
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and ~ GRI 103: Management Approach: Disclosures 172

privacy policies, how they are implemented 103-2 and 103-3 (a-i) (used together
and monitored.

MRENIRE B EBEEERRERBALRE  UREMEEH GRI 103 : EEFi: WEKK103-2%103-3

B6.5 IREER - (a-i) (EEGRI418: BFALBE—HER)
B7: Anti- General Information on: GRI 103: Management Approach: Disclosure 186-187
corruption Disclosure  (a)  the policies; and 103-2 (c-i) (used together with GRI 205: Anti-
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and corruption)
regulations that have a significant GRI 205 Anti-corruption: Disclosure 205-3

impact on the issuer relating to bribery, GRI 419: Socioeconomic Compliance: Disclosure
extortion, fraud and money laundering. ~ 419-1

B7. REF —REER BEILHER R BFREREMN: GRI 103 : EE 3t : BEBKFH103-2(c-i) (&
(A BRI R GRI 205 : REF—HFA)
(B) ETHEOTABEAYEMMEBZERR GRI205: RET: HEK205-3
e GRI 419 : # 24 EEH B 1R R F419-1
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EH BREREE #9 GRIZEEHE* R
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding GRI 205: Anti-corruption: Disclosure 205-3 186

corrupt practices brought against the issuer or
its employees during the reporting period and
the outcomes of the cases.

BRENES RESBNEETARARESR TE&E‘EE%%%

B7.1 BTRARANHE RFDER
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and

whistle-blowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored.

GRI 205 : REF : # & {£57205-3

GRI 102: General Disclosures: Disclosure 102-17 186-187
GRI 103: Management Approach: Disclosures
103-2 and 103-3 (a-i) (used together
with GRI 205: Anti-corruption); GRI 205: Anti-
corruption: Clause 1.2

BREBER HAMSEERBRER  AREBHITRE GRI102: —RKRE - BEHK02-17
B7.2 Bh&e GRI 103 - B 7 5f - BB ER103-25103-3
(a-i) (EGRI 205 : REF—HER);
GRI 205 : REJT : k1.2
Community
#HE
B8: Community General Policies on community engagement to GRI 103: Management Approach: Disclosure 191

Investment Disclosure  understand the needs of the communities
where the issuer operates and to ensure
its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.

B&: itREH —REKE BRNER2ERERLENELRTRNE

*

BE REXBEYELERURAGOHRK

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education,
environmental concerns, labour needs, health,
culture, sport).

BRpENEE ZIEREE (N¥E BEFH 4IFK

BS.1 B X 85)-

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to
the focus area.
MREWEE fEIEEMPRAER(MEBEIEH) -
B8.2

The linkage between the GRI standards and disclosures that relate to
each aspect in HKEX ESG Reporting Guide refers to the summary table
from the “Linking the GRI Standards and HKEX ESG Reporting Guide”.

103-2 (c-i) (used together with GRI 413: Local
Communities)

GRI 103 : BB H T HEEH103-2(c-i) (£
GRI 413 : EAtE—HER)

GRI'203: Indirect Economic Impacts: Disclosure 191
203-1(a)

GRI 203 : BAET 2 FEE203-1(a)

GRI 201: Economic Performance: Disclosure 201- N/A
1(a-ii)
GRI 201 : &R B FF201-1(a-ii)

* WGRIEEBERKENEEHEX G HRR A]E M
BIRE B REFHE 155 87H 517 [ Linking
the GRI Standards and HKEX ESG Reporting
Guide | A& #8 7% °

<
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B R HENRE

-
pwc B R Ak

To the Members of Shougang Concord International Z:ERERLCEERATRE
Enterprises Company Limited (REBEFME L Z HRLAE])
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION =R
What we have audited RMHEBESHAR

The consolidated financial statements of Shougang Concord BEBEEMCEBRAF (UTHEBEIEAT])
International Enterprises Company Limited (the “Company”) NEKEBEARAR (A THBIEEE])HINE
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 240 to 240BE E406ENGAMERE B

406, which comprise:

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 e M2019F12 A31H WA MR R
December 2019; =

. the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for HEZHIEFEMNGE2MBER:

the year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the e HEZRLFENGRaERZEH R
year then ended,

. the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year e HEZBLFENGEARERER R
then ended; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, e REMBRENT  REEESRECR
which include a summary of significant accounting ME -
policies.
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Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to impairment
assessment of investment in an associate — Shougang Fushan
Resources Group Limited (“Shougang Resources”).

B R E RS

EMWER

BMRE ZEREVBRREREESSS
MAEEME (BAVBRMESER) AEMF
BT EBESEMN2019F12HA318 M4
EUBMRAREBEZBILEFECHEENE
FARGEReRE WEERES (Rl
By 2R -

ERNER
BAPERBEELSIMAGRMN (BEER
R ETE - RMAEXFERNTAENER
EEERNRS [ZBE R ETGRE M BHREA
EOEEIHBOPIEE— TR

BAMRGE RAIMERSNRFEEE TR &E
B ARMNE R IREER

o

Bt

REZEGTMAGRAN (EXSHEER
STRD (AT TSFR))  BABIN BF
B YEETTARMEMEREERE-

FARETSEE

RRETFASRERMANEXAE RRYH
ARGEEMBREANBIRR/EENFTH &
LEREAERMBNEBGAMBHRRALEA
EARETEREN RATEHEEFHEEMR
BEENER-

ROEF PRI NBRBS TR RN —F
e nm (BMELUEREEERAR ([EHHE
BIR]) ) ERBERE-

BEERBRAMCEXARAT 20193 233



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B B &

Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMHNE DAL ERREET SR

R-—BBEAT (BERER) RENREFTE

Impairment assessment of investment in an associate - Shougang Resources

Refer to Notes 4 and 18(A) to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group held significant
interests in Shougang Resources, an associate of the
Group which engaged in coking coal mining, production
and sales of coking coal products. The carrying amount
of the investment aggregated to HK$4,877,876,000 of
which HK$1,048,488,000 was goodwill. An impairment
assessment was performed in respect of the investment
in Shougang Resources. In carrying out the impairment
assessment, management calculated the recoverable
amount based on value-in-use calculation, as determined
by the discounted cash flow model. The key assumptions
of the discounted cash flow model included revenue
growth rates, terminal growth rate, gross margin and
the discount rate which required significant management
judgement.

FBLHEA M RMERMTARMFE18(A)

M2019F12A318 ESEBEFAFEHAR( E5EH
M—HEREEERAR CEMBEENBERR)) ZERE
HoREZEMEST AB14,877,876,0000T  H A EE
1,048,488,000t AR E . BEEECHRNEMERZIKE
EHURER S - AMEH R EF R TEERERAMEERS
RERNETZFEAEBEFEANKESE -BIRRSTREE
ANETEREPESHELIEREEBH B 2 W ABER -
KB RE ERERMF X

Our procedures in relation to the impairment assessment
of the investment in this associate included:

- Evaluating the appropriateness of management'’s
model used in the value-in-use calculation
and assessing the accuracy of mathematical
calculations used in the model;

- Assessing the appropriateness and
reasonableness of the key assumptions, which
included revenue growth rates, terminal growth
rate, gross margin and discount rate based on
our knowledge of the business and the industry
and taking into account Shougang Resources’
future operating plans. This included comparing
(i) the revenue growth rates, terminal growth
rate and gross margin to industry trends and
Shougang Resources’ historical performance
and (ii) the cost of capital used for Shougang
Resources to the discount rates of comparable
companies in the industry;

BPILR M L A RRENREFERRNEF B2

- AEEREENEREEFETMERARANEE
M WEHER ZE R P E RN BB E BRI

- REBRMHUEHERTEZER UREEFHE
TRE)RRE L E FHEREEMEEARR
EEERAENE  BRERAEER KEREE.
EMERRERXR EREOVRAEBEER KEERE
EREMERTEBELEMERBEEEDN
LB K (i) & S &R 2 B AR AR B AT L8 A A
MREIR R A L8
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B AR E

Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMHOE DAL EREET SR

Impairment assessment of investment in an associate - Shougang Resources (continued)

R-—EBHEQT (EHER) RENBER M (£)

Based on the result of the impairment assessment
conducted by management of the Group, no provision for
impairment was necessary as at 31 December 2019.

We focused on this area because the carrying amount of
the investment in Shougang Resources was significant
to the consolidated financial statements. Further, the
judgement and assumptions applied to the impairment
assessment in calculating the recoverable amount based
on the discounted cash flow model were critical.
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- Comparing the current year's actual results
with the prior year's forecast to assess the
reasonableness of management'’s forecasting;

- Reconciling the data input in the impairment
assessment to supporting evidence such as
budgets approved by the Board; and

- Evaluating management’s sensitivity analysis
on the key assumptions used in the discounted
cash flow model to understand the impact
of reasonable changes in assumptions on the
estimated recoverable amounts.

Based on the procedures performed, we found that the
key assumptions and estimates made by management
were supported by the available evidence.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.
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238

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Ng Ka Ho.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 March 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #EZE2019F12A31H EF/E

2019 2018
Note HKS$'000 HK$°000
Wiz EBHEFT BT
(Restated)
C=27),
Continuing operations BELEER
Revenue ON 5 396,091 176,504
Cost of sales HERA 8 (193,695) (68,324)
Gross profit EF 202,396 108,180
Other income H it g A 6 92,690 36,688
Other gains, net Bz %5 7 21,873 21,863
Provision for impairment losses JE W BR BB B BB
for trade receivables 20 (400) -
Changes in fair value of commodity contracts ERAKZ AREEE 21 (3,618) 44,713
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HRBRARZEIE 32 (124,599) -
Gain on bargain purchase B e 30(a) 86,155 -
Administrative expenses THZH 8 (230,774) (161,849)
Operating profit RERF 43,723 49,595
Finance costs SRR 10 (27,358) (5,699)
Share of results of associates BEME AR ER 295,502 275,363
Share of results of joint ventures BEERARICER 89 3,253
Profit before income tax B AT B 88 AR A 311,956 322,512
Income tax credit/(expense) FrEfEe,/ (i) 11 129,205 (10,011)
Profit from continuing operations BELEEKZRF 441,161 312,501
Profit from discontinued operation BRIMEEEBE 2 EH
(attributable to equity holders of (RRRERFAAER)
the Company) 24 904 44,270
Profit for the year FERA 442,065 356,771
Profit is attributable to: BT ALEEER:
Owners of the Company AREEBA 443,003 353,097
Non-controlling interests FEVER I (938) 3,674
442,065 356,771
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZ=2019F12A31H IEFE

2019 2018
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
lot=3 BETT BEFT
(Restated)
(#E3))
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Htr2@ (FE) KE
Items that have been/maybe subsequently B GRS ER
reclassified to profit or loss: FE@ZHEA -
Share of exchange differences of associates Bhme R keE A
and joint ventures arising on translation of WEBNEBEEY
foreign operations ERET (70,072) (167,943)
Reclassification of exchange reserve upon REE—RINBAR®R
disposal of a subsidiary BN BELRE (96,563) -
Exchange differences arising on translation of &GN EBKEEZ
foreign operations fE N =% (55,264) (29,613)
Items that will not be reclassified to BT BEHAEE B
profit or loss: EH:
Share of fair value change on investment Bh—HMELRARETER
in equity instruments designated BAABEFARMZEYK
as fair value through other comprehensive B BATAREZ
income of an associate NAEEEY 96,905 6,730
Other comprehensive loss for the year FEAMEZEBE (124,994) (190,826)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEXRk=ERE 317,071 165,945
Total comprehensive income/(Ioss) WTATEEZZE
attributable to: Wz (B8 BE:
Owners of the Company ERARHEBA 322,174 169,634
Non-controlling interests FERER (5,103) (3,689)
317,071 165,945
Total comprehensive income attributable to ARAIEBANEEZ
owners of the Company: FENEBE:
Continuing operations BERKEER 321,270 125,364
Discontinued operation RETI S 24 904 44,270
322,174 169,634
Earnings per share for profit from FERAEBREEFEA
continuing operations attributable to BEFESEEREAZ
the ordinary equity holders of BREF:
the Company:
- Basic and diluted (HK cents) —EARHE (GBI 12 8.31 7.67
Earnings per share for profit attributable to A2 T L BEZEFHA
the ordinary equity holders of EEEANz2ERER:
the Company:
- Basic and diluted (HK cents) —EARHE (GBI 12 8.33 8.77

The notes on pages 248 to 406 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mE B IR R R

As at 31 December 2019 7201912 A31H

2019 2018
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
W&t BEFT BT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets *RBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME BERES 13(A) 17,234 8,066
Right-of-use assets EREAE 13(B) 1,087,452 -
Investment properties REME 14 148,856 151,702
Investments in associates REFERRIZIRE 18(A) 5,034,394 5,232,325
Investments in joint ventures REERBIZIRE 18(B) 269,471 80,216
Financial assets at fair value through BAnBEMABRZ
profit or loss — non-current CRMEE-ERH 19 238,569 195,416
Assets relating to commodity contracts FlmmalticEE
— non-current ) 21 = 150,193
Prepayments and deposits BAFERRE 20 129,671 -
Deferred income tax assets ERFMEHEE 28 3,076 -
Other non-current assets HiEmeEE 15 258,756 246,280
Total non-current assets FRBEEHE 7,187,479 6,064,198
Current assets RBEE
Trade and bills receivables PSS 20 99,294 117,231
Prepayments, deposits and BRAFE Re Rk
other receivables Hip e A 20 103,079 64,153
Financial assets at fair value through BRAABEFABEL
profit or loss — current SREE-RD 19 527,194 145,316
Assets relating to commodity contracts BRERMENZEE
- current -nE 21 - 3,425
Restricted bank deposits RIR I $RIT R 22 22,763 2,036
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR MRS 23 3,057,215 3,034,026
Total current assets REBEEAE 3,809,545 3,366,187
Total assets BEE 10,997,024 9,430,385
Equity B
Capital and reserves R R &1
Share capital P A 25 10,125,972 8,830,429
Reserves L (441,667) 135,828
Capital and reserves attributable to owners A2 FTEE ABERKAR #HE
of the Company 9,684,305 8,966,257
Non-controlling interests FEiRER 138,319 29,199
Total equity BmRER 9,822,624 8,995,456
The notes on pages 248 to 406 are an integral part of these 2248Z406B 2 AR GATERER 2 E

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mE BRI R

As at 31 December 2019 72201912 A31H

2019 2018
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Wiz BETT BT
LIABILITIES g
Non-current liabilities ¥REEE
Borrowings - non-current EH—ERE 27 450,957 -
Lease liabilities — non-current MEBE-FERM 13(B) 397,411 -
Deferred income tax liabilities BXEFEHRER 28 36,070 29,633
Other non-current liabilities HihERBAEE - 1,139
Total non-current liabilities FRBEBEE 884,438 30,772
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and bills payables ERHEZRREE 26 22,324 61,379
Other payables, provision and accrued liabilities H 4 208 « BHE K
[EsHEE 26 145,005 74,720
Contract liabilities BREE 9,611 8,047
Tax payable e 138 33,959 156,868
Borrowings - current EE it 27 5,710 103,143
Lease liabilities — current HEEE-RH 13(B) 73,353 -
Total current liabilities REBREARE 289,962 404,157
Total liabilities mefs 1,174,400 434,929
Total equity and liabilities HEEREE 10,997,024 9,430,385

The consolidated financial statements on pages 240 to 406
were approved by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2020
and were signed on its behalf.

Zhao Tianyang
HXE
Director

EF

BN E240F 4068 2R TG AR 20204F3

A30HEE=gHE WHRERE-

Liang Hengyi
Director

EFE

BEERBRAMEXARAT 201965 243



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

RERRBER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZ=2019F12A31H EFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

ENGE 2PN A
Capital Share Security Non-
Share  contribution Exchange option investment Accumulated Other controlling
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve losses reserve Total interests Total
RA  rEGE  EREE BERERE ZRREEE  ZHEB EhEB At FERER At
HKS$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS$ 000 HK$ 000
BEFT  BETr  BEFT BMTr BEFrL BETr BEFr BT EEFn BB
Balance at 1 January 2018 R2018E1A1A2E
# 7,349,545 4,848,033 253,752 289,560 (677,801)  (5,038,300) - 7,024,789 218,863 7,243,652
Comprehensive income 2EYE
Profit for the year FEET - - - - - 353,097 - 353,097 3,674 356,771
Share of other comprehensive ~ BEBERAR
(loss)/income of associates and A& R A EMZE
joint ventures (B8),/ - - (167,943) - 6,730 - - (161,213 - (161,213)
Exchange differences arising on T BB EBELZ
translation of foreign operations [ % Z% - - (22,250) - - - - (22,250) (7,363) (29,613)
Total comprehensive (loss)) ~ £R2ME (F8)/
income for the year WEBE - - (190,193 - 6,730 353,097 - 169,634 (3,689) 165,945
Ordinary shares issued, netof ~ BE{TERER:
transaction costs (Note 25) BRI HHE
(Hst25) 1,480,884 - - - - - - 1,480,884 - 1,480,884
Transactions with non-controlling E3ERRER T 2
interests (Note 31) 25 (Hi31) - - - - - - (41,426) (41,426) (185,975) (227,401)
Reclassification of share option ~ EH D BERERE
reserve to accumulated losses  EZitEIE - - - (289,560) - 289,560 - - - -
Realisation of gain from disposal [F—EB & AR HER
of FVOCI to an associate ArEEHAL
PEME NEE - - - - - 33237 - 332376 - 33237
Transfer to statutory reserve BRTETHE
(Note (i) (W) - - - - - (1,721) 1721 - - -
At 31 December 2018 #20185128318 8,830,429 4,848,033 63,559 - (671,071)  (4,064,988) (39,705 8,966,257 29,199 8,995,456
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REEmEER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZ=2019F12A31H IEFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

RRFES AEL
Capital Security Non-
Share  contribution Exchange  investment Accumulated Other controlling
capital reserve reserve reserve losses reserve Total interests Total
BRA  rERE  EXARE EHREME  RHEBR HtR6 ait FERER it
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK3$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
BEFT  EEFT EETFT BETr FETr BETr FEFr BEFr BETa
Balance at 1 January 2019 R2019F1 818 248 8,830,429 4,848,033 63,559 (671,071)  (4,064,988) (39,705) 8,966,257 29,199 8,995,456
Comprehensive income 2@k
Profit for the year FERT - - - - 443,003 - 443,003 (938) 442,065
Share of other comprehensive ~ EE{5EE 4 A R
(loss)/income of associates AR THM%E
and joint ventures (B#)/ & - - (70,072) 96,905 - - 26,833 - 26,833
Reclassification of exchange REE-RREL
reserve upon disposal of fﬁi%ﬁ/‘*ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ
a subsidiary (Note 32) (H32) - - (96,563) - - - (96,563) - (96,563)
Exchange differences arisingon ~ &GN EBEEZ
translation of foreign operations [ ¥ %% - - (51,099) - - - (51,099) (4,165) (55,264)
Total comprehensive (loss)/  £R2E (F8)/
income for the year WHEEE - - (217,734) 96,905 443,003 - 322,174 (5,103) 317,071
Ordinary shares issued, netof ~ BE{TERER
transaction costs (Note 25) NBERHHA
(Hiz225) 1,295,543 - - - - - 1,295,543 - 1,295,543
Acquisitions of subsidiaries KEREAR
(Note 30) (Hi##30) - - - - - - - 118,814 118,814
Dividends RS - - - - (899,669) - (899,669) (4,591) (904,260)
Transfer to statutory reserve HAZETRE
(Note (i) (W) - - - - (31) 31 - - -
At 31 December 2019 R2019%12A4318 10,125,972 4,848,033 (154,175) (574,166)  (4,521,685) (39,674) 9,684,305 138,319 9,822,624
Note (i): FtaEa) -
The PRC laws and regulations require companies registered in the  ARENA@RZMERAEFREARLME ([HE] - LAWK

People’s Republic of China (the “PRC",
shall exclude Hong Kong, the Macao Special Administrative Region of the

for the purpose of this report

People’s Republic of China and Taiwan) to provide for certain statutory
reserves, which are to be appropriated from the net profit (after offsetting
accumulated losses from prior years) as reported in their respective statutory
financial statements, before profit distributions to equity holder.

All statutory reserves are created for specific purposes. PRC company is
required to appropriate 10% of net profits to statutory reserves, upon
distribution of its post-tax profits of the current year. A company may
discontinue the contribution when the aggregate sum of the statutory
surplus reserve is more than 50% of its registered capital. The statutory
reserves shall only be used to make up losses of the company, to expand the
company’s production operations, or to increase the capital of the company.

The notes on pages 248 to 406 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #EZE2019F12A31H EF/E

2019 2018
Note HK$'000 HK$°000
lotz3 BETT BETFT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHzHERE
Net cash generated from operations XBeBREReFH 34 256,096 131,156
Interest expense FEHY (118) (1,887)
Income tax paid BRER (8,843) (9,222)
Net cash generated from RETHRBZ
operating activities BREeRE 247,135 120,047
Cash flows from investing activities RETHZHALRE
Advance to associates BYBENR 28R (78) (233)
Repayment from associates REBWEDAZER 241 -
Dividends received from associates B UrEE &N R 2 IR B 18(4) 248,852 319,117
Interest received B U F B 90,915 36,559
Repayment from related companies KREBAH AR ZER 19 379
Advance to related companies R NI (6,689) -
Withdrawal of time deposits with original RERIBAR=TAA L
maturity over three months TEHER - 100,000
Placement of restricted bank deposits FHEBHIETER (23,143) (2,036)
Withdrawal of restricted bank deposits REXBHIRITER 2,036 618
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYE WENMRE 13(4) (11,778) (3,776)
Purchase of investment properties EEREME 14 = (137,146)
Addition of financial assets at fair value RERAABEFAERL
through profit or loss TREE (1,092,119) (84,291)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at ~~ HEZARBEFTAEBHEZ
fair value through profit or loss SPREBEEZFMERE 672,904 37,604
Purchase of other non-current assets BEHMERDEE 75 (83,986) (4,985)
Settlement of liabilities relating to EHEMRARENZEE
commodity contracts 21(c) - (49,650)
(Payment for)/proceeds from acquisitions W BE P B 2 A)
of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired (%) /FBHRIE
(e kERe) 30 (214,825) 5,481
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary, HE—FARB AR ZMBHRIE
net of cash disposed of (MBEELERS) 32 205,961 -
Proceeds from disposal of commodity contracts HEEMA L ZFTEHIE 21(a) 150,000 -
Prepayment for leases MEBEMNFTE (122,694) -
Capital injection into a joint venture A—RXEENEEE 18(B) (274,513) -
Net cash (used in)/generated from REED (FA)/ Mz
investing activities ReBE (458,897) 217,641
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
REBRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZ=2019F12A31H IEFE

2019 2018
Note HK$'000 HK$°000
lot=3 BETT BETFT
Cash flows from financing activities METHZRAERE
Repayment of borrowings EBEER (102,904) (1,949,104)
Proceeds from borrowings {ERFTISE = 2,048,435
Interest paid BEXHFE (16,959) -
Net proceeds from issue of ordinary shares ROLEBR MBRIEZE 25 1,295,543 1,218,708
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEEE (18,971) -
Dividends paid to the Company's shareholders 3 i 7R 1 A A R 2 % B, 29 (899,669) -
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests YR THBARFERERS 2
in subsidiaries % & (4,591) -
Net cash generated from financing activities & EH B2 REFE 252,449 1,318,039
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents BRERBEEEMEMNFE 40,687 1,655,727
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of FzBReRReEED
the year 3,034,026 1,389,628
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEEREH 7 ZE (17,498) (11,329)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ERXZBERESZEY 23 3,057,215 3,034,026

For cash flows of discontinued operation, please refer to Note
24 of the consolidated financial statements.

The notes on pages 248 to 406 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

BREREREXRBG 2 RERE
FITSERR M 5524 -

F2HEE

F248B EF406E 2 AAE AV ERE
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GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company.
The principal activities of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are set out in
Notes 17 and 18. The addresses of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are
7th Floor, Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre, 56
Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, as at 31
December 2019, Shougang Group Co., Ltd., a company
incorporated in the PRC, is the ultimate parent of the
Company.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars, unless
otherwise stated. These financial statements have been
reviewed by the audit committee of the Company and
approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 30
March 2020.

—REH
RATDREBEMBR L2 BERAA
ERAEEEHEZIRERAE ([H
RA) L.
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ZWMB AR BEAARAERRIMNE
DEBHNMI 17218 c A A FZ
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VE(T & LT B R D IRIT B E P LT
@o

KABIEERE M2019F12H318 -
BEMEEARAR (—HRFEFMEK
VA NI DY =V /NS¢ <3 SN

BRIESHHRA  TAIRGE M EHRE A
BETTABMNESY -ZEHBHRED
BANREZZESEMIHESTER
202093 A308 #t & T2 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZ=2019F12A31H IEFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the

preparation of these consolidated financial statements

are set out below. These policies have been consistently

applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise

stated.

2.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the
Company have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs”) and requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties and financial assets and liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss, which are carried
at fair values.

The preparation of the consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4.
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ARGV BHRRSEA 2 T EZ G
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1
2.1.1
(a)

Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The following new accounting standards,
amendments to standards and interpretations
have been adopted by the Group for the first
time for the financial year beginning on or after 1
January 2019:

. HKFRS 16 Leases

o Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation — Amendments to HKFRS 9

o Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures — Amendments to HKAS 28

o Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards
2015 - 2017 Cycle

° Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement — Amendments to HKAS 19

o Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments

The Group had to change its accounting policies
as a result of adopting HKFRS 16. The Group
elected to adopt the new rules retrospectively
but recognised the cumulative effect of initially
applying the new standard on 1 January 2019.
This is disclosed in Note 2.1.1(c). Most of the
other amendments listed above did not have
any impact on the amounts recognised in prior
periods and are not expected to significantly
affect the current or future periods.

2
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZ=2019F12A31H IEFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)

2.1
2.1.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective

Certain new accounting standards, amendments
to standards and interpretations have been
published that are not mandatory for the year
ended 31 December 2019 and have not been

ERETBREE (&)

2.1
2.1.1

(b)

mREE (&)
B HEEBRKE (&)

BB 18 R A B2 F 5T R4S S
BB TSRS 2ER)
BTG R ER Z BT
NEEED BMEEZNEZE2019
F12A3MAIEFE@BIBTT A
EENMKRREERM-

early adopted by the Group.

Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning
on or after
RT5 B8
ZERBZ
B HBER

Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018
2018F B HE ZHAER

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8
BB ERBIHRR
BB ST ERESHE ZIEF]

Amendments to HKFRS 3
BB EEREIR 2(EF]

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

BRI HRE R FEI
BRI ERFEIREED
P MEERNET 2 EE]

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

BBV BREENEI105% R
BB G ERFE285 2 18F]

HKFRS 17

FRMBHREENFE17R

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 1 January 2020

B mE 2 o ESR 2020F1A1H

Definition of Material 1 January 2020

EAUNEE 20201 A1H

1 January 2020
2020F1 H1H

Definition of Business
XBHWESR

Interest Rate Benchmark Refrom 1 January 2020

FRELENE 2020F1A1H

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an To be determined

Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
REFHHBENRHIEE AR ZHEH
BEREXEA

BT

1 January 2021
20211 A1H

Insurance Contract

o=
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1
2.1.1

(b)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (continued)

The Group has already commenced an assessment
of the impact of these new or revised standards,
interpretation and amendments, certain of
which are relevant to the Group’s operations.
According to the preliminary assessment made
by the directors, no significant impact on the
financial performance and position of the Group
is expected when they become effective.

Impact of adoption on consolidated financial
statements — HKFRS 16

This note explains the impact of the adoption of
HKFRS 16 Leases on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 Leases
retrospectively from 1 January 2019, but has
not restated comparatives for the year ended
31 December 2018, as permitted under the
specific transition provisions in the standard. The
reclassifications and the adjustments arising from
the new leasing rules are therefore recognised in
the opening consolidated statement of financial
position on 1 January 2019. The new accounting
policies are disclosed in Note 2.28.

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised
lease liabilities in relation to leases which had
previously been classified as ‘operating leases’
under the principles of HKAS 17 Leases. These
liabilities were measured at the present value of
the remaining lease payments, discounted using
the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as of 1
January 2019. The weighted average lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease
liabilities on 1 January 2019 was 4.6%.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(c) Impact of adoption on consolidated financial

statements — HKFRS 16 (continued)

(i) Practical expedients applied

In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time, the
Group has used the following practical expedients
permitted by the standard:

applying a single discount rate to a
portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics

accounting for operating leases with
a remaining lease term of less than 12
months as at 1 January 2019 as short-term
leases

excluding initial direct costs for the
measurement of the right-of-use asset at
the date of initial application; and

using hindsight in determining the lease
term where the contract contains options
to extend or terminate the lease.

The Group has also elected not to reassess
whether a contract is, or contains a lease at the
date of initial application. Instead, for contracts
entered into before the transition date the Group
relied on its assessment made applying HKAS
17 and Interpretation 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease.

©

e MR EWRM

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZ=2019F12A31H IEFE
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(c) Impact of adoption on consolidated financial
statements — HKFRS 16 (continued)

ERETHEME (&)

2.1
2.1.1

mBLEE (F)
B HREERKE (5

RNE BT MmEER 1657 %
RAEMBHRRITE (B)

(i) Measurement of lease liabilities (i) HEBEZF=E
2019
HK$°000
BEFT
Operating lease commitments MR2018F12A31HMBE 2 K& HE A
disclosed as at 31 December 2018 145,860
Discounted using the lessee’s REXERABBRRAEABEAZ
incremental borrowing rate at the HEERNEHEITAIR
date of initial application 134,513
Less: short-term leases not W AERABEZEHEE
recognised as a liability (6,314)
Less: adjustments as a result of AR IEEERE
a different treatment of TR ML 2 %
extension and termination
options (2,142)
Less: adjustments relating to lease B HEERXERBBERGZ
contracts commencing after HESHNAE AR
the date of initial application (86,762)
Lease liabilities recognised as at 1 R2019F 1 A 1ARZHEAE
January 2019 39,295
Of which are: BB :
Current lease liabilities nEHEEAG 6,511
Non-current lease liabilities ERBHEHERRE 32,784
39,295

Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited Annual Report 2019



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR EWRM

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZ=2019F12A31H IEFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1
2.1.1

(@]

(iii)

(iv)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

Impact of adoption on consolidated financial
statements — HKFRS 16 (continued)

Measurement of right-of-use assets

The associated right-of-use assets for property
leases were measured on a retrospective basis
as if the new rules had always been applied.
Other right-of-use assets were measured at the
amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by
the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to that lease recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2018.

Adjustments recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position on 1 January 2019

The change in accounting policy affected the
following items in the consolidated statement of
financial position on 1 January 2019:

o right-of-use assets — increase by
approximately HK$78,701,000

. prepayments — decrease by approximately
HK$39,406,000

o lease liabilities — increase by approximately
HK$39,295,000

There was no net impact on accumulated losses
as at 1 January 2019.

ERETHEME (&)

2.1
2.1.1
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1
2.1.1

(@)

2.2

2.3

(a)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

Impact of adoption on consolidated financial
statements — HKFRS 16 (continued)

Lessor accounting

The Group did not need to make any adjustments
to the accounting for assets held as lessor under
operating leases as a result of the adoption of
HKFRS 16.

Restatements due to discontinued
operation

Certain comparative information for the year
ended 31 December 2018 has been restated
in order to disclose the discontinued operation
separately from the continuing operations.

As the restatements do not affect the
consolidated statement of financial position, it is
not necessary to disclose comparative information
as at 1 January 2018.

Please refer to Note 24 for the details of the
discontinued operation.

Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through
its power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

2
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

(a)

(b)

Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (continued)

Subsidiaries (continued)

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group.

Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of financial position
respectively.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or
joint control. This is generally the case where
the Group holds between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting, after initially being recognised at
cost.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

(c)

(d)

Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (continued)

Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11
investments in joint arrangements are classified

“Joint Arrangements”

as either joint operations or joint ventures. The
classification depends on the contractual rights
and obligations of each investor, rather than the
legal structure of the joint arrangement. The
Company has joint ventures. Interests in joint
ventures are accounted for using the equity
method (see (d) below), after initially being
recognised at cost in the consolidated statement

of financial position.

Equity accounting

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’
s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses
of the investee in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, and the Group’s share
of movements in other comprehensive income
of the investee in other comprehensive income.
Dividends received or receivable from associates
or joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in
the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group's share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its
interest in the entity, including any other
unsecured long term receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the

other entity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

(d)

(e)

Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (continued)

Equity accounting (continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’
s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity
accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments is tested for impairment in
accordance with the policy described in Note
2.11.

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests that do not result in a loss
of control as transactions with equity owners
of the Group. A change in ownership interest
results in an adjustment between the carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling
interests to reflect their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of
the adjustment to non-controlling interests and
any consideration paid or received is recognised
in a separate reserve within equity attributable to
owners of the Company.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

(e)

Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (continued)

Changes in ownership interests (continued)

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control or joint control, any retained interest in
the entity is remeasured to its fair value with
the change in carrying amount recognised in
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
This fair value becomes the initial carrying amount
for the purposes of subsequently accounting for
the retained interest as an associated company,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture
or an associate is reduced but joint control
or significant influence is retained, only a
proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR EWRM

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZ=2019F12A31H IEFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

24

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless
of whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisitions of subsidiaries comprises the:

° fair values of the assets transferred

. liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquired business

o equity interests issued by the Group

o fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement; and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity interest
in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable
assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The excess of the:
. consideration transferred

o amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquired entity; and

o acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquired entity.

2 ERETHBERBE(E)

24

BEREBGERRA

EBEH
PrEXRBAHRASRBEA
FormetBERS TANHE

MmEE-BEMNBARMERZ
RERE:

. PrEmEE A AR(EE

. BT XS ZATHA A
EEZERE

. REEHTTZ It

. KRR ERFMELEZE
MEESXBBEZANE

B: R
. P /B8 2 &) AR A7) 56 A A
ZRSEE.

EXBEHTEBR#EE
UEmAEZABERKAREE:
IR AERE B2 A EBE
8 (FEBRZAISMER) - &
SERZFBWERENRREE
BESe SN E
WA EE  ERETANAEEER
AR Sk

Yo 8 AR R B AN IO E A R S

ATRIA:

. FrEs BB

. }Wﬂ&(%% BE 2 (T fn] JE 42
fpiEm 28 &

. ERERMRAKBEER
RENKBERIBZ A AE
-

7 2019%%K 261



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #EZE2019F12A31H EF/E

2

262

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4

2.5

Business combinations (continued)

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts
are less than the fair value of the net identifiable
assets of the business acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash
consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in
the future are discounted to their present value as
at the date of exchange. The discount rate used
is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being
the rate at which a similar borrowing could be
obtained from an independent financier under
comparable terms and conditions. Contingent
consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial
liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from
such remeasurement are recognised in profit or
loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR EWRM

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZ=2019F12A31H IEFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5

2.6

2.7
(i)

Separate financial statements (continued)

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision maker.

The board of Company has appointed a strategic
steering committee which assesses the financial
performance and position of the Group,
and makes strategic decisions. The steering
committee, which has been identified as being
the chief operating decision maker, consists of the
chief executive officer, the chief financial officer

and the manager for corporate planning.

Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the "functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollar, which is

Company’s functional and presentation currency.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7
(i)

Foreign currency translation (continued)
Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at year end exchange rates
are generally recognised in profit or loss. They
are deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying
cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment
hedges or are attributable to part of the net
investment in a foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, within
finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on a net
basis within other gains, net.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined. Translation differences
on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
For example, translation differences on non-
monetary assets and liabilities such as equities
held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss and translation differences on
non-monetary assets such as equities classified as
fair value through other comprehensive income
are recognised in other comprehensive income
of consolidated statements of comprehensive
income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZ=2019F12A31H IEFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7
(iii)

Foreign currency translation (continued)
Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign
operations (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

o assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated
at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position

o income and expenses for each statement
of comprehensive income are translated
at average exchange rates (unless this is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
dates of the transactions); and

o all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
financial instruments designated as hedges
of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation
is sold or any borrowings forming part of the net
investment are repaid, the associated exchange
differences are reclassified to profit or loss, as
part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the closing rate.

EESHHERE (£Z)
27 HNEBE (EF)
(i) FEHARA
e EME 25| EB AR 2 /F50
XX (BEPUEREBRREEZ

B REE

B 2 KB R BEARRIZIAT
TRABRERZINEE:

. B2 M BARREA
ZEBERABRZMBGNR
MERBHZRHERBE

. BharmlaRR B
B ERBE (FRIFL
FHEZRLIFER S HE
REXRFEEZAED
BUEMBR T W IR
ERXRGHZEXRKRE):
K

. %ﬁmm%%2t%%@
A E A 2 T U 5 ) AR

A ARENTMRIINEE
%M&é%ﬁ%&%ﬁﬁ%%&
BENEAMERIEMERTA
MESMIE X ZEREMEmEIK
mPER B HEBINERLE
BERIEEFHE - BONEAE
R HERNELEZEBETD
@ETE EREEWRZKEE
#)— &6 7

DH

t'/

WEBINEBMEEZEHERLR
REBEARBR/ZSIINEEZE
ERBE LRKRTERBE-

“EARAT 2019 265



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #EZE2019F12A31H EF/E

266

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7
(iv)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is,
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a joint venture that includes
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the currency
translation differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit
or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated currency
translation differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (that
is, reductions in the Group’s ownership interest
in associates or joint ventures that do not result
in the Group losing significant influence or
joint control), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange differences is reclassified

to profit or loss.
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e MR EWRM

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZ=2019F12A31H IEFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items. Cost may also
include transfers from equity of any gains or
losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign
currency purchases of property, plant and
equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a
separate asset is derecognised when replaced.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
profit or loss during the reporting period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate their cost or revalued
amounts, net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold improvements  Shorter of lease term
or 4 to 10 years
Furniture, fixtures and 3 to 10 years

equipment

Motor vehicles 4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8

2.9

2.10
(i)

Property, plant and equipment
(continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing proceeds with carrying amount.
These are included in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Investment properties

Investment properties are held for long-term
rental yields and are not occupied by the Group.
Investment property is initially measured at cost,
including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. Subsequently, they
are carried at fair value. Changes in fair values are
presented in profit or loss as part of other gains,

net.

Intangible assets
Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in Note
15. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is
in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

included in “other non-current assets”
Goodwill on acquisition of associates or joint
ventures is included in the cost of the investment
in associates or joint ventures. Goodwill is
not amortised but it is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that it might be
impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Gains and losses on the
disposal of an entity include the carrying amount

of goodwill relating to the entity sold.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Intangible assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation
is made to those cash-generating units or groups
of cash-generating units that are expected
to benefits from the business combination in
which the goodwill arose. The units or groups of
units are identified at the lowest level at which
goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes, being the operating segments.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Separately acquired intangible assets are shown
at historical cost. Intangible assets acquired in
a business combination are recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. The useful lives
of intangible assets are assessed to be either
finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite
useful lives are subsequently carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
The amortisation period and amortisation method
for an intangibles asset with finite useful life are
assessed at every period end.

Intangible assets with indefinite lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at
the cash generating unit level. Such intangible
assets are not amortised. The useful life of an
intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether the indefinite
life assessment continues to be supportable, if
not, the change in the useful life assessment
from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a
prospective basis.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Intangible assets (continued)

(i)

2.1

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

Amortisation of intangible assets is calculated
using the straight line method to allocate their
costs to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:

Carpark operating rights 5 to 10 years

Funds management contracts 3 to 10 years

These intangible assets are included in “other
non-current assets” in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have
an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they
might be impaired. Other assets are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash inflows
which are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment
at the end of each reporting period.
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E MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZ=2019F12A31H IEFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEEGTHEME (&)
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Non-current assets (or disposal

212 HEREFRRDEE (FHE

groups) held for sale and discontinued
operations

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are
classified as held for sale if their carrying amount
will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use
and a sale is considered highly probable. They
are measured at the lower of their carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell, except
for assets such as deferred tax assets, assets
arising from employee benefits, financial assets
and investment property that are carried at fair
value and contractual rights under insurance
contracts, which are specifically exempt from this
requirement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or
subsequent write-down of the asset (or disposal
group) to fair value less costs to sell. A gain is
recognised for any subsequent increases in fair
value less costs to sell of an asset (or disposal
group), but not in excess of any cumulative
impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or
loss not previously recognised by the date of the
sale of the non-current asset (or disposal group) is
recognised at the date of derecognition.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Non-current assets (or disposal

groups) held for sale and discontinued
operations (continued)

Non-current assets (including those that are
part of a disposal group) are not depreciated or
amortised while they are classified as held for
sale. Interest and other expenses attributable to
the liabilities of a disposal group classified as held
for sale continue to be recognised.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and
the assets of a disposal group classified as held
for sale are presented separately from the other
assets in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The liabilities of a disposal group
classified as held for sale are presented separately
from other liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

A discontinued operation is a component of the
entity that has been disposed of or is classified
as held for sale and that represents a separate
major line of business or geographical area of
operations, is part of a single co-ordinated plan
to dispose of such a line of business or area of
operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale. The results of discontinued
operations are presented separately in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Financial assets

(i)

(i)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income (“OCI") or through profit or loss);
and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI.
For investments in equity instruments that are
not held for trading, this will depend on whether
the Group has made an irrevocable election at
the time of initial recognition to account for the
equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Financial assets (continued)

(iii)

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit
or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried

at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’'s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Interest income from

these financial assets is included in

finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly
in profit or loss and presented in other
gains, net together with foreign exchange
gains and losses. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive

income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR EWRM

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZ=2019F12A31H IEFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Financial assets (continued)

(iii) Measurement (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in
profit or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCl is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and recognised
in other gains, net. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate
method. Foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in other gains, net
and impairment expenses are presented
as separate line item in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the
criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are
measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured
at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss and
presented net within other gains, net in
the period in which it arises.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Financial assets (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Measurement (continued)
Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in OCI,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair
value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends
from such investments continue to be recognised
in profit or loss as other income when the
Group's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognised in revenue or other gains, net
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as applicable. Impairment losses
(and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at FVOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI.
The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables, see
Note 3.1(v)(ii) for further details.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR EWRM

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZ=2019F12A31H IEFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14

2.15

2.16

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position where the Group
currently has a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts, and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Derivatives

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at
the end of each reporting period. The accounting
for subsequent changes in fair value depends on
whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item
being hedged.

During the year, none of the derivative
instruments has qualified for hedge accounting.
Changes in the fair value of any derivative
instrument that does not qualify for hedge
accounting are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Trade and bill receivables

Trade and bill receivables are amounts due from
customers for goods sold or services performed
in the ordinary course of business. Trade and bill
receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when
they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds
the trade and bill receivables with the objective to
collect the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. See Note
20 for further information about the Group's
accounting for trade and bill receivables and Note
2.13 for a description of the Group's impairment
policies.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17

2.19

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the
consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits
held at call with financial institutions, other short-
term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are
shown within borrowings in current liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Group prior to the end
of financial year which are unpaid. Trade and
other payables are presented as current liabilities
unless payment is not due within 12 months after
the reporting period. They are recognised initially
at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZ=2019F12A31H IEFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESHHERE (£Z)
POLICIES (continued)
2.20 Borrowing 220 EE

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.
Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of
the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the
fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down,
the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated
statement of financial position when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of a financial liability that has
been extinguished or transferred to another party
and the consideration paid, including any non-
cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss as finance costs.

Where the terms of a financial liability are
renegotiated and the entity issues equity
instruments to a creditor to extinguish all or part
of the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss, which is
measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability and the fair value
of the equity instruments issued.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20

2.21

2.22

Borrowing (continued)

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset
are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period
is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable
income based on the applicable income tax rate
for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in
deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the
countries where the Company and its subsidiaries
and associates operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZ=2019F12A31H IEFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEEGTHEME (&)
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax 222 EHRELFRSESH (&)

(continued)
Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income
tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the
end of the reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset
is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment
properties that is measured at fair value is
determined by using the tax rates and the tax
bases that are consistent with the expected
manner of recovery of these investment
properties.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences
and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between
the carrying amount and tax bases of investments
in foreign operations where the Company is
able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22

2.23

Current and deferred income tax
(continued)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and when the
deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are
offset where the entity has a legally enforceable
right t